Public Document Pack

Sheffield
City Region

MAYORAL

COMBINED AUTHORITY

Friday, 8 November 2019

To: Members of the SCR - Mayoral Combined Authority Board and Appropriate Officers

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Mayoral Combined
Authority to be held at Sheffield City Region, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ,
on: Monday, 18 November 2019 at 2.00 pm for the purpose of transacting the business
set out in the agenda.

\>)~ A"L‘”&fn .

Dr Dave Smith
Chief Executive

Webcasting Notice

This meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Mayoral Combined
Authority’s website.

You should be aware that the Mayoral Combined Authority is a Data Controller under the
Data Protection Act 2018. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in
accordance with the Mayoral Combined Authority’s published policy.

By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to be filmed and to the possible use of
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.



Member Distribution
Mayor Dan Jarvis (Chair)

Councillor Chris Read (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Garry Purdy

Councillor Julie Dore

Councillor Martin Thacker MBE

Mayor Ros Jones

Councillor Simon Greaves

Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE
Councillor Steve Fritchley

Councillor Tricia Gilby

Councillor Jim Andrews BEM (Reserve)

SCR Mayoral Combined
Authority

Rotherham MBC
Doncaster DDC
Sheffield City Council
NE Derbyshire DC
Doncaster MBC
Bassetlaw DC
Barnsley MBC
Bolsover DC
Chesterfield BC
Barnsley MBC



SCR - Mayoral Combined Authority Board

Monday, 18 November 2019 at 2.00 pm

Venue: Sheffield City Region, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield

Sheffield
sity Region

MAYORAL

S12BQ COMBINED AUTHORITY
Agenda

Agenda | Subject Lead Page

Ref No

1. Welcome and Apologies Mayor Dan

Jarvis
2. Announcements Mayor Dan
Jarvis
3. Urgent Items Mayor Dan
Jarvis
To determine whether there are any additional items
of business which by reason of special
circumstances the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered at the meeting; the reason(s) for such
urgency to be stated.

4, Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public Mayor Dan
and Press Jarvis
To identify where resolutions may be moved to
exclude the public and press. (For items marked *
the public and press may be excluded from the
meeting.)

5. Voting Rights for Non-constituent Members Mayor Dan

Jarvis
To identify whether there are any items of business
that apply only to the South Yorkshire Members of
the Mayoral Combined Authority, ie, where it would
not be appropriate for non-SY Members to have
voting rights.

6. Declarations of Interest by individual Members in Mayor Dan
relation to any item of business on the agenda Jarvis
Declarations of Interest by individual Members in
relation to any item of business on the agenda.

7. Reports from and questions by members Mayor Dan

Jarvis
8. Receipt of Petitions Mayor Dan

Jarvis




9. Public Questions Mayor Dan
Jarvis
10. Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd September Mayor Dan 5-12
2019 Jarvis
11. Quarter 2 Capital and Revenue Monitoring Report Mike 13- 26
Thomas
12. Draft Financial Strategy 2020-25 and Budget 2020- | Mike 27 -32
21 Thomas
13. LGF Investment Approvals Ms Sue 33-36
Sykes
13.1 Appendix A - LGF Project Approval - Rotherham Ms Sue 37-40
Town Centre Housing Sykes
13.2 Appendix B - LGF Approval - M1 Junction 37 Ms Sue 41 - 44
Sykes
14. Transforming Cities Fund Bid Submission Mr Mark 45 - 144
Lynam
15. Climate and Environmental Emergency Mr Colin 145 - 148
Blackburn
16. Becoming an Armed Forces Friendly Employer: Mayor Dan | 149 - 152
MCA adoption of the Armed Forces Covenant Jarvis
17. Withdrawal of Non-Constituent Members from the Dr D Smith | 153 - 156
LEP
18. Decisions & Delegated Authority Report Dr D Smith | 157 - 166
19. Appointment of Head of Paid Service Mayor Dan | 167 - 170
Jarvis
Items to be considered in the absence of the public and press
20. LGF Project Approval - Project Chorus * Ms Sue 171-178
Sykes
21. LGF Investment Approval * Ms Sue 179 - 182
Sykes

Date of next meeting: Monday, 27 January 2020 at 11.00 am
At: Sheffield City Region, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ




Agenda Item 10

SCR - MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BOARD S h e ffl e d
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: }itg Regi()n
MONDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 11.00 AM MAYORAL

COMBINED AUTHORITY
SHEFFIELD CITY REGION, 11 BROAD STREET WEST,

SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ

Present:

Mayor Dan Jarvis (Chair) SCR Mayoral Combined Authority
Councillor Chris Read (Vice-Chair) Rotherham MBC

Councillor Garry Purdy Derbyshire DCC

Councillor Julie Dore Sheffield City Council

Mayor Ros Jones Doncaster MBC

Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC

Councillor Alex Dale (Reserve) NE Derbyshire DC

Nigel Brewster (Observer) Private Sector

Officers in Attendance:

Sarah Norman Chief Executive Barnsley MBC

Dan Swaine Chief Executive of Bolsover Bolsover DC/NE Derbyshire
District Council/NE Derbyshire DC
District Council

Fiona Boden Policy Adviser - Mayor SCR Executive Team

Mark Lynam Director of Programme SCR Executive Team
Commissioning

Stephen Batey Head of Mayor's Office SCR Mayor's Office

Tim Taylor Director of Customer Services SYPTE

Peter Dale Director of Regeneration and Doncaster MBC
Environment

Melanie Dei-Rossi Assistant Director - Programme  SCR Executive Team

Eugene Walker Chief Finance Officer Sheffield City Council

Judith Badger Rotherham MBC

Craig Tyler Minute Taker Joint Authorities Governance

Unit

Councillor Chris Furness Peak District National Park
Authority

Guests in Attendance

Councillor Nicola Sumner Petitioner

Mr S Narraidoo Petitioner

Mr B Little Petitioner

Mr N Slack Member of Public

Page 5



Apologies:

Councillor Simon Greaves Bassetlaw DC

Councillor Steve Fritchley Bolsover DC

Councillor Tricia Gilby Chesterfield BC

Huw Bowen Chesterfield BC

Neil Taylor Bassetlaw DC

Paul Wilson Derbyshire Dales DC

Sarah Want Sheffield University

Sarah Fowler Chief Executive Peak District National
Park

1 Welcome and Apologies

The Mayor welcomed everyone present to the meeting.
Members’ apologies were noted as above.
2 Announcements

The Mayor provided Members with updates regarding matters that have arisen
since the previous meeting.

The Mayor commented on the Convention of the North event held on the 13th
September, suggesting this was an important opportunity for the North to come
together as one and continue the conversation about what strategy the North
needs, what resources will be required, what we can do through collaboration,
and ensuring we connect our communities to the opportunities we create. The
Mayor asserted that the Prime Minister and his Government will be held
accountable for their lack of action to support the North if their promises aren’t
kept.

The Mayor also commented on how inspirational Brandon Green, one of our
Youth Combined Authority members from Barnsley, was in his address to the
Convention. Members agreed we should be very proud of his efforts.

Regarding homelessness, the Mayor updated Members on how the £90,000
accepted from Government in March for the purposes of improving support to
veterans impacted by homelessness, has been allocated in support of existing
projects and initiatives.

3 Urgent Items
None.

4 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press
None.

5 Voting Rights for Non-constituent Members

It was agreed there were no agenda items for which the non-Constituent

Page 6



Members should not be given full voting rights.

Declarations of Interest by individual Members in relation to any item of
business on the agenda

Clir Dore declared a non-pecuniary interest in the matters to be considered at
item 12 (LGF Capital Programme Approvals - September 2019) by virtue of
being the Leader of the sponsoring Authority for the LGF Upper Don Valley
Flood Alleviation scheme.

Reports from and questions by members

None.

Receipt of Petitions

Members were advised of the receipt of 4 petitions.

A 43 signature petition concerning the changes to the X2 bus route at Hoyland
Common was received from ClIr Nicola Sumner who presented in person.

A 53 signature petition regarding dissatisfaction with quality of bus service
between Totley and Sheffield City Centre was received from Mr S Narraidoo
who presented in person.

A 231 signature petition with the title “Keep a company that serves the people,
Sheffield Community Transport, on 10/10a route” was submitted by Alicia Vedio

A 1056 signature petition calling for the reinstatement of the Walkley bus
services 31 and 31b was received from Mr Bernhard Little on behalf of the
Walkley Green Party.

The Mayor thanked those presenting petitions for their contributions.

The Mayor informed the meeting he understand how important buses and
sustainable travel are to residents and communities and the petitions submitted
today amplify that.

In response to the particular concerns raised in these petitions, the Mayor
instructed officers of the SYPTE to investigate the matters raised and to
respond both to him and the petitioners directly.

The Mayor noted he usually refrains from commenting on petitions but on this
occasion proffered observations on what he saw as the very real human
impacts of the latest bus service changes for residents. It was noted that
although the large majority of services are unchanged (including most school
bus services) approximately a quarter of all South Yorkshire bus services are
seeing route or timetable revisions.

It was noted that in some cases the changes taking effect are driven by re-

tendering of services with existing contracts expiring; in other cases they are as
a result of operators making changes to commercial services to make a given

Page 7



route financially sustainable.
It was also acknowledged that funding pressures underpin this challenge.

The Mayor suggested this reinforces the importance of the pending bus review
as the bus network as we have known it will not continue to be sustainable if
patronage continues to decline. It was further acknowledged that the reasons
for this decline are complex and are not simply to do with service quality and
frequency. They are as much to do with changing working patterns and social
trends and wider public policy impacts — people are travelling less by bus in our
City Region, footfall is declining, home working is increasing, and new
development too often fails to consider public transport viability.

The Mayor also proposed there is a need to learn lessons from other places
and advised members that all options are on the table. It was further proposed
that any substantial intervention in the market will require underpinning with
capital and revenue and an important question for us as senior politicians and
for the community at large is, ‘how much are we willing and able to pay for a
bus service’.

Closing the Mayor said he wished to make clear that he recognises lessons
need to be learned as SYTPE approaches future rounds of service changes.

Public Questions
A question was received from Mr Nigel Slack and delivered as follows:

“l understand that changes are happening with the form and function of how
Local Growth Funds will be administered. Can the Mayor share the current
situation and how this restructuring of funding will affect the Sheffield City
Region and those businesses that might benefit from this form of business
support?"

The Mayor provided the following response and thanked Mr Slack for his
question:

The Government has previously outlined its intent to replace Local Growth
Funding and European structural funds with a UK Shared Prosperity Fund.
These funds are crucial to the SCR contributing to projects such as the Glass
Works, National College for High Speed Rail, Olympic Legacy Park, Northern
Gateway and the Waverley development. The current Local Growth Fund
allocation for the SCR is £363m and the Structural Fund allocation is £170m.

The Government’s planned consultation on the proposals for the Shared
Prosperity Fund has not taken place. We are currently awaiting a revised
timeframe on when the proposals for the Shared Prosperity Fund will be made
public so that we can respond to them.

| can assure Mr Slack that my fellow Mayors and | are continuing to push
Government for clarity on this vital investment into LEP areas — this funding is
essential to support our businesses, our communities and to invest in our
infrastructure. | have used my privilege as a sitting MP to lead the first debate

Page 8



10

11

12

in Westminster Hall on the Shared Prosperity Fund, met the former Chancellor
of the Exchequer to discuss how we ensure a greater share of national
infrastructure spending is invested in the SCR, asked questions in the House of
Commons, and made representations to the Post-Brexit Funding All Party
Parliamentary Group.

I will continue to use my both my roles to ensure that the Sheffield City Region
secures its fair share of this fund.

Minutes of the meeting held on 29th July 2019

It was noted there were discrepancies in the attendance record. Cllr Chris
Furness should have been recorded as being representative of the Peak
District National Park Authority and ClIr Glyn Jones should have been recorded
as representative of Doncaster MBC rather than Mayor Jones.

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 29" July, 2019 are agreed
to be an accurate record of the meeting, with the exception of the above matter.

Quarter 1 Revenue & Capital Programme Report

A report was received to provide the Q1 position for the revenue and capital
programmes of the Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority for the
financial year 2019/20.

Members were asked to consider the following virements between budget
heads within the MCA/LEP revenue budget:
+ Transfer £218k from Business Support to Staffing to reflect the fact that
the 6 members of the SCR Finance Team became employees of the
SCR with effect from 1 July 2019 (previously they were employees of
SCC and therefore charged as Business Support).
» Transfer £24k from Premises to Staffing to cover the proportion of the
Building Manager’s salary costs chargeable to the MCA/LEP budget.

RESOLVED, that the MCA:

1. Notes the forecast underspend of c. £204k on the MCA/LEP Revenue
Budget.

2. Notes the forecast spend on the MCA/LEP Revenue Programmes is to
budget.

3. Notes the forecast overspend of c. £615k on the South Yorkshire
Transport Revenue Budget.

4. Notes the changes to the South Yorkshire Transport Capital
Programme.

5. Approves the budget variations in relation to staffing costs as contained
within the report.

LGF Capital Programme Approvals - September 2019

Page 9



13

14

A report was received requesting the approval of a LGF change request for the
Upper Don Valley Flood Alleviation scheme.

The report also provided an update on the retained major project ‘A630:
Parkway Widening’, the Business Case for which is due to be submitted to
Department of Transport (DfT) in October 2019.

It was noted that subject to the DfT’s approval of the Business Case for the
A630 Parkway Widening scheme, the MCA will be asked to approve the
entering into contractual arrangements at a future meeting.

RESOLVED, that the MCA:

1. Notes the change proposed to the existing contract ‘Upper Don Valley
Flood Alleviation Scheme’ which re-profiles £2.3m LGF expenditure from
2019/20 to 2020/21 subject to the conditions referenced within the
report.

2. Delegates authority to the Head of Paid of Service, in conjunction with
the Section 73 Officer and the Monitoring Officer, to enter into the
contractual arrangements required as a result of the above approval

3. Notes the pending submission of the ‘A630: Parkway Widening’
Business Case to the DfT.

Quarter 1 LGF Programme Monitoring

The Mayor informed Members this would be Mel Dei Rossi’'s last MCA meeting
before she and her family emigrate. The Mayor thanked Mel for her many years
of dedicated public service and wished her a healthy and happy future and
every success for the future.

A report was received to update Leaders on the position of the LGF capital
programme following Q1 updates and current project approvals.

RESOLVED, that the MCA notes the programme update.
Amendment to Constitution - Quoracy of Thematic Boards

A report was received to note the proposed amendments to the Constitution of
the MCA to change the membership and quoracy provisions of the Thematic
Executive Boards to reflect the position of the Non-Constituent Authorities.

It was noted the quoracy provision for each Board would be reduced from 7 to
5 Members (excluding the Transport Board) but that to be quorate at least one
LEP representative and 2 members from the Constituent Authorities must be
present. Non-Constituent Authorities will have the right to send an attendee to
Board meetings and participate in discussions, but that they have no voting
rights. These arrangements do not affect the membership of the SCR MCA

RESOLVED, that the MCA approves the proposed changes to the Terms of

Page 10



Reference of 4 of the Executive Boards (Appendices 4-7 of the MCA
Constitution) to reflect the position of the Non-Constituent Authorities and to
ensure that meetings are quorate.

15 Decisions & Delegated Authority Report

A report was received to update Members decisions and delegations made by
the MCA and decisions and delegations made by Thematic Boards.

RESOLVED, that the MCA notes the content of the report.
16 Devolution

A report was received to update Members on the work underway to implement
the proposal agreed by the South Yorkshire Leaders and the Mayor in March.

RESOLVED, that the MCA notes the content of the report.
17 Any other business

No further matters noted.

I, the undersigned, can confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting.

Signed
Name
Position
Date

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

ity Regioii

18" NOVEMBER 2019

Q2 REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME REPORT

Purpose of Report

This report provides the Q2 position for the revenue and capital programme of the Sheffield City
Region (SCR) Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) for the financial year 2019/20.

Thematic Priority

Cross cutting — financial

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
The paper will be available under the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme
Recommendations

SCRMCA are asked to consider and note the 2019/20 Q2 position for the Mayoral Combined
Authority’s and LEPs revenue budget and capital programme.

1. Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Mayoral Combined Authority operates a number of revenue budgets, as well as capital
and revenue programmes, some on behalf of the LEP. This paper summarises the Q2
position of those budgets and programmes for the financial year 2019/20.

The report is structured to provide Members with an early indication of the forecast outturn
position in relation to:

e South Yorkshire Transport Revenue budget

e MCA /LEP Revenue budget

e Revenue Programme activity, and the

e South Yorkshire Transport Capital Programme

A separate report is being presented to Members on progress on delivering the 2019/20 LGF
capital programme.

The approved budget in respect of the above revenue and capital programmes incorporate
the budget variations to revenue programme activity already approved by the MCA up to
and including 23 September 2019.

2. Proposal and justification

21

2.2

The key issues regarding the financial performance of the SCRMCA are set out below.

South Yorkshire Transport Revenue Budget

Currently a £93k underspend is anticipated on the SYPTE operational budget. The key
elements are a significant increase in spending on child concessions (£638k) and departure
Page 13



3.

23

2.4

25

charges (£237k) being offset by an underspend on statutory concessions (£534k) as a result
of decreasing patronage and some operation savings.

These savings have masked the adverse consequence of patronage decline, i.e. reducing
viability of the regional bus network, to which operators have been responding by cutting
services along unprofitable routes and seeking increased reimbursement rates for
concessionary fares. This could put greater pressure on the bus tendered services budget,
as SYPTE will have to intervene where bus network coverage is deemed inadequate.

See Appendix 1 for further detail.
MCA/LEP Revenue Budget

The revenue budget is deployed to cover the day-to-day activity of running the MCA and
LEP in its delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP). Typical costs include staffing,
accommodation, business support, international trade and investment marketing and the
commissioning of specific pieces of work as part of implementing the SEP and developing
the Local Industrial Strategy and work towards the Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF).

The 2019/20 Q2 outturn position on the core activities funded through the revenue budget is
shown in the table below.

Variance
Budget Outturn Variance %
Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net Revenue Expenditure £6,506 £6,283 (£223) (3%)
Non-specific Income (£6,506) (£7,105) (£600) (9%)
£0 (£822) (£823) (12%)

There is currently an anticipated underspend of £223k in net revenue expenditure. This has
been achieved by active management on staffing vacancies as part of the budget review
instigated in light of the income reduction that has been identified for 2020/21. Additional
income of £600k will be delivered in year from additional LEP grant and investment income.
Further information on the revenue budget’'s Q2 outturn position can be found in Appendix
2,

Revenue Programme activity
As at Q2 all of the revenue programmes are forecast to spend to budget. The overall budget
for revenue programmes in 2019/20 is now £9.724m.

See Appendix 3 for further detail.

South Yorkshire Transport Capital Programme

The budget for the South Yorkshire Capital Programme at Q2 of £43.8m is more or less
unchanged from that at Q1.

There is currently a forecast underspend of £929k.

Further details on the capital programme and how it is being financed are contained in
Appendix 4.

Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1

The Authority’s constitution requires that the Annual Revenue Budget is subject to
monitoring to ensure that expenditure remains within the overall resources available and
that any change to the overall level of resources are referred to the Authority for
consideration.

Page 14



It similarly requires the Capital Programme is subject to monitoring (schemes promoted by
the Authority and those directly managed by SYPTE) to ensure that it remains within
approved funding and that variations in excess of £250,000 or which require additional
borrowing are approved by the Authority.

This report fulfils these responsibilities. Hence, no alternative course of action considered.
4. Implications

4.1 Financial

This paper provides information on the MCA'’s revenue budget and capital programme at
Q2.

The main financial risk is the level of spend in 2019/20 in the light of the budget reduction
anticipated for 2020/21. This has been mitigated by a budget review and the positive
management action on vacancies in year.

4.2 Legal

This report supports the MCA meeting its responsibility under the Financial Regulations
2018 to ensure that the Authority’s expenditure remains within the resources available to it.

4.3 Risk Management

The main financial risk, as set out in paragraph 4.1 (ensuring that MCA / LEP revenue
budgets are managed within budget) is being mitigated through the budget review work,
which is subject to regular reporting through to the Chief Executive, as well as to the LEP
and MCA.

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
There are no equality, diversity and social inclusion implications arising directly from this

paper.
5. Communications
5.1 None
6. Appendices/Annexes

6.1 List any relevant appendices/annexes here:
Appendix 1 — South Yorkshire Transport Revenue Budget
Appendix 2 — MCA / LEP Revenue Budget
Appendix 3 — Revenue Programme activity
Appendix 4 — South Yorkshire Local Transport Capital Programme

Report Author Mike Thomas
Post Senior Finance Manager
Officer responsible Noel O’Neill
Organisation Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority
Email noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3443
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ

Other sources and references: None

Page 15


mailto:noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

South Yorkshire Transport Revenue Budget

The South Yorkshire Transport revenue budget as originally approved when the 2019/20 transport levy
was agreed was £62.8m made up of £59.7m of SYPTE operational expenditure and SCRMCA transport
revenue expenditure of £3.1m.

The following table shows the forecast position of SYPTE operational expenditure budget as at Q2, a
forecast underspend of £93k.

Budget
approved Current
SYPTE Operational Budget by MCA budget Outturn  Variance

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

SYPTE: Mandatory Expenditure
ENCTS / Mobility Concessionary Travel £25,438 £24,869 £24,335 (£534)
£24,869 £24,335 (£534)

SYPTE: Financial Obligations

Capital Financing £10,797 £10,797 £10,797 f0
Tram Access Agreement £1,500 £1,500 £1,500 f0
Depreciation £2,389 £2,389 £2,389 f0
Pensions £2,256 £2,256 £2,256 f0
£16,942 £16,942 £0
SYPTE: Discretionary Expenditure
Discretionary Concessions £1,689 £1,689 £2,327 £638
Departure Charges (£1,183) (£1,183) (£946) £237
Tendered Bus Services £5,649 £5,649 £5,621 (£28)
Community Transport £1,657 £1,657 £1,657 f0
£7,812 £8,659 £847
SYPTE: Operational Departments
Customer Services £1,874 £1,788 £1,728 (£60)
Public Transport £5,568 £5,392 (£176)
Support Departments £2,759 £2,589 (£170)
Interchanges & Sites £2,310
Infrastructure (on street) £978
Planning & Support Depts £4,384

£10,115 £9,709 (£406)

TOTAL SYPTE EXPENDITURE £59,738 £59,738 £59,645 (£93)

The main reasons for the forecast underspend are:

e Concessionary fares (mandatory) — Concessions remains the area most sensitive to fluctuations
in activity and therefore budget variances. The Q2 forecast makes allowance for updated
2019/20 patronage and reimbursement rates for all operators. It should be noted that
negotiations with one of the major bus operators are ongoing over future reimbursement rates but
as the existing arrangement continues until the end of the 2019/20 financial year it has been
assumed that the current negotiations will not impact on the current year. This is the basis on
which the forecast underspend of £534k has been determined.

Page 17



Discretionary concessions — Expenditure on child concessions is under significant cost pressure,
in particular, due to the fact that fares have increased with inflation but the child concessionary
fare has remained fixed at its 2016 level and further to a review of the model used for calculating
the child reimbursement. The total impact of these forecast changes is a projected full year
overspend of £638k on child concessions across all operators. Further to a review at the end of
Q2 of the provision made for known risks made at 2018/19 year end, it would be possible to
mitigate approximately half of the forecast overspend with the release of provision where risk
levels have fallen sufficiently.

Departure charges - As part of the negotiations noted within Concessionary fares, the Operator
has requested a review of Departure charges which it pays to SYPTE. It is prudent to include this
in the full year forecast as a risk, but the final agreement has yet to be reached.

Public Transport — forecast saving of £176k due to planned vacancy management.

Support Departments — the main reason for the favourable variance of £170k is that, at the time
of setting the 2019/20 budget, DfT indicated that the amount of Rail Admin Grant likely to be
awarded in 2019/20 would be reduced from the amount awarded in 2018/19. In the event there
was no such reduction.

Page 18



Core Operational Revenue Budget

2.1

2141

213

2.2

Income

Appendix 2

There is an additional £600k in anticipated income from the budget approved by the MCA on
the 25 March 2019. The following table provides a breakdown of the sources of income.

Income Stream

EZ Business Rates

Traded Income - AMP
Transport Hub Subscriptions
LEP Grants

Investment Income - Treasury

Investment Income - Property
Portfolio

Deficit/(Surplus)

EZ Rates

Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000
(£3,023)  (£3,038)
(£1,428)  (£1,630)
(£1,000) (£1,204)
(E500)  (£725)
(£195)  (£345)

(£155) (£163)
(£6,506) (£7,105)

Variance

£'000
(£15)
(£202)
£0
(£225)
(£150)

(£8)
(£600)

The EZ business rates growth for the year is based on the estimates provided by each
authority to Government prior to the start of the financial year capped at £1m in Chesterfield’s

case.

LEP Grants

£200k has been awarded by government towards the LEP review of the SCRMCA. In
addition, a 1% top slice (£25k) of the £2.5m Access Fund has been agreed as a contribution
to revenue towards the programme management costs.

Investment Income — Treasury

Treasury investment income comprises interest receivable from cash invested in accordance
with the MCA Group’s treasury management strategy. The MCA/LEP takes a low-risk
approach in terms of its investment strategy in order to provide a secure source of income to
the authority. The actual investment income forecast in 2019/20 exceeds budget by £150k,
due to larger than anticipated cash balances being invested for longer as a result of not being
drawn down to cover LGF scheme defrayals.

Traded Income — AMP

The second largest source of income comes from the tenants who occupy workspace at the
AMP Technology Centre. Occupancy levels in 2019/20 are exceeding budgeted levels, thus
yielding an expected income surplus of £202k (14%).

Expenditure

The main costs of running the MCA/LEP include staffing, accommodation, business support,

international marketing and the commissioning of specific pieces of work as part of

implementing the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) and Shared
Prosperity Fund (SPF). At the end of Q2, a saving of £223k is anticipated. The table below
provides a breakdown of these costs.

Expenditure

Staffing

SEP, LIS and SPF Development
AMP

Business Support, Supplies &
Services

Trade and Investment
Other Property Costs

Revised Outturn

£'000
£2,519
£1,160
£1,022

£975
£601
£229
£6,506

Page 19

£'000
£2,186
£1,160
£1,022

£973
£601
£341
£6,283

Variance
£'000
(£333)

£0

£0

(£2)
£0
£112
(£223)



2.21 Staffing
Since the start of the financial year, the SCRMCA has taken the opportunity to manage
vacancies that have arisen as officers have left the organisation and not been replaced. On
the assumption that the current vacancy management policy is maintained the estimated
staffing costs are forecast to reduce to £2.2m net of recharges, a net saving of £333k or 13%.
222 SEP, LIS and SPF Development

The £1.16m budget has been subdivided as follows:

Budget
SEP, LIS and SPF Development £'000
SEP/LIS development £190
Business Growth programme £180
Research & Evaluation programme £100
Transport strategy implementation £190
Infrastructure plan implementation £100
Skills £50
Corporate communications £160
Governance and organisational development £190

£1,160

2.23 Trade & Investment

The £601k budget has been subdivided as follows:

Budget

Trade and Investment £'000
MIPIM 2020 £155
Trade missions — China and India £131
Other Trade and Investment £197
Corporate Marketing £118
£601

224 Other Property Costs

These represent a combination of the share of the Broad Street West premises costs
apportioned to the LEP and property costs associated with the investment property portfolio.

The forecast overspend has arisen due to:
¢ The tenant vacating Midland Road bus depot, and the SCRMCA, as a consequence,
becoming liable for premises costs, the principal one being Business Rates of £80k
e Areduction in recharges to revenue programmes
2.2.5 Business Support, Supplies & Services
The forecast underspend is due to savings in business support charges as a result of the

SCRMCA employing body status and moving services such as HR, Payroll, Legal etc. in
house.

Page 20



Appendix 3

Revenue Programmes
3.1 Total spend across all 16 revenue programmes for 2019/20 is £9.724m.

3.2 Programme Activity Thematic Area 2019/20

Revised

Outturn Variance
Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000

Skills Bank Skills & Employment £1,157 £1,157 £0
Health Led .
. Skills & Employment £2,179 £2,179 £0

Employment Trial
Enterprise Advisor Pilot  Skills & Employment £180 £180 £0
Hub enhancement Business Growth £34 £34 £0
Growth Hub Business Growth £829 £829 £0
Access to Finance Business Growth £126 £126 £0
One Public Estate Assets £418 £418 £0
Planning Delivery Fund  Planning £162 £162 £0
Sustainable Travel

Transport £2,500 £2,500 £0
Access Fund
Energy & Sustainability  Infrastructure £59 £59 £0
Key Account

Trade & Investment £102 £102 £0
Management
HS2 Growth Transport £353 £353 £0
Mayoral Capacity Fund  Mayor’s Office £1,302 £1,302 £0
EU Exit Fund Skills & Employment £182 £182 £0
Transforming Cities

Infrastructure £50 £50 £0
Fund
Supporting Homeless Skills & Employment £91 £91 £0
Total £9,724 £9,724 £0

3.2.1 Skills & Employment

The two main workstreams in the area of Skills and Employment are the Health led trial (an
MCA project) and Skills Bank (a LEP growth deal project).

Health led trial — the referral window closed on 31st October, any new customers could not be
accepted after this date. The trial, however, will continue until the end of October 2020, as
customers on the trial are entitled to twelve months IPS (Individual Placement and Support)
support, which will help them to either find work or stay in work. During this time, the
remaining three KPIs of 3 months progression, Job Starts and Job Sustainments will
continue to be evidenced and monitored against profiled targets.

Skills Bank - Skills Bank team are on track with 2019/20 deliverables and are due to submit
the first claim to the ESFA for £180k within the next few weeks.

Page 21



3.2.2

3.2.3

Business Growth

The Growth Hub team have been meeting with local businesses and attending various
events/seminars to offer advice around Brexit related issues as well as ongoing provision of
growth advice, support and signposting for businesses.

The Growth Hub’s Scale Up initiative which is being delivered in partnership with both the
University of Sheffield and Sheffield Hallam University is underway, supporting a cohort of
high growth businesses and is to be completed in December. Also launching this month is
the Sheffield Innovation Project continuation (SIP2) which is an ERDF project collaboration
between the Growth Hub and the two Universities, this will see the Growth Hub recruit 2
regional Innovation Advisors as part of the project.

Mayoral Capacity Fund

This is to help support the Mayoral Office deliver against Mayoral and Manifesto priorities.

The MCA received an allocation of £0.966m in 2018/19 and should have receive a further
allocation in 2019/20 of £1.034m. £1m was received in May 2019 which was less than the
expected £1.34m. BEIS have been contacted regarding the remaining £34k and they have
committed to follow this up as soon as possible.

SCR have now also received confirmation that a further £1m funding for MCF has been
granted for 2020/21.

Page 22



Appendix 4
South Yorkshire Transport Capital Programme

The South Yorkshire Transport Capital Programme comprises the capital programmes of the MCA,
SYPTE and the programmes managed centrally by the LTP team.

The latest position including how it is being financed is summarised in the table below.

2019/20 approved Programme

Budget as
M i originall N Variance
Programme anaging ginatly budget Outturn
Agent approved

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Highways Capital

. SY partners £11,791 £13,668 £13,668 £0
Maintenance
ISTYE;TE (excluding o\ orp £8754  £10,132 £10,132 £0
Integrated

LTP team £8,428 £10,548 £9619  -£929

Transport Block
UrEISEuli SCR Executive £0 £4244  £4.244 £0
Cities Fund
BDRTransport o pecutive  £2693  £3,079  £3,079 £0
Capital Pot
Low Emission SCR Executive £0 £1293  £1,293 £0
Buses
el S [ — £0 £723 £723 £0
Fund
Mass Transit SCR Executive £0 £127 £127 £0

£31,666 £43,814 £42,885 -£929

Sources of finance

£'000
DfT capital grant 33,345
Other contributions 1,314
Capital receipts 1,464
Borrowing 6,762
42,885

Highways capital maintenance and National Pothole funding

The overall amount of local roads funding held by the MCA is £14.391m (Highways Capital Maintenance
of £13.668m and National Pothole funding of £0.723m).

A further £1.688m of grant distributed by the MCA to delivery partners in 2018/19 is being carried
forward into 2019/20 within the accounts of the partners concerned.

This means that the overall level of local roads funding for which the SCR is ultimately accountable in

2019/20 is £16.079m.
Page 23



As at Q2 the total spend to date based on information provided to the LTP team by highways teams
management at each local authority was £7.102m. A breakdown by authority is provided below:

Funding Spend to date

Available as at Q2

£'000 £'000
Barnsley 3,909 2,435
Doncaster 7,900 2,107
Rotherham 4,270 2,561

16,079 7,103

SYPTE

The overall SYPTE capital programme (excluding ITB) is little changed from Q1.
There has been a small increase of £92k funded by grant and other contributions.

Actual and committed spend to the end of September 2019 is slightly ahead of the forecast made at the
start of the year.

Integrated Transport Block

The ITB programme as a whole of £10.548m comprises the current year allocation of £8.428m and
carry forward of underspend from 2018/19 of £2.120m.

A summary of allocations by delivery partner is provided in the table below. The amount at Programme
Entry has been brought into line with the funding available.

Funding available :;c:rg;amme
£'000 £'000
Barnsley 1,297 1,297
Doncaster 1,833 1,834
Rotherham 1,376 1,376
Sheffield 3,182 3,184
SYPTE 2,512 2,513
Countywide 348 343
10,548 10,547

As at Q2 the total spend to date based on information provided to the LTP team was £2.253m.

The Transport Board at its meeting on 15 July 2019 requested a review of the ITB programme
commissioned by the PTE to determine if there would be any benefit in, or capacity to, re-allocate
funding within the programme. The focus of the review was on higher risk projects, with any funding
identified for re-allocation being placed in a central pot with options for use to be considered by the
Board.

The outcome of this review was reported to the Transport Board on 25 October 2019. The Board agreed
to defer funding for five projects to enable works to be completed in 2020/21. This accounts for £714k of
the forecast underspend in 2019/20.

The Board requested that specific proposals be developed in how the remaining £215k of the forecast
underspend might be used for further consideration.

Page 24



Transforming Cities Fund (Tranche 1)

The MCA received £4.244m of Transforming Cities Funding at the end of March 2019. This allocation
was in respect of the following schemes, all of which are to be delivered by the end of 2019/20:

e £2m Sheffield Package of Cycling Infrastructure improvements
o £1.264m River Don Corridor Active Travel Package
o £0.980m Rotherham Town Centre Active Travel Package

Funding agreements are now in place for each of the above.

BDR transport capital pot

The BDR transport capital pot is being used to fund a package of schemes in Barnsley, Doncaster and
Rotherham.

As previously reported, Barnsley are using their £1.043m allocation as an additional contribution to the
overall funding package for the M1 Junction 37 Phase 1 Highway Improvement Scheme.

The likelihood is that the funding for this scheme will now be required in 2020/21 rather than 2019/20.

Low Emission Buses

The requirements for paying out this grant have now been met. Grant is expected to be paid out in full by
the end of Q3.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

=

18t November 2019

Draft Financial Strategy 2020-25 and Budget 2020-21

Purpose of Report

This report outlines the current financial position of Mayoral Combined Authority then sets out the
principles underpinning a 5-year financial strategy for an organisation to deliver on its ambitions within
the resources available.

Thematic Priority

Cross cutting - Financial

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

The paper will be available under the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme

Recommendations

1.

MCA consider and approve the overall Financial Strategy 2020 to 2025 identified in the report.

2. MCA approve this strategy as the basis of developing the detailed 2020/21 budget to be

brought back in early 2020 for formal approval.

Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

The nature of the MCA as a strategic organisation means that it has few demand-led
pressures on its budget unlike the constituent authorities.

This report focuses specifically on the key financial risk to the MCA/LEP. Reduction in
income is a significant factor as is the availability of revenue funding to create and
deliver future programmes and attract significant investment into the region.

This paper looks to set out a balanced 5-year Financial Strategy that identifies the
resources to deliver the ambitions for Sheffield City Region (SCR) identified by the
emerging Strategic Economic Plan. It will look at immediate issues to address 2020/21
budget development and consider longer term positions on costs and income.

Members will be aware that the immediate pressure on future budgets is a
significant reduction in income from April 2020. £1m is lost in business rates
from the changes to SCR boundaries. Initial indication was that there would
also be the loss of Mayoral Capacity Fund (MCF) in 2020/21. Whilst MCF has
now been granted for an additional year, a budget review was instigated, and
actions identified to reduce costs and deliver a balanced financial position over
the medium term to March 2025.

Page 27




1.4

Major changes to funding for the MCA will take place over the period of the
strategy. Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) is likely to be made available for
2020 to 2024. The Local Growth Fund programme (LGF) finishes in March
2021 but will be replaced by Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) that will support
the delivery of the priorities within local SEPs. Whilst the level of that funding is
not yet known, some assumptions around the structure to deliver on the SEP
priorities have been made in developing the overall financial envelope.

2. Proposal and justification

21

The Financial Strategy below identifies a financial envelope for the next 5 years and a high
level break down on the areas of expenditure that will be incurred. The current year budget
has been included for completeness. Slightly more detail has been included for 2020/21 as
these are likely to be the main thrust to develop the actual programmes to deliver the SEP

outcomes.

Financial Strategy 2020 to 2025

19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

Income Stream £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EZ Business Rates £3,024 £2,009 £2,009 £2,408 £2,508 £2,608
Traded Income — AMP £1,428 £1,620 £1,620 £1,620 £1,620 £1,620

Subscriptions

£1,204 £1,184 £1,184 £1,184 £1,184 £1,184

LEP Grants £500 £500 £500 £500 £500 £500
Investment Income & Treasury Management £195 £400 £295 £295 £285 £161
Investment Income - Property Portfolio £155 £155 £155 £155 £155 £155

Expenditure

£6,506 £5,868 £5,763 £6,162 £6,252 £6,228

Staffing — Core £2,519 £2200 £2,142 £2,185 £2229 £2273
Centralised budgets £1,761 £1,600 £1,600 £1,600 £1,600
Business Investment Revenue Programme £200
Skills Programme Development £200
Transport Programme Development £200
Housing and Infrastructure £100
Policy, Research & Evaluation £150
Governance (MCA/LEP) £75
Organisational Development £75
Regional Placement £200
Trade & Investment £250
Communications, campaigns & marketing £150
AMP £1,022 £1,022 £1,022 £1,022 £1,022 £1,022
Business Support, Supplies & Services £975 £938 £1,004 £1,012 £1,140 £1,140
Other Property Costs £229 £394 £394 £264 £264 £264

£6,506 £6,154 £6,162 £6,083 £6,255 £6,299

Use of (Contribution to) Reserves -£0 £286 £399 -£79 £3 £71

Page 28



2.2

2.21

2.2.2

223

2.3

The next section of the report identifies the assumptions behind this strategy. Current
budget management information, which is reported separately on this agenda, provides a
strong basis for the proposals before the Board.

Income

o  Enterprise Zone Business Rate receipts fall in 2020/21 by £1m. They have been
increased by £0.1m in 2023/24 and £0.2m to reflect some current investment
decisions being realised.

¢ Additional income has been realised in the current year for the Advanced
Manufacturing Park. This will continue across future years and has been built into the
strategy.

e  Treasury management receipts have been thoroughly reviewed. Additional income is
predicted on an on-going basis with a slight spike in 2020/21 to reflect the end of the
LGF programme and phasing of project funding.

Staffin
e The predicted outturn in Q2 report elsewhere on the agenda highlights a saving in

salaries from active establishment management in the year. Following management
review of the current establishment, the proposal is to reduce core staffing costs by
£319k in net terms. The actual reduction is £608k (12% of the establishment) but
some of this is met directly from specific funding sources. This assumes no
redundancies.

e MCF has been spread over 2 years to meet the staffing costs of supporting the
Mayor’s Office. These costs are absorbed in future years.

e  Further synergies will be achieved from integration of the Group. These are built into
future staffing costs.

o New funding streams such as TCF and SPF will be coming to MCA over the period of
the plan. It is assumed that these will meet any programme management costs and
not fall to core funding.

e The numbers in this line represent the broad cost that is affordable to fund the
structure of SCR. This undoubtedly will change over the period but the strategy
identifies how much is available and proposed for approval.

Other Core Budgets

The emerging SEP requires revenue funding to develop the schemes and programmes to
both achieve funding and deliver the desired outcomes. Some focus has been attributed to
2020/21 budget. Future years will need revenue input to achieve delivery, but the focus
may change. Many of the other MCAs have identified the need to secure revenue funding
to bring forward feasibility work and early scheme programmes as a budget requirement in
their current financial planning period.

A budget review of the centralised budget line has been undertaken and identified a
reduction of 9% in light of the budget challenge. Focussing this resource will place the
MCAV/LEP in the best place to draw down funding from new sources such as SPF when
they become available.

Overall Strategy

The Financial Strategy before Members sets the financial envelope and the broad budgets
for delivering the necessary operations to deliver on the SCR ambitions. It identifies a
shortfall on income in the 2020/21 and 2021/22 of £685k but is broadly balanced over the
rest of the period. It is recommended that revenue reserves are used to smooth out this
transition. The level of general reserve currently sits at ¢c.£1.7m and the savings generated
by active establishment management will deliver a further saving of c£330k which will

Page 29



increase the general reserve to c.£2m. Identifying £685k of this reserve is a sensible
approach that does not jeopardise the future financial security of the MCA.

At this stage, this is a broad indication of how reserves will be used as part of the financial
strategy. The reserves strategy will be brought forward as part of the detailed budget
report, along with the Section 73 Officer advice, in early 2020.

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1

3.2

Do Nothing — this is not considered to be a viable option due to the statutory requirement
to set a revenue budget in advance of the forthcoming year, and in accordance with the
MCA’s own financial regulations.

Invest further revenue funding to bring forward feasibility work and early scheme
programmes. If Members are minded to explore this option in more detail, the additional
investment would need to come from reserves.

4. Implications

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Financial
The financial implications are clearly set out in Section 2 of this report.

Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Risk Management
In formulating the assumptions which underpin the proposed financial strategy, officers
have taken a prudent approach in order to mitigate all known risks.

The MCA/LEP continues to depend heavily on retained business rates from enterprise
zones to resource the core budget. This source of income is susceptible to a variety of
risks. This issue has been discussed previously with Members as part of the 2019/20
budget-setting process. However, the most significant element of this risk has now
crystallised, namely the loss of £1m due to changes to SCR boundaries.

In light of these significant financial risks, sensitivity analysis has been undertaken to
assess the MCA'’s exposure and to ensure that the MCA has a robust reserves strategy.
The level of reserves remains sufficient to mitigate these risks, and as stated above the
reserves strategy will be included as part of the 2020/21 budget report in early 2020.

Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion

The principles of equality, diversity and social inclusion are built into the annual budget
setting process and are taken into consideration when assessing budget pressures and
savings proposals. Any Equality implications that members must have due regard to under
s.149 Equality Act 2010 will be set out in detail in the report that accompanies any
recommendation about specific proposals.

5. Communications

5.1

Consultation with key stakeholders has started and will continue through the various
stages of the 2020/21 business planning process, including the Mayor & MCA Leaders,
LEP Board, Chief Executives and Directors of Economic Development and Finance.

Page 30



Report Author Noel O’Neill
Post Interim Group Finance Director
Officer responsible Noel O’'Neill
Organisation Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority
Email Noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3454

Page 31


mailto:Noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Noel.oneill@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

ity Region
MAYORAL

18t November 2019

LGF CAPITAL PROGRAMME APPROVALS

Purpose of Report

The paper seeks approval of two schemes with a total value over all years of £14.5m Local Growth
Fund (LGF) and approval of one change request and seeks delegated authority to the Head of Paid
Service in consultation with the S73 and Monitoring Officer to enter into legal agreements for the
schemes. A further inward investment scheme with a value of £8m LGF is seeking approval but due
to a Non-Disclosure agreement this scheme is to be considered at item 20 (in the absence of the
press and the public).

Thematic Priority

Attract investment from other parts of the UK and overseas, and improve our brand.
To secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth.
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme.
Recommendations

The SCR MCA consider and approve:

1. Progression of Rotherham Town Centre to full approval and award of £3.9m to Rotherham
Borough Council subject to the conditions set out in the Appraisal Panel Summary Table
attached at Appendix A

2. Progression of M1 Junction 37 Ph2 — Economic Growth Corridor (Claycliffe) to full approval and
award of up to £10.6m to Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council subject to the conditions set
out in the Appraisal Panel Summary Table attached at Appendix B

3. Progression and approval of a project change request from ‘M1 Junction 36 Phase 2
Goldthorpe’

4. Delegated authority be given to the Head of Paid Service in consultation with the s73 and
Monitoring Officer to enter into legal agreements for the schemes covered in 1-3 above.

1. Introduction

11 This paper requests approval for two schemes with a total value over all years of £14.5m
and requests approval to progress a scheme change request. The report asks that
delegated authority be given to the Head of Paid Service in consultation with the S73 and
Monitoring Officer to enter into legal agreements for the schemes.

Page 33



2.

Proposal and justification

21

2.2

23

Housing
Rotherham Town Centre — See Appendix A

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council have requested £3.917m of LGF grant towards
a £30.4m scheme. The scheme aims to deliver 2,000 new homes across three town
centre brownfield sites (Sheffield Road, Millfold House and Henley’s Garage) as envisaged
in the adopted Town Centre Masterplan. Due to local market values, LGF is required to
cover abnormal costs, including flood mitigation, non-standard foundations, site clearance
and demolition. The LGF will deliver three remediated sites, removing physical barriers to
development which will enable the building of the housing units.

e The scheme will deliver 171 high quality homes of mixed type and tenure (28%
Market Sale, 18% Shared Ownership, 54% Affordable Rent)

The scheme has a Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) of 3.4 and represents acceptable value for
money. Appendix A provides a summary of the scheme appraisal and the suggested
conditions of award.

Infrastructure
M1 Junction 37 Ph2 —-Economic Growth Corridor (Claycliffe) — See Appendix B

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council have requested £10.63m LGF grant towards an
£18.2m scheme to improve signals to the M1 J37 roundabout, improve Capitol roundabout,
Capitol Close and Higham Lane including the acquisition of third party land to facilitate the
widening of Capitol Close and provide access to new sites. The project is a wide-ranging
infrastructure investment which will enable employment, housing and school areas.

The scheme is part of Barnsley’s Local Plan adopted by full council on 3rd January 2019.
The proposed project supports the principles of the Barnsley Transport Strategy 2014 —
2033, and once completed will provide better connectivity and opportunities for local people
to access work and address social exclusion

e The Scheme is expected to deliver 2,544 gross indirect FTE jobs on the MU1 site
between 2020 and 2029.

o The GVAimpactis valued at £242m in NPV terms, which equates to £23.5 per pound
of LGF.

The investment is therefore considered acceptable value for money for the LGF investment.
Appendix B provides a summary of the scheme appraisal and the suggested conditions of
award.

Change Request
M1 Junction 36 Phase 2 Goldthorpe

The M1 Junction 36 Phase 2 Goldthorpe grant was approved by the MCA on 28th January
2019, to facilitate the delivery of 72.9ha of proposed employment land. The project
consists of:
o Work package A - improvements to 3 existing roundabouts, Cathill, Broomhill and
Wath Road,
e Work package B - delivery of a new roundabout/access into a proposed
employment site near Goldthorpe.

Page 34



Following higher than anticipated tender prices the project can no longer be delivered
under the agreed funding profile and time frame. The increase of £2,525,112 in total
scheme costs will be fully funded by BMBC

The following changes are requested;
1. Full SCR contribution of £7,324,000 to be allocated to work package A only
2. Slippage of £2,619,843 grant drawdown from 19/20 to 20/21

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total
Grant Agreement £594,713 £4.231,417 £2,497,870 £7,324,000
Change Request £648,244 £1,611,574 £5,064,182 £7,324,000
Variance £53,531 -£2,619,843 + £2,566,312 £0

3. Outputs associated with work package B to be delayed by 12 months from March
21 to March 22

As there is no reduction in outputs the scheme still delivers benefits as agreed by the MCA
28/01/19. The change request is recommended for approval subject to the following
conditions:

o Clawback for the full amount of LGF linked to job creation.
Recommend that 50% of grant is no longer released from clawback upon the
completion of work package A and B and 100% of grant remains linked to creation
of Jobs (due 2028/29).

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

31 The LEP were consulted on the over-programming of LGF and considered the option of
pausing the Programme to take stock of all activity. This option was discounted by the LEP
and projects therefore continue to be considered for approval.

During the appraisal process all bids were considered for alternative sources of finance
and acceptable levels of grant/loan mix.
If the M1 Junction 36 Phase 2 Goldthorpe change request is rejected, then the scheme will
not be deliverable within the yearly funding drawdown allocations currently contracted.
This could result in a return of £7.3m to the uncontracted pipeline.

4. Implications

4.1 Financial
These schemes are seeking an allocation of £14.5m LGF. This will leave a remaining
£17.6m in the programme if no additional sources of funding are secured. This will further
reduce to £9.6m if approval is given to the scheme to be discussed at item 20.

4.2 Legal
The legal implications of each project have been fully considered by a representative of the
Monitoring Officer and included in the recommendations agreed by the Appraisal Panel as
presented in the supporting information.

4.3 Risk Management

Risk management is a key requirement for each of the submissions and is incorporated into
the FBC submissions. Where weaknesses have been identified in the FBCs in terms of risk
management, further work to capture and mitigate these risks is included as suggested
conditions in the appraisal panel summary sheets. Risks and Issues management is
reported quarterly to the SCR Executive.

Page 35



4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
The principles of equality, diversity and social inclusion are built into the application
process of individual projects and continue to be considered and addressed by all
applications.

5. Communications

51 The business case for these LGF schemes presents opportunities for positive
communications; officers from the SCR Executive Team will work with the relevant local
authority officers on joint communications activity at the appropriate time.

6. Appendices/Annexes

6.1 Appendix A: RMBC Town Centre Housing Scheme
Appendix B: BMBC M1 J37 Phase 2 Goldthorpe

Report Author Carl Howard
Post Senior Programme Manager
Officer responsible Ruth Adams
Organisation Sheffield City Region
Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3442

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ

Other sources and references:

Page 36


mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Agenda Item 13a
Appendix A

Appraisal Panel Summary

Scheme Details

Project Name Rotherham Town Centre 3 Sites

Grant Recipient Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

SCR Executive Housing SCR Funding £3.917m
Board

% SCR Allocation 13% Total Scheme Cost | £30.368m

Appraisal Summary

Project Description
This Council-led scheme, across three Council-owned brownfield sites, will deliver 171 homes of mixed
type and tenure (28% Market Sale, 18% Shared Ownership, 54% Affordable Rent).

Due to local market values, SCR gap funding is required to cover abnormal costs, including, but not
limited to flood mitigation, attenuation, non-standard foundations, site clearance and demolition plus
design requirements of the adopted Town Centre Masterplan. SCR funding will deliver fully remediated
sites, removing physical barriers to development.

Strategic Case

The project will provide 19% of the overall identified annual housing need within Rotherham and 52% of
the identified annual need for affordable homes, as set out in Rotherham’s 2015 Strategic Housing
Market Assessment.

Regeneration initiatives are transforming the town centre and its prospects for business growth, including
a new interchange, university campus and the leisure-led redevelopment of Forge Island. The expansion
of the residential population and associated footfall will support both existing businesses and the creation
of new ones, especially in retail and culture sectors.

The town centre sits at the centre of the River Don transport corridor and, with the introduction of the
tram-train, enjoys excellent, sustainable access to all the employment opportunities in the Lower Don
valley, as well as many of the other Growth Areas within the SCR.

Value for Money
The project has a benefit to cost ratio (BCR) of 3.4 and a net present value (NPV) of £7.37m. This
represents good value for money for the public sector.

Of the 171 homes, 72% will be affordable. The high proportion of affordable homes means that in
addition to the land value uplift, the project has significant welfare benefits, including health (e.g. reduced
overcrowding / rough sleeping) and distributional benefits.

Risk

The key risk of relevance to SCR is the ‘potential for cost increases’, as SCR are being asked to fund
brownfield remediation, which has inherent uncertainty. This is identified as medium probability with
medium impact. However, ground investigation reports for each of the sites have been produced and
the stated costs are actual prices provided by the contractor, who will be undertaking the works. The
applicant has also confirmed that any cost increases in relation to remediation will be borne by them and
the contractor. The risk therefore appears to have been adequately managed.

Risks in relation to funding, from Homes England (not yet applied for) and RMBC, are also identified.
Furthermore, planning approval is still outstanding. These make the timescales for a Q4, 2019/20 start
on site potentially tight.

Page 37



Delivery

A dedicated Housing Development Co-ordinator will lead the project. There is also dedicated Finance,
Planning, Legal and Asset Management support and integrated via Prince2 project management
methodologies.

In addition, the applicant has employed an Employer’s Agent, contributing the necessary project and cost
management skills and assisting the applicant in managing its relationship with the contractor.

A dedicated Town Centre Board, including the Chief Executive and Cabinet Members for Housing and
for Jobs & Economy, will provide governance and strategic oversight of the project as it moves forward.

Milestones are clearly mapped out and procurement of the main contractor complete.

Legal

The applicant needs to finalise its state aid analysis, but on the basis of work done to date the grant may
be state aid compliant on the basis that the funding is from one public body to another, it is being used to
fund infrastructure and a significant proportion of the housing being delivered is low cost/social housing.

Recommendation and Conditions

Recommendation | Full grant award

Payment Basis Payment on defrayal

Conditions of Award (including clawback clauses)

Full approval and award of contract is recommended, subject to the following conditions being
satisfied prior to contract execution:

Formal confirmation of all other funding approvals required to deliver the project.

All required statutory consents including all planning conditions must be satisfied.

Detailed milestones which will be monitored, and if not met, may result in funding being withdrawn

Submission of evidence of Cabinet approval for the scheme.

Confirmation that the profiled 2019/20 LGF spend can be defrayed in year, as SCR is unable to

guarantee that this will be reprofiled beyond year end, and/or that RMBC will cover any additional works

from alternate sources.

6. Agree detailed schedule of inclusive growth indicators and targets (e.g. % of [previously unemployed]
locals offered permanent contracts and apprenticeships, mentoring and school engagement and
engagement with the local supply chain) to ensure the project delivers wider socio-economic benefits
and that these can be captured, monitored and reported.

7. State aid clarification to SCR’s satisfaction.

arnNE

The conditions above should be fully satisfied by 31st January 2019. Failure to do so could lead to
the withdrawal of approval.
The following conditions must be satisfied before drawdown of funding.

8. Formal confirmation of commitment to address any cost overruns without unduly compromising project
outputs and outcomes, and without recourse to SCR for further funding.

9. Details of compliant procurement plan

10. Confirmation of the agreed contract price with the preferred contractor(s) and any relevant conditions
precedent thereof.

The following conditions must be included in the contract

11. Clawback will be applied proportionately on the outputs (171 units created, 123 of these remaining
affordable (31 Shared Ownership, 92 Affordable Rent) for a minimum of 10 years.

12. Overage clause required to repay an appropriate element of grant funding in the event that the project
makes a profit.

Page 38



6¢ abed

Record of Recommendation, Endorsement and Approval

Project Name

Appraisal Panel Recommendation

Board Endorsement

MCA Approval

Date of Meeting

Date of Meeting

Date of Meeting

Head of Paid Service | 5 W A 4ams

Endorsing Officer

Approving Officer

or Delegate (Board Chair) (Chair)
Deputy CEX
Signature Signature Signature
Date Date Date
S73 Officer or Simon Tompkins
Delegate Statutory Finance Officer Approval
Finance Manager
Signature
Name:
Date
Monitoring Officer or | Steve Davenport
Delegate : ;
SCR CA Solicitor SEmEL
Signature
Date Date:




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13b

Appendix B

Appraisal Panel Summary

Project Name M1 Junction 37 Economic Growth Corridor (Phase 2 Claycliffe)
Grant Recipient Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

SCR Executive Infrastructure SCR Funding £10,636,628
Board

% SCR Allocation 58.5% Total Scheme Cost | £18,171,209.06

Project Description

Following the separate approval given for the Pogmoor Rd/Dodworth Rd gyratory (Phase 1), this scheme
now comprises the following off-site highway work:

1. Upgrade of Capitol roundabout / Capitol Close / Higham Lane (including the acquisition of third party
land to facilitate the widening of Capitol Close);
Southern access into the MUL1 site to enable housing development;
Northern access into the MU1 site to enable the primary school;
Improvements to Chestnut Tree roundabout to avoid queuing beyond the northern entrance;
Improvements to the M1 J37 signals;
A contribution towards developing the first stretch of the link road to accelerate delivery of the first
phase of homes / commercial floor space and access to the primary school ( which is a planning
requirement.)

oukwnN

Strategic Case

This is phase 2 of a larger scheme (Phase 1 already being in contract) and is well aligned with the SEP
as it aims to enable 1,700 new homes, a primary school and 3,510 gross new jobs on a currently
inaccessible site (MULl - 43 ha). Further, the proposal fits with Northern Powerhouse strategies to
improve connectivity to existing and potential new development.

Locally, the Barnsley Jobs and Business Plan 2014-2017 identifies a shortage of appropriate
employment development sites in the borough, impacting on its ability to generate the number of new
private jobs required to achieve parity with regional job density statistics and contribute effectively to the
SEP. The scheme is part of Barnsley’s Local Plan adopted by full council on 3rd January 2019. The
proposed projects support the principles of the Barnsley Transport Strategy 2014 — 2033, and once
completed will provide better connectivity and opportunities for local people to access work and address
social exclusion.

Value for Money

The scheme will deliver 1,923 net additional jobs which equates to an estimated net public sector (LGF)
cost per job of £5,531. On this basis, the LGF investment will offer good value for money.

The net present value (NPV) of the GVA impact over ten years is estimated to be £311.4m. This
represents a return of £30.30 for every £1 of LGF investment.

Risk

The promoter accepts the following risks to their costs and to the delivery of job outcomes:

Third Party Land at MU1 not secured (despite options agreement signed with landowner)
Contract price variation.

Development at MU1 takes longer to build out than expected for any reason

Planning permission for development not secured at the date (18/2/20) due to objections from
local residents (Master planning is in progress as part of community consultation).

PN PE

Delivery

Procurement of works will be undertaken when SCR funding is approved, either via the in-house team
or externally, depending on tender prices. In principle, the choices are:
1. North and south access roundabouts — private developer procurement (who are funding the rest
of the link road)
2. Chestnut Tree Roundabout — in-house delivery

Page 41



3. Capitol Close/Higham Common Lane — Either in house or external procurement.
The in-house team are highly experienced in work of this kind. It is understood that the developer
consortium have entered into land agreements and are committed to the development and will therefore
take the risk of cost overruns.

Legal

BMBCs solicitors Pinsent Masons, advise that the scheme does not break State Aid rules and
recommend actions to ensure this remains the case during the delivery process.

Recommendation | Approve for funding

Payment Basis Payment by defrayal

Conditions of Award:

Full approval and award of contract is recommended, subject to the following conditions being

satisfied prior to contract execution:

1. Formal confirmation of all other funding approvals required to deliver the project

2. BMBC’s commitment to cover any cost increases.

3. Confirmation that all statutory approvals are in place, including planning permission.

4. Detailed SMART objectives to ensure that each one can usefully contribute towards the monitoring
of the outputs/outcomes of the LGF Grant.

5. Detailed milestones which will be monitored against, and if not met, may result in funding being
withdrawn

6. Submission of a formal confirmation of the State Aid positon.

The conditions above should be fully satisfied by 31% January 2020. Failure to do so could lead to the
withdrawal of approval

The following conditions must be satisfied before drawdown of funding:

7. Submission of detailed compliant procurement plan

8. Confimation of the agreed contract price with the preferred contractor(s) and any relevant
conditions precedent thereof.

The following conditions must be included in the contract:

9. Clawback on outcomes.

10. Specifically, with regards to employment, a minimum of 1,457 new jobs (gross) will have to be
created by the end of March 2029 as a result of this investment, for the value for money position to
remain acceptable. If this threshold is not achieved, BMBC will return £2,190 for each job that is
not created by 2029 up to a cap equivalent to 30% of the SCR grant (£3,190,988). BMBC will be
required to submit reasonable and sufficient evidence to prove job creation.

Page 42




¢t abed

Record of Recommendation, Endorsement and Approval

Project Name: M1 J37 Economic Growth Corridor (Phase 2, Claycliffe)

Appraisal Panel
Recommendation

Board Endorsement

CA Approval

Date of Date of Meeting Date of Meeting
Meeting

Head of Paid Endorsing Officer Approving Officer
Service or RuthAdams (Board Chair) (Chair)

Delegate

Signature Signature Signature

Date Date Date

S73 Officer or
Delegate

Signature

Date

Monitoring
Officer or
Delegate

Signature

Date

Statutory Finance Officer Approval

Name:

Signature:

Date:




Page 44



Agenda ltem 14

MAYORAL

18t November 2019

TRANSFORMING CITIES FUND BID SUBMISSION

Purpose of Report

This report seeks approval to submit the business case for Sheffield City Region’s Transforming Cities
Fund (TCF) bid due on 28" November 2019.

Thematic Priority
Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth.
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme
Recommendations
That members of the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) agree:
e To delegate authority to finalise the submission of the TCF business case to the Chief

Executive and Chief Financial Officer of the Mayoral Combined Authority, in consultation with
the Mayor, based upon the comments received on this report and its appendices.

1. Introduction

1.1 In September 2018, Sheffield City Region (SCR) were confirmed as one of 12 areas to
have been shortlisted for the Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) bidding round. The
requirement was to submit a draft business case to the Department for Transport (DfT) by
the 20™ June 2019, followed by submission of a final business case by 28" November
2019, for consideration as part of a £1.22bn funding pot.

1.2 The draft business case developed and submitted by SCR was focused around three
types of intervention:

o Public Transport — a series of infrastructure improvements aimed at improving the
performance of the public transport network, principally journey time, punctuality
and reliability, within and between the main urban centres and SCR’s growth
locations

o Active Travel — drawing on the draft Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) and the appointment of an Active Travel Commissioner to start
developing a network of active travel routes, taking advantage of the relatively low
commuting distances across the SCR at present

o Rail — enhancing accessibility to/from and at rail stations within SCR and
interventions that support connectivity to HS2/Northern Powerhouse Rail

Page 45



1.3

1.4

touchpoints so that the rail network can become a viable alternative to the private
car for those taking advantage of the significant economic growth opportunities.

These types of intervention were themselves based around three broad economic
corridors set out in the original TCF Prospectus approved in July 2018:

. River Don
o Dearne Valley
o Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID).

The draft business case included three funding scenarios as requested by DfT — labelled
‘Low’, ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ — comprising the following levels of Government funding over
the four year programme up to 2022/23:

. Low - £183 million
. Medium - £204 million
o High - £227 million.

Feedback on the draft business case was received from the DfT in July and August 2019,
and a revised business case has now been prepared for submission on 28" November.

Proposal and justification

21

2.2

The formal feedback on the draft business case was generally positive, including:

o There is a clear thread running from the bid to SCR’s strategic transport priorities,
the Local Industrial Strategy, the Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan
and the Industrial Strategy.

o The focus on transport poverty is very interesting and has a positive link to
MHCLG’s developing ‘Stronger Towns’ agenda.

o The objectives of the programme are clearly set out, along with the context behind
the strategic case — the evidence presented is strong and well used.

o A clear prioritisation and sifting process has been followed with evidence provided.

o All three packages appear to offer ‘High’ value for money at present, although there
is uncertainty around both baseline and demand uplift for active travel schemes.

o A good range of impacts have been identified at this stage, although for non-active

travel schemes these are qualitative.
Particular areas for the final business case to concentrate on included:

o The schemes are clearly defined at the South Yorkshire level and some data is
provided on issues in the specific corridors — further detail is required at the
corridor level.

o The benefits of individual interventions are not clear and a summary of individual
bus schemes, costs, and benefits would be helpful, as well as evidence of support
for the package by operators.

o There is no direct evidence of stakeholder support apart from references to
previous public consultations and earlier workshops.

o Further work should explore the interdependencies between modes to avoid
double counting impacts.

o The overall appraisal should be improved by use of fully validated multi-modal
model.

o Further work on the financial case is to be completed on third party contributions,
quantified risk and long term sustainability.

° Further work is required to establish the detailed programme management
arrangements.

o Each local authority should have a clear plan for how each of their interventions will

be procured. Page 46



23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

This feedback has been used, along with a period of co-development with DfT Officials, to
develop the revised business case. There has also been significant input from the four
Local Authorities and SYPTE, collectively developing the components of the bid through a
Task & Finish Group that has met regularly over the last four months and supervised
through a Project Board. SCR Officers have also provided an external review of the
benefits and costs of the bid’s components.

The updated TCF programme has been designed to be cohesive as well as aligning to
wider activity (including Future High Streets, National Productivity Investment Fund, Local
Growth Fund and Housing Infrastructure Fund bids), supporting transformational uplift to
facilitate sustainable economic growth and housing delivery. The significant schemes that
are included within the bid are set out for each corridor in Appendix 1.

It should be noted that the interventions listed in Appendix 1 represent the ‘High’ value
TCF package and so is the SCR’s ambition for this funding pot, agreed by all South
Yorkshire Local Authorities. Depending on the actual award, some of the above
interventions may not progress at this stage, and each one will need to pass a value for
money assessment under the SCR Assurance Framework prior to implementation.

The new SCR Transport Model has been used to model the impacts of individual bus
schemes and to reflect interdependencies between modes, with bus operators involved in
the refinement of the proposed schemes themselves. Additional baseline surveys have
been undertaken to improve the robustness of the appraisal of active travel schemes. This
latest work on appraisal has resulted in the following revised bid over the four years:

. Low - £185 million
. Medium - £200 million
o High - £232 million.

These values include for 5% inflation per year across the funding period and an allowance
for programme level risk based on a quantified assessment of the risks identified in the risk
register.

The latest draft of the revised business case itself is provided in Appendix 2 — this
addresses all of the feedback set out in paragraph 2.2. Refinement of the overall value for
money assessment of the three funding scenarios is ongoing and a verbal update on the
latest position will be provided at the meeting. The appraisal work will continue up to the
date of submission in order to ensure that the most robust case possible is presented to
the DfT.

The MCA’s comments on the content of the bid would be welcomed, with an agreement to
delegate authority to finalise the submission of the TCF business case to the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer of the Mayoral Combined Authority, in consultation
with the Mayor, based upon the comments received on this report and its appendices. The
revised draft business case was considered by the MCA Transport Board at its meeting on
25" October 2019 and Members of that Board have also been provided with a copy of the
most up-to-date version of the business case.

Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1

Option 1: Increase the total value of the business case submission

The submission already contains a ‘Low’, ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ funding scenario. It is
possible to increase the total value in all three scenarios, however following discussions
with DfT this is not recommended based upon the highly competitive process expected,
and the formal feedback on the draft business case highlighted a need to prioritise further,
if possible, which has been done. The figures presented are therefore seen as a pragmatic
but ambitious range of schemes.

Page 47



3.2 Option 2: Decrease the total value of the business case submission
As above, reducing the total amount requested may also have the impact of negatively
affecting the chances of success i.e. due to the competitiveness of the process, DfT may
use it as an opportunity award less funding if presented with a viable opportunity to do so.

4. Implications

4.1 Financial
The costs of developing the business case have been managed from within existing
resources, including a £50,000 revenue grant from the DfT. Confirmation of the level of the
local contribution to the programme from project sponsors as well as their commitment to
any ongoing revenue support will be provided in advance of submission of the bid.

4.2 Legal
No specific legal implications at this stage of the process.

4.3 Risk Management
Consistent with the development of a five-case business case, a programme-level risk
register has been produced by the Project Board and individual project risks have also
been identified through this process. The bid values in the Financial Case include a
quantified allowance for these risks.

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
The SCR Transport Strategy includes an Equalities Impact Assessment as part of the
Integrated Assessment. It is expected that equalities and diversity issues will be
considered in the delivery of schemes in each package.

5. Communications

5.1 A communications plan has been developed as part of the revised business case,
demonstrating a pro-active approach to communications in this case. A media statement
will be issued following the MCA meeting, and updates shared online and on social media.

6. Appendices/Annexes

6.1 Appendix 1 — SCR TCF Programme — ‘High’ Funding Scenario
Appendix 2 — Revised TCF Strategic Outline Business Case

Report Author Mark Lynam
Post Director of Transport, Infrastructure and Housing
Officer responsible Mark Lynam
Organisation Sheffield City Region
Email mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 2203445

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ

Other sources and references:

Page 48


mailto:mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Appendix 1 - SCR TCF Programme - ‘High’ Funding Scenario

The following is an indication of the significant schemes being developed within each
corridor:

e River Don Corridor

o Improved access between Mexborough town centre and the rail station and
Doncaster college and the rail station.
o Rail station (and station access) improvements across the district (including

Adwick, Bentley, Kirk Sandall, Conisborough, Hatfield and Stainforth), including
the access to/from the stations by active travel modes and improvements to
facilities improved signing and information, accessible bench seating, CCTV and
lighting enhancements.

o Addressing locations of existing public transport delays between Doncaster urban
centre and the iPort site and DSA.
o Connecting outlying settlements to the growing economic opportunity by

providing a new connection into the iPort site from Rossington for buses and
active travel modes and Thorne and Moorends to Unity by active travel modes.

o Improving accessibility and connectivity by providing better walking and cycling
routes in a number of local communities including Armthorpe, Balby, Wheatley,
Long Sandall and Edlington.

o Interventions at key junctions on the A18 corridor between Doncaster urban
centre and the Unity growth area.
o Addressing locations of existing public transport delays within the Doncaster

urban centre by providing bus priority measures at key junctions and improving
on-street facilities.

o Improving accessibility and connectivity by providing better walking and cycling
routes through Doncaster town centre, including St Mary’s Gyratory, North Bridge
Road, Cleveland Street and Bennetthorpe.

o Connecting Maltby to the main urban centre of Rotherham and addressing a
location of existing public transport delays through bus lanes and junction
improvements, along with localised enhanced active travel routes within the
corridor.

e Dearne Valley Corridor
o Addressing a location of existing public transport delays on the A61 Wakefield
Road, Barnsley by a combination of bus lanes and junction improvements, linked
to complementary corridor proposals in the Leeds City Region, along with active
travel improvements along the corridor.
o Bus Rapid Transit between Barnsley and Doncaster — connecting the only
remaining two main urban centres in the SCR which do not have a high quality

Page 49



public transport link, via the housing and employment growth area in the Dearne
Valley.

New cycling route linking Barnsley town centre to the housing growth area in
Darfield and on to the housing and employment growth area in Goldthorpe and
the wider Dearne Valley.

Rail station (and station access) improvements across the corridor, including the
access to/from the stations and improvements to facilities improved signing and
information, accessible bench seating, CCTV and lighting enhancements.
Contributing to the new fully accessible bridge (including cycle use) linking
Barnsley rail station and the town centre.

Connecting the housing growth areas in Staincross and Royston to the urban
centre of Barnsley by providing improvements for active travel modes.

Improving walking routes into Barnsley town centre from the Hospital, including
along Huddersfield Road.

Providing better active travel routes to enable more walking and cycling into local
town centres within the Dearne Valley.

Addressing locations of existing public transport delays on the A630 corridor.
Connecting the housing and employment growth area in the Dearne Valley to the
local centre in Wath for active travel modes.

Addressing locations of existing public transport delays around the A633 corridor
— the main intervention being the provision of a new second access to Parkgate
Retail Park, as well as a new 300 space park and ride site for the tram-train
terminus.

e AMID Corridor

O

O

Promoting active travel use for accessing employment opportunities at the AMID
and AMP from Rotherham town centre.

Providing better active travel routes to enable more walking and/or cycling
through Rotherham town centre, including links to Forge Island — this will
complement the current TCF Tranche 1 scheme.

A new tram-train stop at Magna, facilitating a new 150 space park and ride site —
this will help transform strategic connectivity to the Magna area and provide
growth opportunities in the Templeborough/Sheffield Road area.

A new high guality segregated cycle route along the A6178 Sheffield Road to
help support active travel links between Rotherham, Meadowhall and Sheffield.
Addressing locations where existing public transport delays limit access to
employment opportunities from south west, Kelham/Neepsend and the east end
of Sheffield to Sheffield City Centre, and across the City Centre onto the AMID
and Rotherham.

Promoting active travel for accessing employment opportunities in Sheffield City
Centre, AMID and Rotherham, to improve access to opportunities in particular
from areas of deprivation, and constrain car trips (and so congestion and
emissions) in the City Centre and on some of the busier roads

Improving public transport journey times and reliability within Sheffield City
Centre.

A trial of low emission buses to reduce emissions within the Clean Air Zone,
providing the groundwork for future roll-out of electric buses.

Page 50



MAYOR DAN JARVIS

SHEFFIELD CITY REGION

SHEFFIELD CITY
REGION

TRANSFORMING
CITIES FUND

TRANCHE 2
BUSINESS CASE

|

’

= .
P—— Sheffield
-~ CityRegion




CONTENTS

1 Introduction

2 Strategic Case

3 Economic Case

4 Financial Case

5 Commercial Case
6 Management Case

Page 52



Sheffield City Region (SCR) is one of 12 shortlisted areas invited by Government to develop
a business case for the Transforming Cities Fund (TCF). The fund aims to improve
productivity and spread prosperity through investment in public and sustainable transport in
some of the largest English city regions.

The SCR TCF Prospectus was submitted to Government in July 2018 and sets out how TCF
investment is crucial in providing early momentum to the development of a vision and
programme of investment that will create a globally significant corridor of innovation within
the City Region (the “Global Innovation Corridor”).

The SCR is currently a £34 billion economy, but the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP)
identifies that by 2040 it could be a £55 bhillion economy with the right infrastructure. The
ambition is to build an economy characterised by global excellence in advanced
manufacturing and engineering, superb national and international connectivity, with thriving
urban centres and well-connected communities. The assets and capabilities within the
Global Innovation Corridor will provide strong foundations for further growth, if the
sustainable transport connectivity is right.

However, the SCR’s transport system and its supporting infrastructure is not fit for the 21°
century — there is an existing trend of car commuting and declining bus use that will continue
if no action is taken. The links between neighbourhoods and urban centres are not good
enough and residents can struggle to get to work. Increased car use and the resulting
congestion will only serve to increase the severe detrimental impact on the SCR’s air quality
and hence the health of its residents at a time when a climate emergency has also been
declared across the City Region.

Accessing major employment sites and land available for development is and will be,
restricted by unconstrained car use, which could stifle any immediate economic growth,
resulting in a drag on productivity, competitiveness and a great underutilisation of talent and
skills. This is illustrated in Figure 1.1.

At the same time, the use of active travel modes — walking and cycling — is relatively low,
predominantly as a result of a lack of infrastructure, but also through a perception of poor
safety. Cycle mode share for trips to work of less than 5km in length is between 2 and 3%
and although walking is the predominant mode for trips less than 1km in length, the reliance
on car travel for short trips is still high, adding to congestion and air quality issues, now and
in the future if the situation does not change.

Therefore, there is a clear need to take action now to improve the opportunities for people to
use public transport and active modes. These modes need to become the preferred choice
of travel for increasing numbers of people across the SCR, linked to the identified growth
and employment opportunities, but also for leisure trips.

To address existing public transport issues, the Sheffield City Region Integrated Public
Transport (SCRIPT) study identified 20 corridors across the SCR (16 in South Yorkshire)
that would better connect the main urban centres, current and future economic assets and
areas of housing growth. The corridors are shown in Figure 1.2. The SCRIPT work also
identified four macro ‘strategic transit corridors’ across SCR when clustered together, three
of which are in South Yorkshire. These corridors were identified in the TCF Prospectus and
are shown in Figure 1.3 — covering the Rover Don, the Dearne Valley and the Advanced
Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID) — together forming the Global Innovation Corridor.

Page 53



= /0

City Region

characterised by
low public transport
uptake and below

average levels of car
ownership

Majority of commuting
trips are over a short
distances which could
be undertaken by
public transport

Traffic congestion

xfy Adm

Public transport

Easier to travel e
reliability issues

by car

N
ik

Access to Public transport
employment capacity issues
*—e
Public transport Public transport
service connectivity frequency issues

Figure 1.1 — Existing Transport Issues in the SCR

In addition, an increase in the use of active travel modes will also play a significant role in
overcoming existing transport issues and supporting economic growth. The Mayor’s
appointment of an Active Travel Commissioner is a statement of this intention to promote
active travel to improve social connectedness and improve the health and quality of life of
the SCR’s residents, which in turn will lead to a more productive workforce. The Active
Travel Commissioner has developed four pledges that are informing the production of an
Active Travel Implementation Plan. This document builds on the recent production of a draft
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP), providing further strong evidence for
the programmes of work within the SCR’s TCF programme. The emerging priorities in the
LCWIP emphasise the need to improve access to the SCR’s urban centres and the identified
growth and employment opportunities, with all active travel infrastructure meeting or
exceeding an agreed set of minimum standards.

Page 54



A
/Unlty

0S4

Barnsley / /
/.hl
» Doncaster .
De'srr}./ \
V'ul ey
s / Doncaster-Shefeld
‘s Rotherham Airport
Mead hall .

Sheffi y/’ \ \

Work op

\

Chesterfield « @oc:m®~

/ Wam Vale
cq
ot

Matiock

Key

Priority Corridors assessed as part
of SCRIPT Study

Figure 1.2 — SCRIPT Corridors

Leeds city region

Donca
0

Rwer Don
/ Corridor ®
Doncaster-Sheffield

® Rotherham Airport

Meadowhall

Sheffield

Contfirs O dato & Crown Copyright ard database right (2007) / -

Figure 1.3 — TCF Priority Corridors

Although improving sustainable access to growth and employment opportunities for all of the
SCR’s residents is a clear objective, there is a number of areas across the City Region
where the opportunities that have been identified could have the greatest impact on existing
levels of deprivation — these are the areas that currently experience “transport poverty”. This
is defined as an area of high deprivation where both public transport uptake and car
ownership are low. Some 108,000 people that experience transport poverty currently live in
the areas defined by the three priority corridors included in the TCF Prospectus and Figure

Page 55



1.4 shows the relationship between the identified areas of transport poverty and some of the
larger growth areas across the SCR.

Unity Site
(DNZ7 Initiative)

KR &

I A
a
A a2
@ A"‘A‘I’
a . " A . AA
A R @
= Dearne Valley A
M1 Junction MA & A
36 =
A ! a 2 iPort Site @ Aerocer}tre
+*  Yorkshire
A A,
o Basingthorpe £,
Farm
<‘_> 2 Legend
§ S
& N Area (ha)  Dwellings
3 - o A AMID Site 4 1.10 100 - 200
P el o S A 1-25 201 - 500
c?heéﬁeld 3-9 A A %-50 @ 501-1000
ity Centre ' - w
8 ®A) A 51-100 {0 1001-1500

A 100+ O 1500+

Areas of Transporl Poverty

Global Innovation Corridor
database right 2017

Figure 1.4 — Areas of Transport Poverty and Key Development Sites in the SCR

Therefore, the overall aim of this TCF Tranche 2 bid is to promote a series of interventions
that contribute towards the SCR’s objective to improve intra-city region connections that
either:

. Connect areas of deprivation/transport poverty to areas of economic opportunity by
public transport and active travel modes; or
° Seek to achieve significant mode shift away from the private car on key corridors and

in areas where future growth ambitions and improved health and air quality would
otherwise be compromised.

This is entirely in line with the core policy objectives of the TCF as set out in the guidance for
bidding areas.

This document sets out the business case illustrating how the planned economic growth in
the SCR can be accelerated through targeted investment in public transport and active travel
mode connectivity. The business case is consistent with the Mayor’s Vision for Transport,
the recently adopted SCR Transport Strategy and the policies of the South Yorkshire Local
Authorities. It has a strong link to the Transport for the North (TfN) Strategic Transport Plan
the Northern Powerhouse and the Government’s Stronger Towns agenda and Industrial
Strategy.

This business case clearly demonstrates that there is a strong and robust case for
investment in the SCR’s identified TCF programme. It is therefore recommended that the bid
is prioritised for funding so that the many benefits that it will deliver across the City Region
can be realised as soon as possible.

Page 56



INTRODUCTION

This section examines the existing characteristics of the SCR and the targeted corridors,
sets out the transport barriers identified (both current and future), identifies the objectives
and summarises the options that have been considered. It therefore demonstrates the case
for change — that is, the rationale for investment.

It also identifies the strong policy alignment, particularly the core objectives of the TCF:

Invest in new local transport infrastructure to boost productivity

Improve public transport and sustainable transport connectivity

Improve access to employment sites, Enterprise Zones, development sites, or an
urban centre that offers particular growth/employment opportunities.

It has been prepared with particular reference to the Department for Transport’s (DfT)
Strategic Case Supplementary Guidance: Rebalancing Toolkit (December 2017), which is
designed to help authors of strategic cases assess how a programme or project fits with the
objective of spreading growth across the country, and also introduces a framework for
presenting the rebalancing case more consistently.

The key points from the Strategic Case are as follows:

The SCR is polycentric city region, not a classic mono-centric conurbation in the
manner of Greater Manchester, Bristol or Glasgow.

The SCR LEP area is home to 1.8 million people, with 68,000 businesses,
providing 847,000 jobs and an annual Gross Value Added (GVA) of around £34
billion.

By 2040, the SCR could be a £55 billion economy with the right infrastructure,
however, at a number of key locations, economic growth is constrained by a lack
of appropriate infrastructure, particularly for public transport and active modes.

Without future intervention, delays will increase, and journey time reliability will
deteriorate, presenting further barriers to economic growth and potentially
damaging the existing economy, as well as having a severe detrimental impact on
the SCR’s air quality and hence the health of its residents at a time when a
climate emergency has also been declared across the City Region.

There is a clear need to take action now to improve the opportunities for people to
use public transport and active modes and to make these modes the preferred
choice of travel for increasing numbers of people across the SCR, linked to the
identified growth and employment opportunities..

The biggest opportunity for return on future transport investment, including this
TCF bid, is to better connect the areas of transport poverty with those areas of
opportunity by public transport and active modes, allied to achieving significant
mode shift away from the private car on key corridors that could stifle future
growth ambitions.

Page 57




SETTING THE CONTEXT

The SCR is polycentric city region, including the city of Sheffield, the fourth largest in
England, and the surrounding towns of Barnsley, Rotherham and Doncaster (the largest
metropolitan authority in the country). It is not a classic mono-centric conurbation in the
manner of Greater Manchester, Bristol or Glasgow — this reflects the economic history and
the dominance of industries such as coal mining which led to very strong local economies.
The wider SCR Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) area also includes Bassetlaw, Bolsover,
Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales, North East Derbyshire.

The SCR LEP area is home to 1.8 million people, with 68,000 businesses, providing 847,000
jobs and an annual Gross Value Added (GVA) of around £34 billion. With world-class
specialisms in advanced manufacturing, the City Region is at the forefront of innovation and
a major driver of economic growth as it develops its advanced manufacturing and
engineering capabilities.

The nine SCR districts form a coherent and well defined functional economic area, and all of
the places and districts, be they urban or rural, make an important and different contribution
to the City Region’s performance. The different economic roles of places in the SCR are
illustrated in Figure 2.1, with the following paragraphs providing more detail on the roles of
the four urban centres in South Yorkshire.

Barnsley: A well-established town with strong economic links to both Sheffield and Leeds
City Region. Barnsley has a strong vision coupled with an ambitious adopted Local Plan. It is
committed to focusing investment to achieve a thriving and vibrant economy, that people
achieve their potential and that strong and resilient communities are created. Significant new
land supply in strategic growth areas has helped to improve the recent economic
performance of the Borough. The town centre is undergoing significant transformation via
the £180m Glassworks investment programme, and there are a number of economic and
housing regeneration projects are well underway, including major investment in the strategic
development sites around M1 Junction 36 to the south west of the town centre, and
significant business and housing growth plans in the Dearne Valley to the east of the
Borough.

Doncaster: A high quality urban centre with attractive retail opportunities and excellent rail
links. To the south east of Doncaster is the SCR’s international airport and the rapidly
developing logistics centre, iPort, which is expected to create 5,800 jobs when fully
developed. Doncaster also has several key regeneration and development opportunities,
including Unity to the north east of the town centre (which includes Don Valley power station
and potential low carbon business parks).

Rotherham: Closely linked to Sheffield, with a strong economic and employment base, and
benefiting from a large employment boost in the last growth period, Rotherham is divided
into three major economic areas — the town centre, with an economic corridor running
through the Don Valley toward Sheffield, which is a key employment centre; the Dearne
Valley to the north, which has seen the growth and development of a new business
community; and the rural hinterland to the south east.

Sheffield: The UK’s fourth largest city, home to two Universities with over 60,000 students,
is the only major city in the UK with a national park within the city boundary. It is the City
Region's hub for Knowledge, Creative and Digital Industries, Leisure, Higher Education,
Culture, and Financial & Professional Services sectors. Heart of the City Il is a key
regeneration project underway in the City Centre — the 7 hectare development will provide
further Grade A office space, two 4 or 5-star hotels, residential developments, restaurants

Page 58



and cafés, leisure destinations, parking and stunning public realm. The Advanced
Manufacturing Innovation District connects Sheffield, Rotherham and the Lower Don Valley
and is a 2,000 acre centre of excellence in metals and materials manufacturing and home to

two of the UK Government’s High Value Manufacturing Catapult centres.

Barnsley

Growing
economy;
creating an
M1 economic
corridor, thriving
town centre
and outstanding
cultural
heritage.

Lower Don Valley and

Waverley Advanced

Manufacturing Park

An important
employment
area, focused
on advanced
manufacturing,
with sports and
leisure complexes
(includin
Meadowhall).

Sheffield

The 4th largest
city in England
and a major centre
of engineering,
creative and digital
industries, with

a wide range of
culture and retail

facilities

Chesterfield

One of the regions

key market

towns and the

sub-regional

economic centre

for Northern

Derbyshire, with

a high quality

urban core and

opportunities for =

further growth Derbyshire

Dales

Peak District National

Park

An important

tourist attraction

with more than

10million visitors a

year, con%nbuting

to a significant .

visitor offer within D’"’W,“" Doles

the SCR Including
much of the
Peak District
National Park,
providing the
area with a high
quality of life,
thriving small
businesses
and attractive
market
towns with
opportunities for
growth

Figure 2.1 — Sheffield City Region

Bamsley

North East
Derbyshire

North East Derbyshire
Rural area with
the population
concentrated in
four towns, with
the potential for
growth

Deame Valley

Has undergone
recent major
transformation,
providing jobs,
training and
education through
its environmental
vision.

Doncaster

Worksop
Bolsover @

Ml

Markham Vale

An area recently
developed with
plans to establish
itself as a major
employment hub,
supporting activity
elsewhere in the
City Region.

Page 59

Doncaster

A high quality
urban centre,
attractive retail
opportunities
and excellent
rail links that
contribute to
its multimodal
logistics and
advanced
engineering
offer.

Retford

Bolsover

A rural area with
the need and ability
to accommodate
significant
economic growth
in key settlements,
taking advantage of
access to the M1.

Doncaster Sheffield Airport
and iport

Provides an
international
gateway
and attracts
aero related
employment
and training.

Rotherham

Developing
strengths in new
economic sectors,
as part of SCR's
wider regeneration
agenda, with

a specialism in
manufacturing.

Retford

Benefits from
access to

the national
railway network
and strong
economic links
to Nottingham,
Lincoln and
Newark.

Worksop

A town developing
adiverse
economic base,
with a number

of key visitor
attractions such as
Clumber Park and
Sherwood Forest.



Other significant economic strengths in the SCR include:

. Strategic central location — at the heart of the UK with connectivity via the M1 and
A1(M) motorways and mainline stations on the East Coast and Midland Mainlines to
regional and national markets, and international markets from Doncaster Sheffield

Airport (DSA)
. Two Universities with world class research capabilities and the country’s largest
engineering department and a state-of-the-art High Speed Rail College in Doncaster
° Home to the Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID) in Rotherham and

Sheffield, a 2,000 acre centre of excellence for innovation-led research and industrial
collaboration, boasting exemplar models of university and industry collaboration in
metals, materials, health technology and wellness

. A potential workforce of 950,000, with more than 120,000 jobs in the knowledge and
data driven economy

o A flexible and adaptable base of SME companies focused on business to business
supply chain

° A proposed HS2/Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) station, with two others proposed

on the NPR corridor between Sheffield and Leeds (at Rotherham and Barnsley
Dearne Valley)

o A significant visitor economy including the Peak District National Park, Chatsworth,
Wentworth Woodhouse and several acclaimed cultural venues including the Crucible
Theatre

o Capacity for additional development of employment and housing land.

These strengths provide solid foundations for further growth. The current Strategic Economic
Plan (SEP) identifies that by 2040, the SCR could be a £55 billion economy with the right
infrastructure, driven by the creation of 70,000 new private sector jobs and 6,000 new
businesses. The SCR has shown a gain of 37,000 jobs between 2014 and 2017, and by
2017, activity led by the SCR LEP and the Combined Authority had already contributed
16,000 new jobs to the economy and leveraged approximately £318 million of private sector
investment. Therefore, the targets within the SEP are seen as robust and realistic.

However, despite the strengths and progress made, the SCR Independent Economic
Review, produced in 2013, highlighted the stark nature of the challenges the City Region
faces due to its industrial legacy and the ongoing transition from an economic base
previously dominated by coal and steel. During the growth cycle of 1998 to 2008, the SCR
was the only City Region to experience a net decrease in private sector employment. The
recession and relatively flat performance of the UK economy since 2008 have not helped the
SCR achieve the transformation that it needs.

The City Region needs an outward looking and restructured inclusive economy which
contains a greater number of businesses and which generates more exports and better
employment opportunities. The SEP identified that the SCR needs a bigger and stronger
private sector, which will lead to a growth in the number of jobs in City Region, a higher level
of GVA and a restructured economy. Realising these ambitions will transform performance
and thus the contribution of the SCR to the UK economy.

Overall, each of the local economies and the identified growth areas has a role to play within
the City Region and each will make an important contribution to future growth. Making
further progress in addressing the challenges and issues which are specific to local areas
will help to boost the overall economic resilience of the City Region and its attractiveness as
a place to live, work, play and visit. The following paragraphs explore some of the key
economic and connectivity challenges for the SCR, with a focus on the four South Yorkshire
Districts that form the basis of this TCF bid.

Page 60



The SCR has low productivity despite a sizeable economy ...

Despite being the 10th largest LEP area by population and 16th largest LEP economy, in
2016 SCR ranked 34th out of 38 LEP areas in England for GVA per head and GVA per filled
job. GVA per head in the SCR is currently £18,370, which is well below the UK average
(£26,580) and £5,000 lower than the UK average even when excluding London (£23,774).
SCR’s productivity is lower than comparator Northern LEPs such as Derby, Derbyshire,
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, Liverpool City Region and Tees Valley, as shown in
Figure 2.2.

£24,000
£22,000

£20,000

£18,000

£16,000 /_\/_/
£14,000 /

GVA Per Head (£)

£12,000
£10,000
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
s Black Country e Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire
Greater Birmingham and Solihull s | jverpool City Region
Sheffield City Region —Tees Valley

Figure 2.2 — GVA per Head for Comparator City Regions

GVA per employee and mean earnings are 18% and 17% below the national average
respectively.

The UK-wide productivity challenge affects all SCR sectors and reflects the low proportion of
people employed in higher skilled occupations in the City Region and the need for a wider
range of people to access such jobs.

This shows that there is still much to do to address the failures of our current transport
system that limits the flow of ideas, people and business between the urban areas and major
employment sites, and which acts as a drag on productivity, competitiveness and skills
utilisation.

There is a high economic inactivity, unemployment and NEET rate in the SCR ...

The overall employment rate in the SCR is 1.8% below the national average. There are
47,900 residents in the SCR who are unemployed. Of more concern than the absolute
employment figure is economic inactivity — the SCR has the 11th highest economic inactivity
rates across all LEPs. This is, and has been, a persistent and pernicious challenge for the
City Region since de-industrialisation in the 1980s. By September 2018, SCR had 260,200
economically inactive residents. Of this total, 82,600 people (31.7 compared to 21.4%

Page 61



nationally) want a job, an indication of the opportunity available if the economic conditions
can be improved.

Within this, the most immediate concern for the City Region is the emergence of youth
unemployment — approximately 16,300 16-24 year olds in the SCR are unemployed, which
is 40.1% of the total working age unemployment. Not only is the cost to the local economy
significant, but the cost to the individual young person can be considerable with long periods
of unemployment in the early years of adulthood correlating to a pattern of ‘wage scarring’
(reduced lifetime earnings), further periods of worklessness and reduced life chances as
represented by almost all key social and health indicators.

In part, the origins of youth unemployment can be found in the high level of 16-18 year olds
in the SCR who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) — at present this is

some 3,700 people. 44% of young people leave school without five good GCSEs (including
English and Maths). The NEET level for the SCR continues to exceed the national average.

This converts into unacceptably high levels of unemployment for 18-24 year olds. Since
2008, youth unemployment has more than doubled and 18-24 year olds are more than twice
as likely to be unemployed than their older counterparts. However, since its peak in
September 2012, the number of long term benefits claimants in that age bracket has
decreased.

For young people, a lack of affordable transport options can act as a significant barrier to
finding employment, and our transport system needs to ensure that we provide real and
affordable choices for all of our residents, especially given the SCR'’s local sectoral/industry
specialisms in transport that provide the opportunity for greater innovation and should appeal
directly to young people.

There are pockets of high deprivation across the SCR ...

There are significant areas of deprivation across the SCR and also significant disparities
between the levels of deprivation in different parts of the City Region, as illustrated in Figure
2.3. Too many of the SCR'’s citizens are distant from the labour market and everyday
services, given the dispersed settlement pattern across the SCR, not in employment or
training, are experiencing poor physical or mental health, or have low or no skills to help
them get better jobs. Low productivity, health and deprivation are related.

Deprivation is also compounded by:

. The disproportionate number of low skilled residents in low paid, fragile and often
part-time work
Levels of economic inactivity above the national average

. A growing problem of long term unemployment
A cycle of intergenerational unemployment and poverty and poor health.

A Resolution Foundation study has found that SCR has the highest proportion of people in
low paid work and below the recommended living wage (24%).

Again, we need to ensure that nobody is preventing from becoming economically active as a
result of our transport network, with a focus on improving those connections between the
areas of greatest need and those of new opportunities across the SCR.

Page 62



N

WA
» v

\/"

K g e
S (3,
Rotherham

®*.

gty
5 X ,’x ‘ & Bassetlaw
North'East Derbyshire o ~
K,

Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015
Deciles (from most to least deprived)

L

= O @ ~N O O A~ W N

o

Figure 2.3 — Current Levels of Deprivation across the SCR

Population growth is expected to see an ageing population profile ...

The population of the SCR is forecast to grow by 136,600 between 2018 and 2041. The
following table provides a breakdown of population by South Yorkshire districts and the total,
combined, population of districts outside of South Yorkshire.

2018 2021 2031 2041
Barnsley 245,500 250,900 264,700 275,400
Doncaster 308,700 310,800 314,600 317,300
Rotherham 263,800 266,400 272,700 277,800
Sheffield 581,900 590,600 620,500 643,800
Bassetlaw 115,900 117,100 120,000 121,800
Bolsover 79,000 80,100 83,200 85,400
Chesterfield 104,800 105,300 107,000 108,300
Derbyshire Dales 71,500 71,700 72,700 73,300
North East Derbyshire 100,900 101,700 104,000 105,500
South Yorkshire 1,399,900 1,418,700 1,472,500 1,514,300
Non-South Yorkshire districts 472,100 475,900 486,900 494,300
SCR LEP area 1,872,000 1,894,600 1,959,400 2,008,600

Page 63




Along with an overall growth in population, the City Region, like the rest of the UK, is
forecast to experience an ageing population, as shown in Figure 2.4. Over the next 25 years,
the old age dependency ratio (people of pensionable age per thousand people of working
age) will increase by 19%. Between 2018 and 2041 the number of young people aged 0-15
is forecast to grow slightly by around 2,600 (0.8%) in the City Region, but the population
aged 65+ will increase by 146,860 (41.9%).

Number of people in age group
150,000 100,000 50,000 50000 100000 150000

o

Aged 80-84

Aged 70-74
Aged 60-64
Aged 50-54

Aged 40-44

Age Groups

Aged 30-34
Aged 20-24

Aged 10-14

Age 0-4

Figure 2.4 — Forecast Population Changes

These demographic changes will have implications for transport, particularly as older people
tend to have different travel patterns and travel needs to younger generations and are
generally less digitally connected, but at the same time older residents may continue to work
longer and more flexibly in the future, altering current travel patterns.

Health is an issue in the SCR too ...

The majority of SCR Local Authorities have physical inactivity levels higher than the national
average for the adult population (aged 16 and above), as shown in Figure 2.5.

45%
40%
8
88 35%
==
w8
S 2 20%
S
-
c® 25%
Q =
2%
a3
15%
10%
@ \6“ & é‘b Q}éb & v\‘ﬁ (@@ ;\\é‘b \gi‘b
QO@ @'ﬁ Qp\'ao & .@0 é\"@ ) <& Qé ©
i c}‘éb -{50\ Q Oé & @ <
oéo «°

Figure 2.5 — Proportion of Physically Inactive Adults

Page 64



The way that we travel and the transport we use impacts on our health, our environment and
our societal wellbeing and our health and wellbeing have a huge impact on our everyday
lives — if we are unwell it can affect our ability to work and work productively, to study and
learn and to care for others.

The national obesity survey shows that although the obesity levels in the SCR of 10-11 year
olds have decreased to meet the national average (19%), there are a number of areas within
the City Region that have higher than average, and growing, obesity levels. Being
overweight or obese can lead to serious health consequences such as cardiovascular
disease (mainly heart disease and stroke), type 2 diabetes, musculoskeletal disorders like
osteoarthritis, and some cancers (endometrial, breast and colon).

However, the issues with obesity are largely preventable. The key to success is to achieve
an energy balance between calories consumed on one hand, and calories used on the other
hand. To reach this goal, people can limit energy intake and to increase calories used,
people can boost their levels of physical activity, to at least 30 minutes of regular, moderate-
intensity activity on most days. This could easily be built into a daily commute.

Although health is affected by many different factors, being physically active can have a
huge positive impact on both our physical and mental health. Not only does being active help
contribute to maintaining a healthy weight for children and adults, there is good evidence
that it also significantly reduces the risk of several different diseases. The outcomes of such
an increase in physical activity will include a reduced call on health services locally and
nationally, as well as contributing to an increase in workforce productivity.

Creating environments and transport networks systems which promote active travel as part
of normal everyday life can not only help create, active, healthier and more liveable
communities but can also have significant economic benefits and should be a fundamental
part of our future transport plans.

The SCR labour market is fairly self-contained ...

Three quarters of the SCR’s residents live in the four main urban areas and this figure has
been steadily growing. Between 2007 and 2017 the population of these areas grew by
almost 87,000 (6.67%). Planned housing growth in the immediate term will likely see this
trend continue, but over time, more residents may live away from the main urban centres in
line with growth plans within the Dearne Valley, for example.

However, as Figures 2.6 and 2.7 show, regardless of where they live, people travel
throughout the SCR to access jobs, putting pressure on the existing transport system. The
latest census Journey to Work data shows that the majority of SCR’s residents (85.3%)
commute within the City Region boundaries and around 70% travel within their own Local
Authority area — 56% of SCR commuters travel less than 10km to get to their place of work
and 36% travel less than 5km. Sheffield is a net provider of jobs with the other districts being
net providers of labour.

Whilst it is recognised that there may be changes in commuting patterns in the long term, the
locations of planned growth in the SCR and the types of growth envisaged at these locations
is likely to mean that this situation will continue in the near term.

Page 65



25000
20000
15000

10000

0 II

gff ) QG f&@ § ﬁ}{’@? égfv‘é‘ﬂ’

Commuter Route (Origin and Destination)

Average Trips per Day

Figure 2.6 — Current Travel to Work Patterns within the SCR

LEEDS CITY REGION

HWUMSER & EAST
YORNSMHIRE

WEST
HIDLANDS

Figure 2.7 — Current Travel to Work Patterns Within and Outside the SCR (thousands of trips)

Page 66



The levels of commuting between Rotherham and Sheffield are particularly high and coupled
with additional demand generated by further development at AMID, would indicate that this
is an important area for future transport investment. The lack of existing commuting between
Barnsley and Doncaster is also evident and is likely to be related to the lack of effective
connections between these two centres, by both public and private transport.

Yet in the SCR there is a reliance on cars when travelling to work ...

A high proportion of residents (71%) of SCR residents travel to work by car, and this trend
has increased since 2001, which is contrary to the general UK trend of decreasing car use
and has resulted in increased congestion, longer journey times and has impacted
detrimentally on health and air quality.

Despite this apparent reliance on cars, 29.5% of households in SCR do not have access to a
car — the national average is around 26% — meaning these residents are reliant on public
and sustainable transport modes to meet their transport needs, and with relatively short
commuting distances, this would seem a realistic aim, assuming the right quality of transport
infrastructure, facilities and services are provided to meet their needs.

Not having reasonable access to the transport system is a key factor in social exclusion and
has a detrimental impact on people’s day to day lives and future opportunities through a
reduced participation in the wider economy of an area.

A low proportion (12%) of commuters travel to work by public transport in the SCR, and bus
usage in particular has been falling since 2008. Funding for bus services has reduced, which
particularly impacts on areas where commercial services are not viable, potentially isolating
communities, especially rural communities, even further and can impact on the rural and
visitor economies. Analysis has shown that a little over half of the fall can be explained by
changing customer needs such as home working, internet shopping, home entertainment
and competitive taxi fares. The remainder can be explained by increases in bus fares and
service quality as congestion reduces the reliability and thus attractiveness of buses.

The numbers of people travelling in the City Region by rail has increased between 2005 and
2016 and seven out of the top ten stations in the SCR have recorded more than 50% growth
over this time. The busiest stations within the SCR are Sheffield and Doncaster —in 2017/18
Sheffield had around 9,700,000 entries and exits, the second highest in the Yorkshire &
Humber region, whilst Doncaster had around 3,900,000 entries and exits. Many of the main
and local rail stations have park and ride facilities, which are often full on weekdays.

The Passengers in Excess of Capacity standard, which shows the proportion of standard
class passengers that is above an accepted capacity level (allowing for both seated and
standing passengers) on services at their busiest point, indicates trains arriving and
departing from Sheffield station in the morning peak period were crowded over capacity by
1.2% in 2017, while in the afternoon peak the figure was 0.8%.

Page 67



The current mode share breakdown for travel to work trips is shown in Figure 2.8.

V’::’r:'fer::z Motorcycle 1%

Walking 10%
Cycling 2%
Rail 2%
o ~

Bus 9%

Car 71%

Figure 2.8 — Current Mode Share across the SCR

Cycle mode share remained fairly constant between 2001 and 2011 at 1.5% but counts
taken around the four main urban centres indicate that there was an overall increase by 7%
between 2016 and 2017. Cycle mode share for trips less than 5km (considered to be the
average commuting trip length for cycle trips) is between 2-3%, with car use dominating this
commuting distance. Although walking is the predominant mode for trips less than 1km in
length, the reliance on car travel for short trips is still high, especially as 36% of SCR
commuting trips are less than 5km in length.

The low mode share for walking and cycling is predominantly as a result of a lack of
infrastructure, but also through a perception of a lack of safety resulting from large volumes
of traffic and high speeds.

The continued reliance on the private car cannot continue — if the plans for significant
economic growth within the City Region are to be realised, then it is forecast that there will
be up to half a million extra highway trips per day across our transport network if current
trends continue. There is a clear need to make more of our public transport networks and
develop our active travel network to give people a real choice in how they travel around the
SCR whilst improving air quality, reducing our carbon footprint and cutting congestion.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES, INCLUDING TRANSPORT BARRIERS

A summary of SCR’s key challenges and opportunities was presented in the TCF
Prospectus and a number of these have been evidenced in the preceding sub-section.
Transport has a key role to play in supporting economic growth, ensuring businesses can
function and local people can access employment opportunities in the SCR.

Economic growth in the City Region is dependent on attracting and retaining high value
businesses, and therefore jobs, ensuring people have the skills and education needed to fill

Page 68



them, and then ensuring all parts of the SCR are connected effectively to the areas of
opportunity. Figure 2.9 shows the location of the growth areas across the SCR and the main
urban centres.

Key

E Growth Areas Overview
1-A61 Corridor

- Aero Centre Yorkshire

- AMID

- Dearne Valley Rotherham

- Dearne Valley J36

- Logistics Corridor

- Markham Vale

- Unity

D Urban Centres -

Barnsley, Chesterfield,
Doncaster, Rotherham,
Sheffield, Worksop

D SCR Outer Boundary

D SCR Local Authority Regions

N oA WN

Figure 2.9 — SCR Growth Areas

External connectivity to the SCR is relatively good. The M1 and A1(M) motorways provide
North and South connectivity, with connectivity to the East via the M18 to the Humber. The
A628 ‘Woodhead Pass’ and the Hope Valley rail line providing connectivity to the West
towards Liverpool and Greater Manchester City Regions, with ongoing investigations into
improved strategic links by TfN and Highway England being welcomed. The East Coast and
Midland Mainlines rail routes connect the SCR to London and the rest of the North and DSA
gives the City Region an international reach.

The SCR’s connectivity is currently emphasised by the clustering of employment centres, not
only in urban areas, but along the strategic road network. In particular, the M1 and M18
corridors are home to a large number of major employers. There is evidence of clustering
along the Supertram network in Sheffield and towards Meadowhall, however a number of the
growth areas are starting from a very low base in terms of public transport and active mode
connectivity.

All of the major centres have well developed economic and spatial plans to support growth
and regeneration, although all have been affected by the economic downturn. The majority
of the plans highlight strategic locations based on strong transport linkages. For example,
Chesterfield Waterside at Junction 29 of the M1, development sites at Junctions 36 and 37
of the M1 in Barnsley and the Aero Centre Yorkshire proposals in Doncaster, building on the
newly opened Great Yorkshire Way road link.

Page 69



However, with the changing nature of employment and company preference for certain
locations, this is likely to mean that more people will have to travel further to work, compared
to the past. This will particularly be the case for higher skilled and higher paid jobs.

At a number of key locations across the SCR, economic growth is constrained by a lack of
appropriate infrastructure, which makes development not viable both physically and
financially.

The key transport infrastructure challenge is therefore to ensure that the good national
connectivity is matched by peerless connectivity within the City Region itself. A quantum
leap in transport infrastructure investment is required to remove constraints to development
and connect all people across the SCR efficiently and sustainably to the high quality,
attractive sites that will support new and inward investment.

Based on the contextual description included previously, the target of this investment should
be to address the existing areas of “transport poverty” across the SCR. Around 146,000
people within the SCR are currently living in areas of transport poverty — this is defined as an
area of high deprivation where both public transport uptake and car ownership are low.
Some 108,000 residents that experience transport poverty currently live in the areas defined
by the three priority corridors included in the TCF Prospectus and Figure 2.10 shows the
identified areas of transport poverty across the three corridors.

A A Fon/ g :

Figure 2.10 — Areas of Transport Poverty in the TCF Priority Corridors

Put simply, the biggest opportunity for future transport investment, including TCF, is to better
connect the areas of transport poverty, with those areas of opportunity by public transport
and active travel modes, allied to achieving significant mode shift away from the private car
on key corridors that could stifle future growth ambitions, thereby achieving growth in a
sustainable way that addresses current health issues and improves air quality.

Page 70



The Sheffield City Region Integrated Investment Plan (SCRIIP) identified the top 20 highway
corridors forecast to experience increased delay resulting from population and economic
growth by 2025, as shown in Figure 2.11. Analysis shows that travel times at peak periods
can be over 30% greater than at off-peak periods on these corridors, meaning that such
unreliable journey times also have an adverse impact on the key bus services using these
routes. This requires both short term and longer term interventions so as to avoid continuing
and additional delays that adversely affect the attractiveness and viability of our bus network.

A637/M1 |

\ | AB35
N Barnsley

Doncaster

Asaz |

Rotherham | /
o ’

LT
FYECNALR] g
Sheffield o AB7 & AG30|
57

® Worksop |

[Asts

Chesterfield ®

Matlock e

‘e (op 20 highway corridors farocast
Lo experience delays

Strategic Road Network
§2 Doncaster - Sheffield Airport
& Growth Arcas

Figure 2.11 — Top 20 Corridors Forecast to Experience Delay by 2025

A number of these routes overlap with the priority corridors identified in the TCF Prospectus,
most notably the link between Barnsley and Doncaster, where there is currently no direct rail
connection alternative. The analysis also shows the forecast congestion on radial routes
around Sheffield City Centre and the City’s Inner Ring Road, recognising the ongoing
importance of the core city within the SCR where there is also significant opportunity to
alleviate congestion and support economic and housing growth through modal shift to public
and sustainable transport modes.

Page 71



Without future intervention, particularly in terms of public transport and active modes,
congestion and delays will increase, and journey time reliability will deteriorate, presenting
further barriers to economic growth and potentially damaging the existing economy.

Increasing congestion means that the City Region faces significant air quality issues, with 28
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAS) across the SCR, including 6 in Barnsley, 7 in
Doncaster and 8 in Rotherham and high levels of carbon emissions around the centre of
Sheffield, which has a city-wide action plan, including the motorways and A Roads (see
Figure 2.12).

’ Key
? C/ Local Authonty Boundary
¥ — OO W DY

t~ ) A Rocad

o B> Aamas

b Urban Area

Figure 2.12 — AQMAs in the SCR

Across Sheffield alone, there are 51 locations where the European Union’s annual average
limit value for NO- has been exceeded in one or more of the three year periods (2010-2012).
Analysis indicates that road transport is the single most significant contributor to Sheffield’s
NO: emissions at these locations.

Sheffield City Council (SCC) and Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) are
have undertaken a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) Feasibility Study, to ensure compliance with legal
thresholds. To address the particular challenges in Sheffield, which needs to bring NO>
emissions within legal limits as quickly as possible, a range of options have been considered
with the preferred solution to introduce a ‘Category C’ CAZ covering the Inner Ring Road
and the City Centre. The proposed zone is not final and may be subject to minor changes
through feedback from the current consultation process

The current proposal means that buses, taxis, vans and lorries that do not meet necessary
emissions standards will have to pay to drive in and around the zone. The zone will
discourage the use of high polluting vehicles from the City Centre and encourage upgrades
to cleaner, low or no emission vehicles. The impact of the zone will be much broader than
the City Centre and it should reduce pollution across adjacent neighbourhoods and
communities.

Page 72



Congestion and air quality are clearly linked, and the SCR’s public transport system and
infrastructure for walking and cycling need to offer a real and affordable alternative to the
private car if mode shift is to be achieved. This is particularly true for shorter distance trips
that could be undertaken by sustainable modes and for short distance connections to longer
trips. The public transport system itself also needs to deliver reductions in emissions over
time, either through new investment or by interventions to reduce emissions from existing
public transport vehicles and rolling stock.

As economic opportunities increase within the SCR, it is likely that commuting distances
themselves may well also increase, both within the City Region and to neighbouring city
regions. This means that the rail network will play an increasingly important role in the future

transport system. Figure 2.13 shows the existing rail network in the SCR and the
surrounding area.

ToLeeds &
North East

To York
ToQutwood b
To Castleford North East
&Leeds &Scotland

X ~
Wakefield Westgate 000 LW \akefield Kirkgate .0

4
o
N 4
Fitzwilliam

To Scarborough
&Bridlington

Huddersfield
Lockwood
Berry Brow

Althorpe

Grimsby

Kirk

.y

Honley

Harfield & Crowle Scunthorpe  Cleethorpes
Brockholes

Stocksmoor

To Cleethorpes. ’

4

Galnsborough Central

Sheffield Saxiiby

Worksop

Shireoaks Retford  Galnsborough Lincoln
Dore & Totiey () Lea Road

To Hope Valley Dronfield
Manchester &

Manchester Airport

Key

Affreton [N Regular local & regional services

Chesterfield To Peterborough

&London

Langley Mit
angley M MEMN infrequent local & regional services

Nottingham

To East Midlands I Regular long distance services

Birmingham & London
To Norwich O south Yorkshire stations

. Other stations

Figure 2.13 — Existing SCR Rail Network

The opportunity for the rail network to support the planned growth of the SCR is illustrated in
Figure 2.14, showing the existing network against the larger housing and employment
growth sites and the catchment areas of each of the existing rail stations.

Page 73



| W Housing Priority Site

| I Employment Priority Site
\ 3000m

1000m

500m

Figure 2.14 — SCR Rail Network and Planned Growth Sites

The quality of the rail stations across
the SCR varies considerably. Whilst
investment has been made in the rail
stations in the main centres and at the
principal park and ride stations, many of
the SCR’s rail stations are either
inaccessible for some residents, or are
not perceived as safe, particularly
during hours of darkness, or both.

The SCR is seeking to define a
consistent set of standards at each of
the City Region’s rail stations that
provides customers with safe and
secure facilities that are accessible,
gives readily available service
information, and offers a pleasant waiting environment with appropriate amenities. This
approach is aimed at acknowledging the role of many stations as a community facility, and
not just a node on the transport network, and also move towards the situation where nobody
is excluded from using the SCR’s rail stations.

As the recently completed refurbishment of Rotherham Central station has demonstrated,
patronage growth at improved stations typically outstrips that where on investment has taken
place, supporting the case for more widespread improvements at local stations across the
SCR.

Page 74



The role that the rail network can play in joining up areas of transport poverty with areas of
opportunity can be seen, but it is only an effective option for travel if the facilities are suitable
for all to use. Effective and safe connections to rail stations, principally by active travel
modes, will also be critical to support new economic opportunities, especially given the
relatively low commuting distances across the SCR and the areas of transport poverty that
have been identified.

Drawing all of this together, the key aims of this TCF Tranche 2 bid are:

. To better connect the areas of transport poverty with areas of opportunity in a safe
and sustainable way

° To affect a mode shift away from the private car on those corridors where new
opportunities are likely to see an increase in demand or where growth could be stifled

. To create a cultural shift towards making cycling and walking the natural choice for
shorter journeys, and

° To achieve the above in ways that address current health issues and improve air

quality across the SCR,

all focused on the three priority areas identified in the TCF Prospectus and described below.
These aims are designed to underpin the overall TCF objectives of supporting the local
economy and boosting productivity whilst reducing emissions and improving air quality. The
SCR’s new housing locations will be boosted by a range of transport choices and the
inclusion of a significant active travel element will have social inclusion and health benefits.

River Don Corridor

This corridor connects two of the City Region’s key growth areas running from Sheffield City
Centre to the Unity site to the north east of Doncaster.

Sheffield City Centre is a regional hub and home to 20,000 jobs in the digital industry, whilst
Unity is set to deliver 3,100 houses and 8,000 jobs. In between lies Doncaster Sheffield
Airport (DSA) and the proposals that include a vision for a 1,600 acre employment site at
Aero Centre Yorkshire, which has the potential to add £3.2 billion in GVA per annum,
connecting with deprived areas on the outskirts of Rotherham, Sheffield and Doncaster. In
addition, the Aero Centre site has the capacity for a further 8,500 new homes, confirming the
importance of improving intra-regional connectivity.

Adjacent to the Aero Centre site is iPort, a £400 million inland port project and one of UK’s
largest logistics developments, which is delivering more than 570,000 sq m logistics
warehousing linked with a high specification rail freight intermodal container facility

The A6109 and A6178 routes connect Sheffield and Rotherham via Junction 34 of the M1,
one of the main points of congestion on both the strategic and local road networks. The
A630 corridor connects Rotherham and Doncaster and on to the Unity site via the A18.

There is a tram-train trial underway connecting Sheffield, Rotherham and further to the
Parkgate retail park, and there are existing local rail and bus connections along this corridor,
with bus connections onwards to the north east of Doncaster.

Much of this corridor is located within AQMAs, including the city-wide AQMA in Sheffield,
and the corridor is affected by congestion issues around Sheffield city centre, Meadowhall,
Parkgate, Warmsworth and Armthorpe. The A6178 corridor between Sheffield and
Rotherham showed year-on-year increases in delays of between 7% and 16.5% (depending

Page 75



on the section measured) in 2018. Delays on the section of the A6109 within Rotherham
increased by 26% between 2017 and 2018. In Doncaster, delays on the A6182 (linking the
town centre to the M18 at Junction 13) showed an increase of 5% and the A630 in
Rotherham showed an increase in delays of 6.3% over the same period.

These delays particularly impact bus services on the approaches to the centres of Sheffield
and Doncaster, as well as in the Meadowhall area.

Figures 2.15 and 2.16 show information provided by Prospective on behalf of one of the two
major bus operators in the SCR to illustrate these delays — the former showing morning peak
hour passenger weighted delays and the latter congestion-related delays in the evening
peak period.

Passenger
weighted delay
(Morning Peak)

delay due % congestion

0.0-52
52-178
178-371
37.1-687
68.7-126.4
1264 -2076
2076 -475.0

Figure 2.15 — Existing Bus Passenger Delays in Sheffield, Rotherham and Doncaster

Vehicle Delay
due to network
congestion
(Evening Peak)

delay due o congestion
0.000 -
0.007 -
0.022 -
0.043 -
0.081 -
0.145-
0.300 -

Figure 2.16 — Existing Bus Vehicle Delays in Sheffield, Rotherham and Doncaster

Page 76



Figure 2.17 shows the hotpots identified in Sheffield City Centre in more detail.

‘;‘
%

{ P
'!_a‘

/2
) |

R
V&
X

. Legend £ JX . /
| e Studied Network !
Hot Spot Arsas Containk OS data © Crown Copyrght and
.. g \ ’ databafe right 2018

Figure 2.17 — Existing Bus Hotspots in Sheffield

Dearne Valley Corridor

The Dearne Valley Economic Corridor permeates through the Barnsley, Doncaster and
Rotherham borough boundaries, providing significant employment and housing growth
opportunities.

The area has undergone recent major transformation, providing jobs, particularly in logistics
and distribution through key employers such as XPO Logistics (ASOS) and the Aldi Regional
Distribution Centre. The Barnsley Dearne Valley area alone is earmarked for further local
investment, which will lead to the unlocking of 2,000 new jobs together with 6,000 new
homes by 2024. However, the corridor still suffers from poor connectivity driven by a
dispersed settlement pattern.

Page 77



The A635 provides the main east-west connection on the northern part of this corridor
between the M1 motorway and the A1(M), although this route is of variable standard and
reliability. The A635 connects Barnsley and Doncaster via Darfield, Goldthorpe and
Thurnscoe, and is one of the main bus corridors. Whilst the A635 corridor has some free-
flowing rural sections, between the dispersed settlements there are a number of locations
where buses are delayed, including within the settlements themselves. Delays on the section
of the A635 within Barnsley increased by 25% between 2017 and 2018.

The A633 also provides an east-west link between Barnsley and Doncaster to the south of
the corridor, as well as a north-south link towards Rotherham through the deprived
communities of Wombwell, Wath upon Dearne, Mexborough, Denaby and Conisbrough. The
A633 corridor is more built-up than the A635 route, and buses experience significant delays
at a number of locations. This poor connectivity limits the ability of existing and future
residents to access a number of the planned employment sites. Delays on the section of the
A633 within Barnsley increased by 7.1% between 2017 and 2018.

Both routes connect to the A6195 Dearne Valley Parkway, which links to the major
employment site at M1 Junction 36, and merge to continue along the A6133 into Barnsley
town centre. Delays on the section of the A6195 within Barnsley increased by 6.2% between
2017 and 2018. The A61 corridor connects Barnsley north towards the neighbouring
boroughs in the Leeds City Region.

To illustrate some of the issue facing public transport services in this corridor, Figures 2.18
and 2.19 illustrate recent trends in the reliability and punctuality of services within the
existing Barnsley Bus Partnership. For example, Service 1, which uses the A61 corridor, has
experienced a decrease in punctuality from 89% in January 2017 to 81% in April 2019, whilst
Services 218 and 219, both of which use the A635 corridor, have experienced reductions in
punctuality from 85% and 84% respectively to 80% in both cases over the same time period.

Whilst the Dearne Valley corridor has good north-south rail connectivity (Sheffield —
Rotherham — Barnsley Dearne Valley — onwards towards the neighbouring boroughs
contained within the Leeds City Region), bus services provide the main form of public
transport in the absence of a direct heavy rail link east-west between Barnsley, the Barnsley
Dearne Valley and Doncaster. The increasing delays noted above on those routes used by
the main bus services will increase further without interventions given the growth plans,
further undermining the attractiveness of public transport and highlighting the need to
improve east-west connections.

100.0%

09 5% —— -
— o _\w
_..-n-"'"".'— -"""*--...__ - R

89.0% — s —— \

98.5% \

98.0%

97.5% -
Latest Data — 01617 — 301718 e 20018,/19

Q?D%I T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Apr  May  lun Iul Aug  Sep Oct  MNov Dec  lan Feb  Mar

Figure 2.18 — Reliability of Barnsley Bus Partnership Services

Page 78



95%
90% -
SN

g53; a— ——__.../ ‘T“\.ﬁ

: — \\ ;\ .
0% - w \\
75% -

Latest Data —2017/18 —+—2018/19 2019/20
?DE’E‘ T T T T T T T T T T T T

Apr  May  Jun Jul Aug  Sep Oct  Mow Dec  lan Feb  Mar

Figure 2.19 — Punctuality of Barnsley Bus Partnership Services

Advanced Manufacturing and Innovation District (AMID) Corridor

This corridor connects Sheffield and Rotherham and is an employment growth area which is
now home to high profile employers such as Boeing, McLaren, Rolls Royce, Aloca, Tata,
Outokumpu and Forgemasters. AMID is home to the University of Sheffield’s world-leading
Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC), its sister centre, the Nuclear AMRC and
its award-winning apprentice training centre. Sheffield Hallam University’s Advanced
Wellbeing Research Centre (AWRC), also within AMID, is set to become the most advanced
research and development centre for physical activity in the world. The corridor also includes
the Olympic Legacy Park (OLP) — delivering a tangible legacy from the London 2012
Olympic Games through a combination of world class sports facilities, education, new skills,
research and innovation, environmental improvements and opportunities for the local
community.

Growth in the AMID is estimated to provide 6,330 jobs and be worth £351 million in GVA
uplift. The AMID is located adjacent to several areas of deprivation on the outskirts of
Rotherham and Sheffield, but those communities are poorly connected to the employment,
training and apprenticeship opportunities on their doorstep. Many of the key facilities within
the AMID are also heavily car-dependent at present, which not only presents environmental
and congestion problems, but, left unchecked, could present a further barrier to local people
taking advantage of the huge opportunities in the future in an area that is already serving as
a national example of industrial transformation.

The area is also estimated to deliver 3,900 new houses at Waverley, which is Yorkshire’s
largest-ever mixed-use brownfield redevelopment. However, much of the AMID is within the
CAZ covering Rotherham and Sheffield and there is regular congestion on the network
around the M1 and along the A630 Sheffield Parkway route, with delays on the section of the
A630 within Sheffield showing an increase of 22% between 2017 and 2018. This is partly a
result of the lack of effective public transport connections to the new areas of employment
within the AMID.

Congestion is also notable around the Inner Ring Road in Sheffield, and on the radial routes
to the west and south of the City, where bus services are often delayed on these corridors at
peak times, as shown in Figures 2.15, 2.16 and 2.17 previously.

Page 79



EXPLORING OPTIONS AND STRATEGIC ALTERNATIVES

Based on these more specific opportunities and challenges, the three principal components
of this TCF Tranche 2 bid are as follows:

° Public Transport — infrastructure improvements on corridors identified in the
SCRIPT study and the TCF Prospectus aimed at improving the performance of the
public transport network, principally journey time, punctuality and reliability, within
and between the main urban centres and the identified growth locations.

° Active Travel — drawing on the draft Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) and the appointment of an Active Travel Commissioner to develop further a
coherent network of active travel routes across the SCR, but focusing initially
between the areas of transport poverty and the areas of opportunity, the main urban
centres and those corridors with the greatest opportunity for mode shift, taking
advantage of the relatively low commuting distances across the SCR at present.

° Rail — enhancing accessibility to/from and at rail stations within the SCR and
interventions that support connectivity to HS2/NPR touchpoints so that the rail
network can become a viable alternative to the private car for those taking advantage
of the significant economic growth opportunities.

Options for the bid have been identified and prioritised by considering the challenges and
opportunities for each of the three priority corridors and by utilising the evidence and findings
of the SCRIPT study and the draft LCWIP.

Both the SCRIPT and the LCWIP work have used a robust evidence led, multi-criteria
analysis approach, as well as collaborative workshops with Local Authority Partners,
transport providers and interested parties.

In the SCRIPT work, an initial list of 255 options was generated from local transport studies
and infrastructure plans, feedback from stakeholder sessions and bespoke options to
address specific issues or connectivity gaps. 217 localised options were then grouped into
38 policy or strategy-led interventions that:

. Contribute to managing or reducing demand for travel
o Improve overall efficiency and operation of public transport services
. Enhance sustainable travel connectivity across the SCR and beyond.

These illustrative interventions have formed the starting point for the development of the
public transport infrastructure options within this TCF bid. However, mindful of the objectives
of the TCF and the timescales, any interventions that involve major rail investment, or new
rail facilities, were not taken forward at this stage given the relatively long lead-in times.

The LCWIP work developed an indicative programme of cycling and walking improvements
across the SCR by identifying key cycle desire lines and two corridor level maps per local
authority area, highlighting the preferred route and feeder areas for further development.
This work was used to develop the initial options for the active travel elements of this bid
where they overlap with the three priority corridors and/or provide connections to the rail
network.

South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE) has an audit of existing facilities at

all of South Yorkshire’s rail stations and this audit has been used to prepare the initial
options for the rail elements of this bid, based on a ‘gap’ analysis of the facilities that would

Page 80



be needed at each station to increase the perception of safety and encourage greater usage
of the local rail network.

Once these initial lists of options had been developed, an initial two stage sifting exercise
was undertaken to provide greater focus for this TCF bid:

° A high level sift, primarily around geographical fit and deliverability within the TCF
timeframe

° A more detailed sift, using the Department for Transport’'s Early Assessment Sifting
Tool (EAST).

This approach was felt to provide transparency within the assessment of options.

The outcome of the second stage of the sifting exercise was then reviewed to ensure that
the individual elements of the proposed programme provided a coherent package and linked
back to the objectives of the TCF itself and the particular aims of this bid described
previously.

Further development work was then undertaken on each of the components of the package,
allowing a more refined assessment of the benefits of each element (described later in this
section and also in the Economic Case), but also the identification of key delivery issues
such as land requirements and stakeholder acceptability.

The latter process involved working with bus operators to develop the public transport
elements of the bid, providing them with visibility of the aims of individual schemes and the
reasoning behind the proposal from an early stage. Input from the two principal operators
has further refined the schemes included within this TCF bid.

The Active Travel Commissioner has set out their aspirations for all of our active travel
infrastructure to meet or exceed minimum standards and be fully accessible. The Active
Travel Project Director has worked with the Local Authorities to review how each of the
elements of this bid meet these aspirations to ensure that the highest quality facilities will
result from any TCF and complementary investment. This has prioritised those elements that
clearly meet the suggested standards and provide significant elements of a coherent active
travel network for the SCR.

The further development work also allowed the components of the bid to be divided between
the three funding scenarios described in the Financial Case — in some instances, schemes
with a higher level of perceived risk of deliverability were identified and allocated to the ‘High’
funding scenario, whereas on some corridors, the proposed improvements have been scaled
across the different funding scenarios to accommodate the response to this TCF bid. This
approach ensures that, whatever the outcome of the bid, some improvements on a particular
corridor can be delivered, recognising the clear need for intervention to support future plans.

All of the further option development has taken place alongside the development of a series
of implementation plans that support the SCR Transport Strategy. Each of these
implementation plans sets out a 10-15 year investment programme across rail, active travel,
public transport and major roads, and the components of this TCF bid form an essential
element of the first four year period of investment across each of these plans.

Page 81



INTERDEPENDENCIES

There are independencies between the package of schemes identified within this bid and
those included within the £10 million Tranche 1 bid submitted in January 2019. The Tranche
1 schemes are summarised below:

. Don Active Travel Package — improving cycle routes and pedestrian areas along key
routes including the area between Ten Pound Walk and Doncaster rail station,
between Thorne and Moorends and between Conisbrough, iPort, Rossington and
Doncaster town centre

. Transforming Active Travel to Rotherham Town Centre — a direct cycle route linking
Greasbrough, Kimberworth and Wingfield to Rotherham town centre, as well as
providing an early phase of a sustainable transport link to the planned Bassingthorpe
Farm housing development, which comprises around 2,400 houses

o Sheffield Active Travel Package — a City Centre West cycle route extending existing
facilities on Charter Row through to Hanover Way, new crossings on the Portobello
cycle route at Mappin Street and Holly Street and the purchase of 200 e-bikes and
accessories which will be made available to employers for their staff to use

o Barnsley Active Travel Link — an off-road direct cycle route along the A635, linking
Ardsley and Darfield to employment opportunities in the Dearne Valley

° Emissions Reduction Package — retrofitting buses with reduction systems to make
them cleaner and greener

. Public Transport Information Package — a city region-wide scheme to install real time
information at 45 bus stops to provide passengers with up to date public transport
information

Confirmation was received in March 2019 that only the first three of these packages had
been selected for funding under Tranche 1, with a total value of around £4.2 million. These
interventions are therefore considered as part of the baseline transport network.

There is also a range of other transport schemes that link to the proposals within this
business case, including:

° STEP Local Transport Provision — this £19 million investment delivers a series of
transport interventions developed to provide enabling infrastructure to support SCR’s
growth ambitions and enhance the quality of life of residents, employees and
employers, whilst also adding to the attraction for potential movement and investment
into the area; the primary focus of STEP is active travel, delivered by new or
improved dedicated walking and cycling routes and enhanced public transport
provision

. Supertram Rail Replacement Phase Il — this project is to replace life expired sections
of rail within street running sections of the Supertram network; the scheme covers 9.0
route km and prevented full network closure on safety grounds in 2018/19, allowing
Supertram to continue to contribute to the SCR’s economic growth and regeneration.

. M1 Junction 37 Phases 1 and 2 Claycliffe — the project aims to provide capacity to
unlock additional development near Capital Park, improving access to/from the M1
from Barnsley, relieving congestion in the immediate area and on the southbound
exit from the M1 and alleviating air pollution; Phase 2 of the project will deliver a
significant mixed-use development on 122 hectares of land, comprising 43 hectares
of employment land and 1,700 new homes

° M1 Junction 36 Economic Growth Corridor — this £7.34 million road improvement
scheme in Goldthorpe, will facilitate 73 hectares of new employment land; highway
Improvement works will take place on three existing roundabouts, at

Page 82



Cathill, Broomhill and Wath Road, while a new roundabout will also be created off the
A635 to provide access into the employment site

° DN7 Unity Hatfield Link Road — this project delivers a 2.9km road from M18 Junction
5 to unlock the Unity mixed use development, comprising 3,100 houses, commercial
floor space and local centre, retail and educational facilities; the road will also provide
better connectivity for existing settlements.

The SCR is currently developing OBCs for two Large Local Major Transport Schemes that
have some interaction with the schemes within this bid as follows:

° The Sheffield City Region Innovation Corridor project is seeking to reduce pressure
on Junctions 33 and 34 of the M1 by exploring options to provide alternatives to the
M1 for local traffic, and potentially provide additional routes between Sheffield and
Rotherham without the need for drivers to pass through existing motorway junctions;
the scheme is aimed at reducing congestion and improving connectivity between
Sheffield and Rotherham to maximise the potential for growth of the AMID

° The SCR Mass Transit project is developing the business case for the renewal of
track and vehicle infrastructure on the Supertram network so as to ensure the
continuation and expansion of a high quality mass transit system across the SCR; a
consultation on the scope of the project in late 2018 identified that respondents are
overwhelmingly in support of renewing and modernising the Supertram network, with
88% in favour of this option and also found that if the tram was no longer available
the majority of respondents would use the bus or their car to travel, indicating that a
potential shift of existing public transport users to the private car.

Working with bus operators and SYPTE, SCC was awarded £1.947 million from the
Government’s Clean Bus Technology Fund (CBTF) in Spring 2018. 117 non-Euro 6 diesel
buses operating in Sheffield (93 First buses and 24 Stagecoach buses) are being retrofitted
with technology which will improve their engine performance and reduce emissions to a
compliant Euro VI standard. The operators are delivering the retrofits to their buses, with
SCC providing the grants to pay for them from the CBTF.

Reference has been made to the CAZ proposals promoted by SCC and RMBC, and this bid
is aimed firmly at supporting the mode shift required to deliver the required reductions in
emissions in the shortest possible time. Additional funding is being sought by SCC and
RMBC to implement the CAZ and this would be complementary to this TCF bid, providing
the opportunity to go further in some areas in delivering infrastructure to support mode shift.
The CAZ proposals include changes to the current controlled parking zones in Sheffield
which are likely to provide the most cost effective reduction in emissions within the areas at
most risk of having non-compliant air quality, but will also help support the mode shift
envisaged by the interventions in this TCF bid.

SCC is working towards Sheffield becoming a zero-carbon city in short order to make their
full contribution to the Paris Climate Change agreements and a dedicated piece of analysis
has been produced by the Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research that establishes a
carbon ‘budget’ for Sheffield. The report recommends that, for Sheffield to make its fair
contribution to global climate goals, the City must not exceed a ‘budget’ of 16 million tonnes
of carbon emissions over the next 80 years. At current rates of energy consumption,
Sheffield would use this entire budget in less than six years, and so to meet this ‘budget’
requires annual reductions in CO, emissions of 14% per annum — broadly equivalent to
becoming nominally ‘carbon neutral’ by 2038. The TCF schemes within Sheffield (and
Rotherham) will help contribute to this reduction, in line with the overall objectives of TCF.

Page 83



The SCR is currently undertaking a Bus Review to understand the complex challenges
behind declining bus patronage — outside London, annual bus journeys in cities have fallen
per person by 40% over the last 25 years and this patronage decline is replicated in the
SCR.

In February 2019, the Mayor announced Clive Betts MP as the independent chair of a
commission, who in turn appointed a panel of commissioners to support him, that will review
bus services in South Yorkshire and put forward recommendations for improvements —
including how to best make use of the new powers in the Bus Services Act 2017.

The review will provide the Mayor with an independent assessment on:

° The current condition of the commercial bus and community transport sector in South
Yorkshire, including the reasons for the decline in both registered bus services and
bus passenger numbers

. The social, environmental and economic impacts of this decline in bus services and
passenger numbers
° The steps which should be taken to ensure commercial bus and community transport

services meet the needs of South Yorkshire residents.

The latest part of the review was a call for evidence that ran until September 2019, based
around the following key lines of enquiry:

. Trends in bus use and factors contributing to these trends

° How to increase bus patronage — generally as well as in relation to different
demographic groups including young people, the elderly, minority ethnic groups; key
workers; those on low incomes, those with mobility issues

. How to improve accessibility — including provision for potentially isolated residents
and communities
How to improve ‘quality’ of services with an emphasis on the bus user experience

. The relationship between the bus system and other modes of transport and travel
such as the tram network and active travel

° The implementation of bus priority measures by local leaders in South Yorkshire

° The environmental impact that buses can have on congestion, pollution and air
quality

. The commercial operation of the bus sector including the responsibilities of bus
operators, strategic planning and regulatory matters

. Adequacy of funding and best approaches to securing future investment in the sector
and ensuring sustainability

. What can be learnt from other towns, cities and/or city regions about any of the

review’s key lines of enquiry.

The outcome of the Bus Review will help to maximise the value gained from any future
public transport investment across the City Region, by addressing the issues that are
currently contributing to patronage decline and identify areas for improvement to attract non-
bus users. The aim of this TCF bid, in connecting areas of transport poverty to areas of
opportunity by public transport and active modes is entirely consistent with the aims of the
Bus Review.

SCR has recently commissioned a review of future mobility services across the City Region
to help develop the implementation plans that will support the SCR Transport Strategy,
reflecting that technology is constantly advancing and driving an unprecedented pace of
change that will impact our cities, environment and way of life.

Page 84



This review has considered these changes by analysing global transport trends and
emerging technologies (grouped into key themes), interpreting the principles set out in the
DfT’s Future Mobility: Urban Strategy (2019) and benchmarking where the SCR is now in
relation to these principles, and providing a set of recommendations and actions which the
SCR should seek to implement to help propel the City Region to the forefront of future

mobility.

A spatial portrait of existing SCR Future Mobility assets and capabilities has been developed
in collaboration with stakeholders within the region, to understand where the City Region is
currently with regards to future mobility technologies and capabilities. From this review, it is
apparent that there is already lots going on in SCR, both in terms of physical assets and
intellectual effort, which can be built upon, as shown in Figure 2.20.

N

A

Barnsley e-bike trials
Encouraging uptake of
micromobility through
free loans of e-bikes

ITM Hydrogen Refuelling Station (AMID)
The furthest north (until Aberdeen)

hydrogen refuelling station. Renewably
sourced hydrogen

ITM Power

UK’s leading hydrogen electrolyser
manufacturer/opérator based in Sheffield.

Cycle Penistone e-bike trials

Encouraging uptake of micromobility
through free loans of e-bikes

Hydrogen rombusnon‘_engine and storag

‘ CPH2 r
manufacturer

Building the world's largest electrolyser factory
next to Meadowhall

Barnsley

Doncaster e-bike trials
Electric bin lorries trial : AWRC, Sports Science, OLP Encouraging uptake of
New electric bin lorries powered by collected World-renowned centre for research micromobility through free
i 7. i i and innovation into physical activit 3 | loansofe-bikes |
waste are being trialled in Sheffield Rhy. Y Doncaster
Sheffield Robotics | Hitachi Rail  AZUma Trains Maintenance 8 National College for High Speed Rail
Interdisciplinary In2Change e-bike trials Depot . =<1 Providing specialist skills in high speed rail
ti 5
gRpoticsResearch chotlragtqg JERESKE CF Magtec Manufacturers of electric vehicle components -
Centre micromobility through gt in Sheffield :
free loans of e-bikes. o I Unipart Rail Developing the Digital Rallwayl
Integrated TravelMasters Rotherham e-bike trials
Smart card travel through the Encouraging uptake of AMRC
eCommerce platform. micromobility through free loan:
of e-bikes. A network of world-leading research
Sheffield e-bike trials Y T and ion centres working with
- . advanced manufacturing companies
Encouraging uptake of Rotherham around the globe.
micromobility through free
South Yorkshire loans of e-bikes. 4 e I_ The FloowLeadiag automobile data and telematics I
— .
Hydrogen Network Arup . ] SQIIRANY
An emerging coalition of |_| e
bor lobal lanni & 7 7 3 SYPTE Centre of knowledge for tram-train technology
the willing to develop :n°i:e;?l:“‘:;:£|‘:::c'"g Sheffield Russel's Bicycle Shed e-bike trials
hydrogen projects in the Encouraging uptake of micromobility 3Squared
Icglon: > o through free loans of e-bikes Innovative and technically
1 Tram Train Network imaginative software
Clean bus tech LabA4Living 1 : solutions for transportation
Retrofit of existing bus fleet with Sheffield Hallam Trans-disciplinary research group, based on a el ar.\d °_"‘V tragytraln system & construction
exhaust gas scrubbing systems University collaborative community of researchers in operating in ”"E"UK offering inter-
to reduce air pollution. design, healthcare and creative practices L Conians OS data © Crown Copyrat and

Figure 2.20 — Existing Future Mobility Assets and Capabilities in the SCR

The review identifies that the opening up of data has significant potential for the
development of new services and solutions and that the SCR has the opportunity to explore
how data can be made more open. Working with the Open Data Institute and local digital
companies should be a key step in exploring the potential, learning from others and helping
to ensure the opportunities are developed to comply with GDPR. The unlocking of data can
also support better city region-wide planning, not just from a mobility perspective, but also to
look at the whole system of planning to support better and more predictable outcomes.

SCR’s participation in TfN’s Integrated and Smart Ticketing (IST) programme is a first step in
understanding and harnessing the power of data to achieve a range of policy objectives.
Phase 2 of the IST programme, currently being implemented, will deliver improved customer
information, collaboration and innovation meaning that the same kind of information currently
enjoyed by most rail passengers will be made available to bus and light rail passengers
across the North.

There is an important role for the SCR to mitigate against any risks of new mobility models. It
must take this responsibility pro-actively and boldly, specifying up front what the Combined

Page 85



Authority and the Local Authorities want from service providers and ensuring these
parameters are operated within. This is reflected in the Government’s Urban Mobility
Strategy principles, for example the emphasis on safety and integration.

The review concludes with a series of five ‘key moves’ and a number of more detailed
recommendations over the short, medium and long term. A number of the short and medium
term recommendations, such as:

o Ensure all new cycle routes are designed so that they are inclusive for all

o Explore provision of more feeder services to public transport hubs to create a more
integrated system

° Improve integration of active travel modes with public transport, for example by

creating cycle routes and providing safe and secure cycle parking which are well
integrated with tram and bus stops

° Progress further work on zero emission buses

° Identify opportunities for trialling the TfN IST programme in the SCR and simplify the
existing ticketing and payment offer

. Encourage greater uptake of e-bikes.

These recommendations are fully aligned with this TCF bid and the schemes described
previously as being delivered in TCF Tranche 1.

As noted previously, the known locations of growth and the known locations of deprivation
are unlikely to change considerably over the lifetime of the TCF programme and so, whilst
mindful that there will be some changes in future trends, this is unlikely to have a significant
impact in the SCR in the next four years. However, future investment programmes across all
transport modes will take account of uncertainty and will reflect the review’s assertion that
the SCR takes a pro-active role in driving the future mobility offer.

EXPLORING IMPACTS OF INTERVENTIONS

The proposed package of interventions within the SCR’s TCF programme by priority area
are described below.

River Don Corridor

The significant schemes promoted in this corridor include:

o Improving access between Mexborough town centre and the rail station and
Doncaster college and the rail station
. Rail station (and station access) improvements across the Doncaster district

(including Adwick, Bentley, Kirk Sandall, Conisborough, Hatfield and Stainforth),
including access to/from the stations by active travel modes and facilities such as
improved signing and information, accessible bench seating, CCTV and lighting

enhancements

. Addressing locations of existing public transport delays between Doncaster urban
centre and the iPort site and DSA

° Connecting outlying settlements to the growing economic opportunity by providing a

new connection into the iPort site from Rossington for buses and active travel modes
and from Thorne and Moorends to Unity by active travel modes

Page 86



° Improving accessibility and connectivity by providing better walking and cycling
routes in a number of local communities including Armthorpe, Balby, Wheatley, Long
Sandall and Edlington

° Interventions at key junctions on the A18 corridor between Doncaster urban centre
and the Unity growth area

. Addressing locations of existing public transport delays within the Doncaster urban
centre by providing bus priority measures at key junctions and improving on-street
facilities

. Improving accessibility and connectivity by providing better walking and cycling

routes through Doncaster town centre, including St Mary’s Gyratory, North Bridge
Road, Cleveland Street and Bennetthorpe

° Connecting Maltby to the main urban centre of Rotherham and addressing a location
of existing public transport delays through bus lanes and junction improvements,
along with localised enhanced active travel routes within the corridor.

In particular, the proposed interventions around Mexborough will provide active travel
connectivity from the employment hub at Manvers to Mexborough town centre and then onto
the rail station — Mexborough is among the most deprived communities in Doncaster. The
interventions will also provide a high quality active travel connection linking the deprived
community of Balby with employment opportunities within the town centre.

Improvements at M18 Junction 3 will resolve one of the most significant locations of delay
and unreliability for bus services in Doncaster, enhancing the attractiveness of the public
transport connections between the strategic growth hubs of the urban centre, iPort and DSA.
This will be complemented by new bridge for public transport and active modes that allows
the deprived community of Rossington more direct accessibility to employment and
education opportunities.

Improvements to the public transport and active travel networks within the core of
Doncaster’s urban centre will allow complete connectivity from the rail station gateway to
employment hubs within the town, whilst the North Bridge Road to Bennetthorpe
interventions will see a cross-town connection of a high standard active travel corridor, that
completes the missing link in the current network, enabling a continuous route to be provided
from east to west of the urban centre.

Dearne Valley Corridor
The significant schemes promoted in this corridor include:

o Addressing a location of existing public transport delays on the A61 Wakefield Road,
Barnsley by a combination of bus lanes and junction improvements, linked to
complementary corridor proposals in the Leeds City Region, along with active travel
improvements along the corridor

. Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) between Barnsley and Doncaster — connecting the only
remaining two main urban centres in the SCR which do not have a high quality public
transport link, via the housing and employment growth area in the Dearne Valley

. New cycling route linking Barnsley town centre to the housing growth area in Darfield
and on to the housing and employment growth area in Goldthorpe and the wider
Dearne Valley

. Rail station (and station access) improvements across the Barnsley and Rotherham
districts, including the access to/from the stations and facilities such as improved
signing and information, accessible bench seating, CCTV and lighting enhancements

Page 87



° Contributing to the new fully accessible bridge (including cycle use) linking Barnsley
rail station and the town centre

. Connecting the housing growth areas in Staincross and Royston to the urban centre
of Barnsley by providing improvements for active travel modes

° Improving walking routes into Barnsley town centre from the Hospital, including along
Huddersfield Road

. Providing better active travel routes to enable more walking and cycling into local
town centres within the Dearne Valley

° Addressing locations of existing public transport delays on the A630 corridor

Connecting the housing and employment growth area in the Dearne Valley to the
local centre in Wath for active travel modes

° Addressing locations of existing public transport delays around the A633 corridor —
the main intervention being the provision of a new second access to Parkgate Retail
Park, as well as a new 300 space park and ride site for the tram-train terminus.

The A61 is an important cross-boundary corridor and the proposed bus priority measures
are intended to deliver journey time savings that will improve the financial viability of the bus
market as a whole and in particular for services along the corridor, allowing the opportunity
to examine to unlock additional investment from the principal bus operator.

A number of the active travel interventions are interlinked so as to result in a continuous
active travel route stretching from Royston to Goldthorpe via the town centre. The particular
section of this continuous route from Stairfoot to Goldthorpe also runs adjacent the existing
settlements of Ardsley and Darfield and will be within close proximity to some of the housing
growth in the Local Plan. This active travel route will run past sites which are allocated for
630 new dwellings and at the end of the route lies another proposed housing site which has
been allocated for 194 dwellings.

There is a large employment site proposed off the A635 which incorporates 73 hectares of
employment land, the largest employment allocation within the Local Plan — this site lies
adjacent to the planned BRT route between Barnsley and Doncaster.

Many of the station access improvements are also aimed at developing coherent active
travel networks. The proposed interventions will link Bolton upon Dearne station to the
existing Trans Pennine Trail, providing a continuous link to the Manvers Way Industrial
Estate. Elsecar station is the closest to the Hoyland Masterplan area, a substantial
employment and housing growth site totalling an additional 1,881 new dwellings and over
107 hectares of new employment use by 2033 — the aim is to link the station to the Trans
Pennine Trail (which crosses the masterplan area) to provide easier access to this growth
site, resulting in fewer journeys into Hoyland itself and encouraging more rail-based park and
ride journeys.

Goldthorpe is another area with significant planned housing growth — the Local Plan
envisages just under 1,000 additional dwellings to be built by 2033. The proposals include
another spur into the wider east-west active travel route connecting Royston to Goldthorpe,
allied to a similar proposal at Thurnscoe station, thereby linking Thurnscoe and Goldthorpe
to Barnsley town centre and nearby industrial estates.

The proposed scheme to improve access to Wombwell station will improve active travel links
between the station and Cortonwood and Manvers Way Industrial Park. The existing park
and ride facility is well used and often over capacity during the week, therefore improved
active travel links to the station could potentially reduce levels of parking demand. In the
longer term, this is important due to an additional 150 dwellings coming forward within the

Page 88



Local Plan with 18.2 hectares of safeguarded land coming forward beyond the Plan period
that will envelop the proposed active travel route.

A package of complementary measures is proposed in the Parkgate area of Rotherham to
address significant congestion in the area particularly along the A633 which is a key bus
route linking major employment and retail opportunities in Rotherham town centre, Parkgate,
Rawmarsh and the Dearne Valley. The congestion is mainly due to the large retail park at
Parkgate which generates large volumes of traffic, has only one entrance and exit from the
A633 and is in close proximity to the major A633/A6123 roundabout. This has a major effect
on bus journey times and reliability and has been raised as a major concern by bus
operators. It is proposed to transform this corridor by introducing a new link road into the
retail park which will form an alternative entrance and exiting from the A6123. This will
relieve traffic on the A633. A complementary park and ride site will also be introduced in the
retail park to serve the successful tram-train service between Parkgate, Rotherham and
Sheffield and to further reduce the number of vehicles travelling along the A633 through
Parkgate. These measures will also enable amendments to the major A633/A6123
roundabout to benefit public transport. The package of measures will result in much more
reliable bus services along the key A633 corridor and improved bus journey times during
peak periods. The measures will also encourage economic growth at Parkgate and provide
improved access to the tram-train and major urban centres of Rotherham and Sheffield.

AMID Corridor

The significant schemes promoted in this corridor include:

° Promoting active travel use for accessing employment opportunities at the AMID and
AMP from Rotherham town centre
. Providing better active travel routes to enable more walking and/or cycling through

Rotherham town centre, including links to Forge Island — this will complement the
current TCF Tranche 1 scheme

. A new tram-train stop at Magna, facilitating a new 150 space park and ride site — this
will help transform strategic connectivity to the Magna area and provide growth
opportunities in the Templeborough/Sheffield Road area

° A new high guality segregated cycle route along the A6178 Sheffield Road to help
support active travel links between Rotherham, Meadowhall and Sheffield
. Addressing locations where existing public transport delays limit access to

employment opportunities from south west, Kelham/Neepsend and the east end of
Sheffield to Sheffield City Centre, and across the City Centre onto the AMID and
Rotherham

. Promoting active travel for accessing employment opportunities in Sheffield City
Centre, AMID and Rotherham, to improve access to opportunities in particular from
areas of deprivation, and constrain car trips (and so reduce congestion and
emissions) in the City Centre and on some of the busier roads

. Improving public transport journey times and reliability within Sheffield City Centre

. A trial of low emission buses to reduce emissions within the CAZ, providing the
groundwork for future roll-out of low emission buses.

It is proposed to introduce a new tram-train stop at Magna on the Parkgate/Rotherham to
Sheffield line with a new park and ride site. The tram-train has been very successful and has
proved that there is a high demand for this service — this ambitious project will help to relieve
congestion and poor air quality within the Lower Don Valley and A6178 corridor by
encouraging drivers to park at the new tram train stop and travel on the tram-train service
into Sheffield. This will help to address major congestion between Rotherham and Sheffield
particularly at the Junction 34 of the M1 and also help to improve air quality. The project will

Page 89



also link with the proposed A6178 segregated cycle route and encourage cyclists traveling
longer distances to use the tram-train service.

The high quality segregated cycle route along the A6178 will provide a direct route for all
between Rotherham town centre and Tinsley/Meadowhall in Sheffield linking large
residential areas in Rotherham and Tinsley to major employment and retail in the Lower Don
Valley and the AMID. The largest traffic flows in South Yorkshire are between Rotherham
and Sheffield resulting in major congestion in the Lower Don Valley between these major
urban centres particularly at Junction 34 of the M1 which is affecting economic growth.
There is also poor air quality in the area due to the large volumes of traffic and a high
proportion of HGVs using the A6178. Despite this, there is demand to use this route from
cyclists and so a high quality, segregated cycle route will help to address these issues by
encouraging modal shift and by providing a comfortable environment for new and existing
cyclists.

The aim of the proposals within Sheffield is to enable existing trips into the City Centre to be
shifted towards more space-efficient modes, to enable trips to be ‘banked’ to allow for future
expansion of activity in the City Centre. The ‘Nether Edge Wedge’ in the south west has
been prioritised on the basis of the DfT Propensity to Cycle tool indicating that interventions
in this part of the City affords the greatest opportunity for abstraction from car trips, and has
been also identified in the draft LCWIP as a priority on this basis. The South West Sheffield
bus corridors have similarly been identified, working with bus operators, as areas where
buses suffer significant delays on corridors experiencing high levels of car use for trips into
the City Centre.

The interventions should also ensure that the City Centre provides a safe, attractive hub to
facilitate cross-city movements by public transport and active modes, including
improvements to cross-city public transport speed and reliability as well as improving the
ease of interchange between radial services, thereby creating an attractive environment to
support economic growth and housing delivery. The proposals in the City Centre have been
aligned to SCC’s emerging Future High Streets Fund bid and to wider development
opportunities, to deliver a City Centre that facilitates public transport and active modes use in
preference to private car use.

Improving public transport journey times and reliability, and the active travel experience,
within and between areas of housing growth and employment areas, to encourage residents
of new homes to be delivered in and around the City Centre to take up sustainable modes as
the default option has influenced the option development process.

This is the principal driver for the Sheffield Housing Zone North works (which are aligned to
the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) bid in this area), as well as works on the City to AMID
corridor which align with identified housing sites around Attercliffe. The scope of these
projects have been set out to improve social inclusion, in areas amongst 10% most deprived
in the country, by ensuring access to employment opportunities in the City Centre and AMID,
and also to existing public transport services (in particular Supertram) is improved for
existing communities, and by improving the safety and attractiveness of local communities
for active travel more generally.

Proposals have also been identified to support connectivity to the AMID, given that the area
is poorly served by public transport and active modes at present, as well as to support
interurban bus services between Sheffield, AMID, Rotherham, Doncaster and the iPort — in
particular improvements in the City Centre, at Attercliffe and at Meadowhall supporting the
X1 Sheffield — Rotherham service. The improvements in Attercliffe and Darnall are also
anticipated to provide an alternative for long distance services presently delayed by

Page 90



significant peak hour congestion on A630 Sheffield Parkway (notably the X6 connecting
Sheffield with the AMRC, the iPort and Doncaster), improving public transport reliability
between key regional hubs and employment centres.

Overall, the three packages of work within this TCF bid will a provide range of economic,
environmental and social benefits.

In economic terms, without investment, the existing levels of delay will worsen and
constrain the growth potential of the SCR’s development assets. The TCF packages will
improve public transport journey time and reliability on the key corridors, which provide travel
time benefits for users as well as providing a wider choice of non-car transport modes.

By creating public transport and active travel networks that work for users, the SCR can
begin to accommodate any increased demand for travel between key urban centres and
unlock new housing and employment sites in the City Region (as well as boost existing sites
that are poorly connected).

Unlocking these sites and connecting people to the economic opportunities, particularly high
value jobs, will help improve productivity, reduce deprivation, increase public transport mode
share, reduce emissions and improve health outcomes.

The packages will better connect homes, transport interchanges, employment, education
and recreational opportunities using safer, direct and convenient routes. This investment will
be particularly important for those existing and new workers and apprentices with jobs that
have shift patterns that do not align with public transport timetables. There will be a particular
focus on ensuring new journeys stimulated by investment in the SCR are targeted to reduce
the reliance on private transport and offer users affordable, sustainable and healthy travel
choices. Business will also benefit as their employees will be better able to commute to work
in a way that can increase productivity through a reduction in lateness as well as
absenteeism due to ill-health.

The active travel packages in this TCF bid will target existing as well as prospective workers,
apprentices and students and those wishing to access vital local services. The cycling and
walking infrastructure improvements will enable people to access jobs, education/training
opportunities and local services through choosing affordable, greener and healthier forms of
travel.

There are disbenefits from a loss of indirect taxation due to trips being made by sustainable
modes at the expense of car trips, but these are more than outweighed by the value of the
health and social benefits associated with this.

In terms of environmental benefits, a move towards a zero carbon public transport network
not only has direct benefits in terms of reducing emissions, but will also allow the SCR public
transport network to be a trailblazer, shed its image of being highly polluting and be a key
part of the AQMA/CAZ measures that will reduce emissions from a variety of sources. The
three priority corridors include 19 AQMAs, amounting to 63% of all AQMAs within the City
Region as well as the CAZ in Rotherham and Sheffield. The TCF packages show reductions
in noise and greenhouse gas emissions as well as an improvement in air quality.

Investment in active travel will also assist in enhancing the attractiveness of the built
environment where people live and work. Ultimately, attractive places that show joined up
thinking between town and transport planning will help to retain graduates, attract new
investment, and improve its outdoors to the advantage of the SCR. The SCR’s future
transport proposals will also seek to protect and enhance green spaces (including parks)

Page 91



and public rights of way, such as riverside footpaths where they provide alternative
opportunities for active travel and in this way will have benefits for the water environment

and biodiversity.

In terms of social benefits, investment in the priority corridors through the TCF interventions
will benefit around 108,000 people living in the identified areas of transport poverty.
Investment in cycling and walking infrastructure will provide affordable and inclusive
transport options, allowing people to access employment and services easily and cheaply
whilst encouraging more active lifestyles, offering health benefits. It will also assist in
reducing pedestrian and cycle related accidents (particularly amongst high risk groups). The
provision of coherent and continuous cycling and walking infrastructure will also address
security and severance issues where these exist. Improved public transport connectivity will
also encourage modal shift from private vehicles, leading to a number of decongestion

benefits.

ALIGNING WITH WIDER LOCAL PLANS AND OBJECTIVES

The Mayor’s Vision for Transport and the SCR Transport Strategy contains a series of goals,
Mayoral commitments and policies as set out in the following table.

These goals, commitments and policies were developed to guide future investment in
transport across the SCR, and so the TCF proposals have been developed with these in

mind.

Residents and
businesses connected
to economic
opportunity

| will invest in tram, tram-train, bus
rapid transit, bus networks, active
travel and tackle our congestion
hotspots.

| will develop a plan for road
investment that takes a co-
ordinated long-term perspective

| will ensure that local, regional
and national road and rail
investment delivers for this region

I will ensure that new technology
improves the customer experience
of travelling in and around the
Sheffield City Region

| will actively support improved
public transport connections to
Doncaster Sheffield Airport and
ensure that regional rail
investment delivers fast and
efficient rail links to major airports

Improve the existing
transport network to enhance
access to jobs, markets,
skills and supply chains
adopting technology
solutions to support this

Enhance productivity by
making our transport system
faster, more reliable and
more resilient, considering
the role of new technologies
to achieve this

Invest in integrated
packages of infrastructure
to unlock future economic
growth and support Local
Plans, including new
housing provision

Page 92




A cleaner and greener
Sheffield City Region

| will work with partners to deliver
a zero-emissions public transport
network and we will eliminate the
need for AQMAs

I will undertake a review of the bus
network in South Yorkshire, to look
at all options for improving local
bus service

Improve air quality across our
City Region to meet legal
thresholds, supporting
improved health and activity
for all, especiallyin
designated AQMAs and
CAZs

Lead the way towards a low
carbon transport network,
including a zero-carbon
public transport network

Work in tandem with the
planning and development
community to create
attractive places

Safe, reliable and
accessible transport
network

I will invest in services to ensure
that residents with disabilities,
young people, the elderly and
those who are isolated
economically and geographically
are able to travel easily,
confidently and affordably

| will put pedestrians and cyclists
at the centre of our transport plans

| will ensure that safety is planned
into all future transport investment
and that road safety education
initiatives are prioritised

Ensure people feel safe
when they travel and invest
in our streets to make them
more attractive places

Enhance our multi-modal
transport system which
encourages sustainable
travel choices and is
embeddedinthe
assessment of transport
requirements for new
development, particularly
for active travel

Ensure our transport network
offers sustainable and
inclusive access for all to
local services, employment
opportunities and our green
and recreational spaces

The Mayoral commitments that “/ will invest in fram, tram-train, bus rapid transit, bus
networks, active travel and tackle our congestion hotspots” and “I will put pedestrians and
cyclists at the centre of our transport plans” are of particular relevance to this TCF bid.

There is close alignment between the goals and policies and the specific proposals in this
bid as set out in the following table.

1 Policy 1

Enabling people to access opportunities through choosing greener and
healthier forms of transport by sustained investment in high quality
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure both for existing
journeys and new journeys stemming from investment in the City

Region.

Page 93




1 Policy 2 Targeted investment, including new technology, in public transport
infrastructure on key corridors will make journeys on faster and more
reliable.

1 Policy 3 The priority corridors identified for investment and the existing rail
network are intended to connect areas of housing growth, eg in the
Dearne Valley, to areas of economic opportunity.

2 Policy 4 Encouraging people to adopt sustainable travel modes over private
cars to reduce the number of vehicles that use the SCR road network
and hence reduce the negative effects of congestion.

2 Policy 5 Delivering a zero-carbon public transport network requires investment
the bus fleet.

3 Policy 7 Ensuring that public transport stops and interchanges are perceived as
safe, alongside the principle routes connecting them to housing and
job opportunities.

3 Policy 8 Reducing the reliance on private transport, encouraging people to
choose greener and healthier forms of transport both for existing
journeys and new journeys stemming from investment in the City
Region.

Investing over a sustained period in high quality public transport,
cycling and walking infrastructure that better connects homes,
transport interchanges, education, employment and recreational
opportunities using safer, direct and convenient routes.

Developing an investment plan from the LCWIP that removes barriers
to walking and cycling and identifies the infrastructure required to
encourage more trips by bike or on foot.

3 Policy 9 Investing in clearer wayfinding, travel planning for residents and
visitors, and the maintenance of walking and cycle paths.

This confirms that the TCF programme is a vital element of the SCR Transport Strategy and
key to its successful delivery. The TCF also aligns to the policies of the South Yorkshire
Local Authorities, particularly the Sheffield Transport Strategy.

All the TCF interventions will focus closely on improving public and sustainable transport
modes in preference to private cars, to make these fit for the 21st Century and to meet the
SCR’s economic growth ambitions.

Improving connectivity between the SCR’s economic assets and urban centres will improve
productivity and competitiveness and move towards the Mayoral ambition to significantly
increasing the number of economically active people living within 30 minutes of key
employment locations and universities by public transport and active modes.

The packages will also directly tackle air pollution and reduce the level of carbon emissions
in line with UK targets by driving forward the desire to deliver a zero carbon public transport
system in the longer term and eliminate AQMAs in the City Region, aligned with the
emerging CAZ proposals.

Page 94




The SCR Transport Strategy also states that any schemes brought forward, including
through the TCF programme, will also be judged against these three goals and the success
criteria that flow from them. These are set out in the following table.

Residents and a) Contribute towards increasing GVA in SCR through
businesses connected to increasing the number of economically active people living
economic opportunity within 30 minutes of key employment locations and

universities by public transport

b) Better frequency of rail service between Sheffield and
Manchester/Leeds - at least four fast trains per hour, with a

A cleaner and greener target 30 minute journey time to/from both and a local rail

Sheffield City Region network that meets the agreed minimum standards

c) Increase productivity through reducing delays on our
transport network

d) Increase trips by 18% bus, 100%rail , 47% tram, 21% walking and 350%
cycling and manage the increase in private car/van/goods trips to 8%

e) 95% public opinion that our local transport choices feel safe

f)  Reduction inreported casualties of 4% per year

Safe, reliable and g) Eliminate AQMAs in our City Region and comply with legal
accessible transport thresholds to achieve compliance in the shortest possible
network time

h) Reduce tailpipe carbon emissions in line with targets for the
UK and have a zero-carbon public transport network by
2040

SCR’s SEP articulates a clear vision for economic growth, which is to create a bigger and
stronger private sector. Strong economic performance in recent years has meant that the
SCR is ahead of the growth targets set in 2014, but there is a clear desire to go further, by
unlocking the potential to grow faster.

The LEP is more than half way through the delivery of its six year transformative Local
Growth Fund (LGF) programme — this includes £283 million spent on transport and
infrastructure, prioritised to deliver economic growth, which in turn is leveraging £553 million
in wider investment, helping to unlock 71,846 jobs and 6,835 homes.

More broadly than LGF, the SCR Combined Authority is investing a further £178 million in
transport between 2015/16 and 2020/21 through a range of initiatives. This will be aligned
with funding through the TCF programme to deliver the plan for growth and to achieve the
SCR Transport Strategy goals.

The TCF programme therefore directly supports the objectives of SCR’s ongoing refresh of
the SEP, where transforming internal connectivity is central to the vision for growth.

The packages of interventions that have been developed for this Tranche 2 bid also align
directly with the objectives of the overall TCF programme and wider regional and national
plans and policies.

The SCR Transport Strategy sets out a need to develop a series of implementation plans
and this process is underway. The Integrated Rail Plan, which aims to ensure that the SCR

Page 95



fully benefits from transformational national projects such as HS2 and NPR, was published
in July 2019.

The draft LCWIP is being developed into an Active Travel Implementation Plan and a Roads
Implementation Plan is also being prepared that focuses on the roads that we have rather
than building new ones, recognising that almost all journeys start and finish on local roads
and they play a major part in everyone’s life, whether as a pedestrian, cyclist, bus
passenger, freight operator, driver or passenger, and that our plans for the road network
need to help the public transport services that use it and help support active travel where
possible, whilst not severing communities or wildlife habitats. There will also be an
implementation plan focuses on public transport timed to coincide with the completion of the
SCR Bus Review.

The SCR also is positioned within three of the Strategic Development Corridors identified in
TfN’s Strategic Transport Plan, where investment in multi-modal connectivity is required to
support planned economic growth.

Finally, the TCF Tranche 2 proposals within this bid also align closely with the ambitions and
objectives of the Northern Powerhouse, the Government’s Stronger Towns agenda and the
Industrial Strategy, particularly the Infrastructure, Place and People pillars of the latter.

CONSIDERING WIDER EVIDENCE AND STAKEHOLDER VIEWS

A public consultation on the Draft SCR Transport Strategy was undertaken in the first three
months of 2018. An online survey was conducted, consisting of nine questions that
combined open and closed formats. The survey was completed 286 times online and five
hard copies were also received via post. Written submissions were received from 22
organisations via a dedicated inbox and two handwritten responses submitted by post from
members of the public.

The consultation generated a large amount of data and suggestions for refining the Strategy.
Overarching support was expressed for the proposed goals and policies in the Strategy and
the issues drawing the greatest attention involved local bus services, the environment and
cycling. This feedback has helped shape this Tranche 2 bid.

Consultation in relation to individual elements of the packages themselves has been
considered since an early stage in the SCRIPT work. Through interactive workshops,
interviews and questionnaires, key challenges were identified affecting the network and the
same stakeholders were then involved in the development of the interventions that address
these challenges.

Stakeholders involved in the SCRIPT work included:

South Yorkshire Local Authorities

Other SCR Constituent Authorities

SYPTE

SCR LEP

West Yorkshire Combined Authority

TN

Delivery partners — including Network Rail, HS2 Ltd and Highways England

Page 96



° Rail operators — including (the then) East Midlands Trains, Northern Rail, First
TransPennine Express, Stagecoach Supertram

. Bus operators — including Stagecoach Yorkshire, First South Yorkshire and TM
Travel
° Other interested parties — including Living Streets, Cycle Sheffield, Sheffield

Community Transport and Age UK.

The development of the draft LCWIP involved significant input from the South Yorkshire
Local Authorities and is the basis for further development work under the remit of the SCR’s
Active Travel Commissioner. There is a high degree of community involvement in developing
detailed plans for active travel infrastructure through the TCF programme.

In Sheffield, SCC’s production of a City-wide Transport Strategy involved a public
consultation exercise in 2018 which informed SCC'’s priorities within this TCF bid and
demonstrates a high level of political buy-in at this early stage in the programme’s
development.

In Barnsley, Council Officers are discussing active travel issues with the Health & Wellbeing
Board and hospital clinical forums to inform the development of the walking and cycling
implementation plans. Discussions have also been held with the Leeds City Region around
inter-regional connectivity between Sheffield and Leeds, via Barnsley and Wakefield.

This bid is fully supported by the LEP, having been presented to the LEP Board meeting in
May 2019, and key private sector partners across SCR, including public transport operators.

Further details are provided in the Management Case, along with a Stakeholder
Management Plan which summarises the high level of engagement already undertaken, as
well as planned in the future. There has therefore been strong and widespread stakeholder
input to the development of the principles of this TCF bid and also of the individual elements
included within it.

SUMMARY OF THE RATIONALE FOR INVESTMENT

The SCR is polycentric city region and is home to 1.8 million people, with 68,000
businesses, providing 847,000 jobs and an annual GVA of around £34 billion. However:

The SCR has low productivity despite a sizeable economy

There is a high economic inactivity, unemployment and NEET rate in the SCR

There are pockets of high deprivation across the SCR

Population growth is expected to see an ageing population profile

Health is an issue, with the majority of districts having physical inactivity levels higher
than the national average for the adult population

° At a number of key locations across the SCR, economic growth is constrained by a
lack of appropriate infrastructure, which makes development not viable both
physically and financially

. The labour market is fairly self-contained, with 36% of SCR commuting trips being
less than 5km in length
. There is a reliance on cars when travelling to work and there could be up to half a

million extra journeys on our network every day by 2026

Page 97



° Not having reasonable access to the transport system is a key factor in social
exclusion and has a detrimental impact on people’s day to day lives and future
opportunities

° Air quality is poor in a number of areas.

Each of the local economies and the identified growth areas has a role to play within the City
Region and each will make an important contribution to future growth. Making further
progress in addressing the challenges and issues which are specific to local areas will help
to boost the overall economic resilience of the City Region and its attractiveness as a place
to live, work, play and visit.

However, the SCR’s transport system and its supporting infrastructure is not fit for the 21
century — there is an existing trend of car commuting and declining bus use that will continue
if no action is taken. The links between neighbourhoods and urban centres are not good
enough and residents can struggle to get to work. Increased car use and the resulting
congestion will only serve to increase the severe detrimental impact on the SCR’s air quality
and hence the health of its residents at a time when a climate emergency has also been
declared across the City Region.

Accessing major employment sites and land available for development is and will be,
restricted by unconstrained car use, which could stifle any immediate economic growth,
resulting in a drag on productivity, competitiveness and a great underutilisation of talent and
skills.

Therefore, there is a clear need to take action now to improve the opportunities for people to
use public transport and active modes and to make these modes the preferred choice of
travel for increasing numbers of people across the SCR, linked to the identified growth and
employment opportunities, but also for leisure trips.

Drawing together the stated objectives of the TCF and the wider social and economic
objectives of the SCR, there is a number of areas across the SCR where the economic
opportunities that have been identified could have the greatest impact on existing deprivation
— these are the areas that currently experience transport poverty.

Put simply, the biggest opportunity for future transport investment, including TCF, is to better
connect the areas of transport poverty, with those areas of opportunity by public transport
and active travel modes, allied to achieving significant mode shift away from the private car
on key corridors that could stifle future growth ambitions, thereby achieving growth in a
sustainable way that addresses current health issues and improves air quality.

Therefore, the overall aim of this TCF bid is to promote a series of interventions that
contribute towards the SCR’s local aim to improve intra-city region connections that either:

. Connect areas of deprivation/transport poverty to areas of economic opportunity by
public transport and active travel modes; or
o Seek to achieve significant mode shift away from the private car on key corridors and

in areas where future growth ambitions and improved health and air quality would
otherwise be compromised.

These aims are entirely in line with the overall TCF objectives of supporting the local
economy and boosting productivity whilst reducing emissions and improving air quality, as
well as other local, regional and national policies. Improving intra-city region public transport
and active travel connections will allow the SCR to realise its potential but to do this in a
sustainable way that addresses current health issues and improves air quality.

Page 98



INTRODUCTION

This section identifies the likely economic, environmental, social impacts of the proposed
package of interventions and their resulting value for money.

The key points from the Economic Case are as follows:

o The interventions proposed within this TCF bid will a provide range of wider
economic, environmental and social benéefits.

o A Benefit : Cost Ratio (BCR) has been calculated for preferred package of
interventions, based on the inclusion of the monetised impacts that it is possible
to include using the appraisal and modelling tools available.

o For all three funding scenarios, the BCR shows a Medium/High value for money
for the overall TCF programme and the supporting qualitative assessment
suggests BCR may be higher with the addition of other monetised benefits
related to individual interventions.

MODELLING TOOLS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Individual schemes within the TCF programme are at very different stages of development —
from conception through to detailed design — this provides a number of practical issues
relating to the appraisal process for this TCF bid. Despite these limitations, the following
provides an indication of the approach taken to the appraisal of the interventions at this
stage and any key assumptions.

Bus Priority and Junction Improvement Schemes

A new SCR multi-modal transport model (SCRTM1) has recently been completed to support
two other large major funding bids being made by the SCR to DfT. This tool has been made
use of in the appraisal of the public transport and highway interventions within the preferred
TCF package. Where necessary, additional assessments have been undertaken off-line
from the main transport model to support the findings of the main model.

Evidence from similar schemes implemented in the SCR has also been used to benchmark
model outputs, predominantly for the proposed public transport corridor improvements and
drawing on the delay information provided by the bus operators.

The SCRTM1 has a base year representation of observed 2016 travel patterns, derived
using amongst other data source mobile phone data and Electronic Ticket Machine data for
public transit services. The model includes representation of all trip making to, from and
within the SCR on the highway (including freight), public transport and active travel. The
model has been developed as a collaboration by SYSTRA and AECOM on behalf of The
SCR in line with the DfT’s proscribed model development advice as set out in the Transport
Analysis Guidance (TAG). The model system has been thoroughly scrutinised by the DfT’s
Local Transport Modelling, Local and Regional Transport Analysis team.

Page 99



These analyses have been supplemented by the use of small traffic network models, such
as Junctions9, TRANSYT and LinSIG, used to assess journey time benefits arising from
public transport improvements and existing micro-simulation models for two corridor
schemes (A61 in Barnsley and Parkgate Link Road).

Active Travel Schemes

The TAG Active Mode Appraisal Tool (AMAT) has been used for all active travel
interventions, using local evidence and data from the Propensity to Cycle Tool, specifically
where interventions are targeted at future demand such that there is limited existing count
data, although additional walking and cycling baseline counts were commissioned
specifically to support this TCF bid.

Tram-train and Rail Station Improvements

The existing logic model for the tram-train trial has been updated to reflect actual patronage
since the start of the trial and then used to assess the proposed new stop on the tram-train
network.

For the rail station improvements, the intention was to use the Passenger Demand
Forecasting Handbook (PDFH), but this has not been possible for this TCF bid. Therefore,
information provided in a report by Jacobs for the then Passenger Transport Executive
Group on the value for money of small scale transport interventions has been utilised
instead. This work compiled a database of close to 150 schemes obtained from city regions
and other local authority bodies, over a quarter of which had been the object of some sort of
guantitative economic appraisal and/or ex-post evaluation, and provided estimates of the
benefits that could be expected from small scale improvements.

Table 7 of the report identifies that for rail station improvements (similar in nature to those
proposed within this bid), the average BCR is 4.4, with a standard deviation of 1.8. For this
TCF bid, therefore, it has been assumed that the BCR for these types of intervention will be
the average minus one standard deviation — this is considered to be a robust assumption.
The intention remains to use the PDFH approach for the next stage of the scheme appraisal
process, alongside any specific evidence from Train Operating Companies.

Sustainable Modes Interdependencies

Given the nature of the schemes within the preferred package, it is not considered that there
are a large number of interdependencies that could lead to significant abstraction between
sustainable modes and hence double counting of benefits within the suggested approach.
However, it is recognised that on some corridors where there are proposed active travel and
public transport improvements, there is the opportunity for some shorter distance trips
currently made by public transport to transfer to an active travel mode.

In these instances, an initial assessment of the possible abstraction has been undertaken
alongside the use of the multi-modal model. In preparing their recent Transport Strategy,
SCC interviewed nearly 2,000 residents (1,519 via an online Citizen Space survey and 410
via a street survey team) about travel habits that allowed segmentation of the responses by
main mode of travel vs preferred mode of travel. 721 of the respondents indicated that their
existing main mode of travel within Sheffield was the bus, and of these respondents, 39
(5.4%) indicated that cycling would be their preferred mode of travel if facilities were
improved. A further 29 (4.0%) indicated walking as their preferred mode.

Drawing on these findings, in those locations where there are proposed improvements to
both public transport and active travel facilities, the forecasts passenger benefits arising from

Page 100



the public transport improvements have been reduced by 10% to account for this possible
abstraction effect. This is considered a reasonable assumption for this TCF bid.

APPRAISAL RESULTS

The principal results from the appraisal to date are summarised in the following paragraphs
for the preferred TCF package of interventions — the quantitative results quoted are for the
Medium funding scenario from the Financial Case.

At this stage potential benefits/disbenefits to be accrued from sub-objectives such as
Landscape, Townscape, Historic environment, Biodiversity, Water environment, Security,
Affordability and Severance have not been quantified, commensurate with the level of detall
required for this TCF bid. However, some qualitative narrative is provided on the likely
impacts based on the work done to date and the anticipated impacts of the interventions
within each of the packages. Economic efficiency benefits, Noise, Air quality and
Greenhouse gas benefits, Physical activity, Journey quality and accident benefits, and the
impact on wider public finances, have been monetised and assessed using the approach
outlined above using TAG databook values.

Economic Impacts

The primary economic efficiency benefits of the preferred TCF package result from the bus
priority measures, new bus lanes and bus priority at traffic signals planned, and which
accrue to public transport users. These significant travel time savings have been quantified
off-line from the main SCRTM1, by multiplying the anticipated improvements in bus journey
time by the bus passenger flow on each impacted road section (as forecast using SCRTM1).
This suggests an overall travel time saving benefit to public transport users over 60 years of
£95 million (in 2010 prices).

The highway assignment component of the SCRTM1 has been used to assess the
(dis)benefits to highway users, mainly as other highway users are shown to be negatively
impacted by the bus priority measures in this initial analysis. Whilst it is not the intention that
these schemes remove physical highway capacity from the corridors, introduction of traffic
signals to provide further bus priority inevitably imposes new delays on highway users.

SCRTML1 provides the opportunity to appraise the impacts on highway users resulting not
only from the direct impacts within the corridors under consideration but also the secondary
impacts resulting from re-assignment to alternative routes, redistribution and modal shift.
The evidence to date suggests that the (within car mode) negative impacts on highway users
outweighs the positive impacts brought about by modal shift to public transport and active
travel modes (estimated to be some £155 million over 60 years in 2010 prices).

The modelling work to date suggests an annual reduction in car kilometres driven across the
SCR of 25.5 million, which indicates the positive impacts of the preferred TCF package in
promoting public transport and active modes. The Marginal External Cost parameters
provided in the TAG Workbook have then been used to quantify a monetarised benefit for
the following cost types - infrastructure, accidents, local air quality, noise and greenhouse
gases.

It should be noted at this point that the SCRTML1 is an integrated multi-modal modelling

system that accounts for the impacts of changing highway congestion not only on highway
users but also on buses. There is some evidence from the modelling undertaken to date that

Page 101



there may be secondary negative impacts accruing to these bus priority schemes for bus
users, as well as those already discussed above that accrue to car users.

This is because the re-routeing and redistribution of car trips resulting from the TCF
interventions will also impact on buses — both on parallel corridors and potentially even in
other of the network for which bus priority measures have not yet been proposed.
Programme and modelling constraints have meant it has not yet been possible to quantify
these negative wider impacts on bus users reliably. However, initial modelling points to the
fact they might be significant (around £50 million over 60 years in 2010 prices).

This result, which may not have been readily identifiable without access to an SCR-wide,
multi-modal transport model such as SCRTM1, reinforces the fact that considerable further
scheme development and modelling will be required at the Outline Business Case stage to
make sure the direct and secondary impacts — both positive and negative — to all transport
users are fully understood and any supplementary mitigation measures identified.

In terms of Reliability, it is anticipated that the interventions proposed will alleviate the
observed journey time reliability issues for public transport vehicles during peak periods as
illustrated by the existing problems in Figures 2.15, 2.16 and 2.17, as well as providing the
absolute journey time reductions described above. A key part of the development of this TCF
bid has been to work with bus operators to understand the likely magnitude of these
reliability benefits and the consequential impact on operations in order to define the reliability
benefits more accurately.

At this time, therefore, the impact is assessed as Beneficial.

The package of interventions will facilitate Regeneration and development in the SCR by
providing additional network capacity, particularly for public transport and active travel
modes on key corridors where existing congestion could stifle future growth ambitions. This
is one of the key objectives of the SCR’s TCF bid, with the interventions being targeted at
the SCR’s growth areas shown in Figure 2.9.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Beneficial.
Environmental Impacts

The package of interventions has the potential to cause some changes in traffic Noise by
altering traffic flows on existing roads and through the creation of some new infrastructure
and by the changes in traffic flow on the existing network arising from the interventions
proposed. The index adopted in the UK for assessing road traffic noise during the daytime is
the dB LA10,18h level, defined as the arithmetic mean of the dB(A) noise levels exceeded
for 10% of the time in each of the 18, one-hour periods between 6am and midnight on a
typical weekday.

The magnitude of a noise change is perceived differently dependent on whether it is a
sudden change, or a change over a longer period of time. In the short term, a change in road
traffic noise of 1dB LA10,18h is the smallest that is considered perceptible. In the longer
term (typically 15 years after scheme opening), a 3dB LA10,18h change is considered
perceptible.

As defined by DMRB Volume 11 Section 3 Part 7 HD 213/11, a change in noise level of 1dB
LA10, 18h is equivalent to a 25% increase or a 20% decrease in traffic flow, assuming other
factors remain unchanged. A change in noise level of 3dB LA10,18h is equivalent to a 100%
increase or a 50% decrease in traffic flow.

Page 102



The modelling work done to date does not identify changes of either of these magnitudes on
the existing network, although there will inevitably be additional traffic on new infrastructure.
Conversely, there will be some reduction in overall traffic noise with a mode shift towards
public transport and active travel modes. The latter benefit has quantified using both the
SCRTM1 and within AMAT, and the cumulative impact for the preferred TCF package is
shown in the table below.

Preferred Package — Medium Scenario

Noise Impacts (£000s) 33.79

Given these benefits are relatively small within the overall quantification of benefits in this
TCF bid, and the potential localised disbenefits associated with new infrastructure, the
impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Slight Beneficial.

Overall there is a beneficial effect on local air quality and a beneficial effect on wider
emissions for NOx, particularly where the interventions are concentrated in existing AQMASs
and within the mandated CAZ for Rotherham and Sheffield, as shown in Figure 2.12 — the
three TCF priority corridors where interventions are concentrated include 19 AQMAS,
amounting to 63% of all AQMASs within the SCR.

As with Noise, there may be some localised disbenefits associated with the new
infrastructure proposed, although in most cases, this infrastructure should also alleviate
existing congestion, which is a contributor to poor air quality.

Local air quality benefits have quantified using both the SCRTM1 and within AMAT, and the
cumulative impact for the preferred TCF package is shown in the table below.

Element Preferred Package — Medium Scenario

Air Quality Impacts (£000s)

Given these benefits are relatively small within the overall quantification of benefits in this
TCF bid, and the potential localised disbenefits associated with new infrastructure, the
impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Slight Beneficial.

There will be a beneficial effect on Greenhouse gas emissions due to the increased use of
active travel modes, mode shift to public transport and reduced congestion and the results
for the preferred TCF package are summarised in the table below.

Element Preferred Package — Medium Scenario

Greenhouse Gas Impacts (£000s) 96.11

Given these benefits are relatively small within the overall quantification of benefits in this
TCF bid, the impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Slight Beneficial.

Page 103



Many of the interventions are within the existing highway boundary and therefore have
minimum impact on Landscape — there is one new road link proposed within an existing
highway corridor and adjacent to land with a mixed use development and so this is already
within a built-up area, and a new bridge connection between a residential area and an area
of commercial activity at iPort. As more detail on each intervention is developed, there may
be some localised adverse impacts on landscape that cannot be quantified at this stage.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Neutral.

The areas through which the interventions pass are mainly existing road corridors and so
there is also expected to be minimal impact on Townscape, however in the urban centres,
there should be urban realm improvements as part of the proposals. As more detail on each
intervention is developed, there may be some localised adverse impacts on townscape that
cannot be quantified at this stage.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Neutral.

As far as can be established at this point, the proposed interventions are not anticipated to
have an impact upon any designated heritage assets in the Historic environment, although
there may be some localised adverse impacts on a scheme-by-scheme basis for which
mitigation measures will be developed as part of the detailed design of the intervention.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Neutral.

Similarly, the proposed interventions are not anticipated to have an impact upon any areas
of significant biodiversity nor any floodplains or major watercourses, although there may be
some localised adverse impacts on a scheme-by-scheme basis for which mitigation
measures will be developed as part of the detailed design of the intervention.

The impacts at this stage on both Biodiversity and Water environment have therefore
been assessed as being Neutral.

Social Impacts

The interventions are likely to have a significant impact on the level of Physical activity
across the SCR given the range, scope and quality of the infrastructure proposed specifically
for active travel modes. The benefits for these elements of the preferred package of active
travel interventions has been assessed by AMAT, covering the sum of the reduced risk of
premature death and absenteeism benefits, and the results are summarised in the table
below.

Physical Activity Impacts (£000s) 94,064.6

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Moderate Beneficial.

There is likely to be an improvement to Journey quality given that the majority of
interventions provide new active travel infrastructure, as well as those measures that will
improve the reliability of public transport services. The benefits for the active travel elements
of the preferred package of active travel interventions has been assessed by AMAT, and the
results are summarised in the table below.

Page 104



Journey Quality Impacts (£000s) 53,543.7

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Moderate Beneficial.

There will be a reduction in Accidents due to the provision of new infrastructure, mode shift
to public transport and reduced congestion and the results for the preferred TCF package
are summarised in the table below.

Accident Impacts (£000s) 10,901.2

The interventions are likely to have a significant beneficial impact on Security, particularly
where segregated facilities are proposed for new active travel modes, but also the proposed
improvements to the facilities at rail stations, as well as on the routes to/from them. Figure
2.14 illustrated the potential catchment of the SCR’s rail network based on current and
planned land use, if safe facilities are provided.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Moderate Beneficial.

Accessibility is a key distributional impact that needs to be considered in scheme appraisals.
The interventions are likely to improve Access to services, particularly public transport and
active travel modes, by providing new and/or additional means of accessing the transport
network, particularly for those in the SCR’s areas of identified transport poverty as shown in
Figure 2.10. Investment in the TCF priority corridors through the TCF will benefit around
108,000 people living in the areas of transport poverty.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Moderate Beneficial.

Personal Affordability relates to the monetary costs of travel, which can be a major barrier
to mobility for certain groups of people, with particularly acute effects on their ability to
access key destinations and employment areas. The proposed interventions do not
specifically include for an alteration of public transport fares at this stage of scheme
development, but the interventions could have an impact on affordability by providing
alternative, cheaper, transport modes for the 27% of SCR households without access to a
car.

The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Slight Beneficial.

Severance primarily concerns non-motorised modes of transport, and some interventions
will have a positive impact on severance where new facilities will enable users to cross road
or rail corridors as part of their everyday journeys, such as the proposed new bridge into a
large commercial development at iPort.

There may be some localised severance disbenefits with increased highway corridor widths

resulting from the proposed interventions, but these could be offset as the scheme design
progresses by improved crossing facilities at junctions along the key corridors.

Page 105



The impacts at this stage have therefore been assessed as being Slight Beneficial.

Option values refer to the perceived value people place on having an option that they would
not normally use now being available for use as a result of the proposals. In this instance,
option values are enhanced as the interventions introduce the ability to use active travel
modes for large areas of the SCR where this is not perceived as possible at present. One of
the themes of the SCR’s Transport Strategy is to make active travel modes the natural
choice for shorter journeys across the City Region.

It is therefore considered that the preferred package of interventions would have a Large
Impact at this stage.

SENSITIVITY TESTS

A series of sensitivity test have also been undertaken to confirm the robustness of the
appraisal results. These include:

° Using the default 20 year appraisal period in AMAT irrespective of the quality and
scale of new infrastructure proposed

o Excluding accident benefits from the AMAT results

o Excluding the negative impacts of traffic re-assignment on bus user benefits.

APPRAISAL SUMMARY TABLE

The Appraisal Summary Table (AST) is designed to provide decision takers with a concise
overview of all impacts of the programme, bearing in mind the approach taken to date on the
modelling of impacts.

Page 106



INTRODUCTION

This section presents the Financial Case for the proposed package of interventions,
concentrating on their affordability and potential funding arrangements.

The key points from the Financial Case are as follows:

o Three funding bids have been prepared, covering High, Medium and Low
scenarios, as required by the TCF guidance.

o The total TCF requirement (including the Tranche 1 schemes already approved)
estimated at present across each of these three funding bids is £231.7 million
(High), £199.4 million (Medium) and £184.8 million (Low) — these are outturn
costs that include for risk and inflation.

o The majority of the total programme funding is expected to come from TCF, but
there is a commitment by the SCR to provide a local contribution — this currently
stands at 18.0% of the total of the works anticipated.

SCHEME COSTS

A number of approaches have been adopted in producing the order of magnitude cost
estimates for each of the proposed interventions at this stage. These include:

° Existing cost plans produced by Project Teams and based on current design work
(costs rebased to 2019 prices)

° Experience of similar schemes delivered in the SCR recently
UK sourced unit rates and benchmarking rates

. Percentages for preliminaries, fees etc, based on recent local scheme and current

framework rates.

Inflation assumptions are based on Tender Price Index (TPI) forecasts produced by Turner &
Townsend for the SCR Mass Transit project. A provision of 5% per annum has been applied

based on a five year forecast range (which is consistent with TCF timescales) and assuming

a consistent pattern across the subsequent years, assessed against past inflationary figures

for TPI, consumer price index and retail price index.

A Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) has been and this has replaced the standard risk
allowance applied previously. Separate QRA figures (50th percentile) have been used for
the three funding scenarios.

As required by the TCF guidance, three funding bids have been prepared, covering High,

Medium and Low scenarios. The current scheme costs for the preferred package of
interventions in each of these scenarios are shown in the following tables.

Page 107



HIGH (£ million)

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Total

River Don Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 7.4 20.7 18.7 46.8
Local contribution 0.5 0.7 1.0 15 3.6
Private contribution 1.6 0.3 0.7 0.1 2.7
Total 2.0 8.4 22.4 20.3 53.1
Dearne Valley Corridor

DFT capital 0.0 18.6 43.3 23.9 85.8
Local contribution 43 5.4 1.8 0.3 11.9
Private contribution 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0
Total 4.3 24.0 47.1 24.3 99.7
AMID Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 10.3 36.6 52.2 99.1
Local contribution 6.1 6.3 0.3 2.9 15.6
Private contribution 0.4 0.9 0.0 0.0 13
Total 6.5 17.5 36.8 55.1 115.9
Tranche 1 Component (already funded)?!

DfT capital 4.3 0 0 0 4.3
Local contribution 1.4 0 0 0 14
Private contribution 1 0 0 0 1
Total 6.7 0 0 0 6.7
TOTALS 19.6 50.0 106.2 99.6 275.4
Total capital 19.6 50.0 106.2 99.6 275.4
:e‘:fﬁ'eg‘:df””dmg 4.3 36.4 100.5 94.8 236.0
Igrt]?:ig’uct%ﬁ’”"ate 15.3 13.6 5.7 4.9 39.5
Allowance for inflation 25.5
Cost of risks identified 21.9

1 Includes 2018/19 Tranche 1 allocation

Page 108




MEDIUM (£ million)

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Total

River Don Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 6.2 16.7 16.6 39.5
Local contribution 0.5 0.7 1.0 15 3.6
Private contribution 1.6 0.3 0.7 0.1 2.7
Total 2.0 7.3 18.4 18.2 45.9
Dearne Valley Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 15.7 37.0 17.4 70.1
Local contribution 43 5.4 1.6 0.3 11.5
Private contribution 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0
Total 4.3 21.0 40.6 17.7 83.6
AMID Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 10.2 32.0 47.6 89.8
Local contribution 6.1 6.3 0.3 2.9 15.6
Private contribution 0.4 0.9 0.0 0.0 13
Total 6.5 17.4 32.3 50.5 106.7
Tranche 1 Component (already funded)*

DfT capital 4.3 0 0 0 4.3
Local contribution 1.4 0 0 0 1.4
Private contribution 1 0 0 0 1
Total 6.7 0 0 0 6.7
TOTALS 19.6 45.7 91.2 86.4 242.9
Total capital 19.6 45.7 91.2 86.4 242.9
:ecgﬁggtgdf“”ding 43 321 85.7 81.6 203.7
Total loc Agat= 15.3 13.6 55 4.8 39.2
Allowance for inflation 23.1
Cost of risks identified 19.7

Page 109




River Don Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 51 15.2 14.6 34.9
Local contribution 0.5 0.7 1.0 15 3.6
Private contribution 1.6 0.3 0.7 0.1 2.7
Total 2.0 6.1 16.9 16.2 41.2
Dearne Valley Corridor

DfT capital 0.0 15.7 36.2 16.4 68.2
Local contribution 43 5.1 15 0.3 11.2
Private contribution 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0
Total 4.3 20.8 39.7 16.6 81.4
AMID Corridor

DFT capital 0.0 9.4 28.7 43.6 81.7
Local contribution 6.1 6.3 0.3 2.9 15.6
Private contribution 0.4 0.9 0.0 0.0 13
Total 6.5 16.5 28.9 46.6 98.5
Tranche 1 Component (already funded) *

DT capital 4.3 0 0 0 4.3
Local contribution 1.4 0 0 0 14
Private contribution 1 0 0 0 1
Total 6.7 0 0 0 6.7
TOTALS 19.6 43.4 85.5 79.4 227.9
Total capital 19.6 434 85.5 79.4 227.9
ToLR funding 43 30.1 80.1 74.6 189.1
requested

Total loc Agat= 15.3 133 5.5 4.8 38.8
Allowance for inflation 20.8
Cost of risks identified 17.7

ONGOING SCHEME COSTS

The cost estimates developed for the programme include whole life costs so as to address
the issue of operating and maintenance costs as part of this TCF bid.

Page 110




FUNDING STRATEGY

The majority of the funding is expected to come from TCF, but there is a commitment by the
SCR to provide a local contribution. The anticipated level of the local contribution is shown in
the table above — this has been confirmed by the SCR Local Authorities as part of their
approval of this TCF bid.

Proposed sources of the local contribution include the following:

Local Growth Fund

Integrated Transport block allocations
Borrowing

Local Authority reserves

Section 106 contributions

Bus operators

Train operating companies.

Some of the bus priority measures within the TCF programme will benefit commercial bus
operators. The existing bus partnership arrangements require any savings made by the bus
operators as a result of public sector investment to be re-invested in services within the
SCR. This principle will be applied to attract additional third party contributions as more
detail on individual interventions or packages of interventions is available.

Similarly, more detail will be developed on the likely benefits of individual interventions at rail
stations such that discussion on possible contributions can be undertaken with the relevant
train operating companies using allocated funds for such improvements that have been
identified in their franchise agreements.

In Sheffield, there is a live HIF bid (to Homes England) that includes elements that align
with/complement the Sheffield-Kelham-Burngreave active travel proposals, and which could
be considered as possible complementary investment, but has not been included in this TCF
bid as a confirmed local contribution.

Page 111



INTRODUCTION

This section provides evidence on the commercial viability of the proposed package of
interventions, the requirement in terms of outputs and the procurement strategy that will be
used to engage the market.

The key points from the Commercial Case are as follows:
o All aspects of the preferred TCF programme are commercially viable.

o The elements of the preferred TCF programme have a clear set of outputs, all of
which will help accelerate planned economic growth and improve productivity
across the SCR through targeted investment in public transport and active travel
connectivity, particularly in areas of transport poverty.

o A range of alternative approaches to procurement have been considered but is
thought preferable that the majority of the interventions within the TCF
programme will be delivered by the South Yorkshire Local Authorities and
SYPTE, with Northern Rail procuring the improvements at local rail stations.

o Each procuring authority has identified a preferred procurement route, with an
alternative if needed, making use of existing arrangements where possible.

COMMERCIAL VIABILITY

The schemes within this TCF programme are all commercially viable as the SCR, SYPTE
and the South Yorkshire Local Authorities have considered whole life costs during the
development of the programme and the production of scheme costs. The scope of the
individual schemes included within the programme have been tailored to ensure that it is
entirely deliverable within the timescales within which funding is available.

Approval has been sought from each of the individual authorities to the stated local
contributions and each has also confirmed an acceptance of responsibility for meeting any
ongoing revenue and capital requirements for the elements of the programme.

The TCF programme predominantly comprises new or upgraded transport infrastructure that
will be maintained by the relevant local highway authority once constructed. There are no
other ongoing costs that will affect the commercial viability of these improvements.

There is planned investment in new and expanded park and ride facilities at Parkgate and
Magna. The work done to support this SOBC by SYPTE that indicates the improvements

can be commercially viable given existing latent demand and likely attraction of additional
users to the tram-train service.

Some of the bus priority measures within the TCF programme will benefit commercial bus
operators in terms of reduced journey times and improved reliability of services. This should
have the effect of reducing bus operating costs for services using the facilities, as well as
increasing passenger numbers and revenue. Previous investment in such facilities has

Page 112



shown this to be the case, but it is often difficult to attribute specific commercial returns in
isolation.

The main commercial bus operators have been involved in the preparation of this SOBC and
their input will continue as the design process moves forward. At the appropriate time, SCR
and SYPTE will discuss with bus operators to determine whether and how commitments to
complementary improvements, such as new vehicles, improved service levels and reduced
fares, could be delivered. This will be done through the existing bus partnership
arrangements, which requires any savings made by the bus operators as a result of public
sector investment to be re-invested in services within the SCR.

A separate assessment is being undertaken to confirm the commercial viability of the low
emissions bus trial that is part of the TCF programme, but as this is a trial, should the return
on investment envisaged not materialise, then there will be no ongoing liability.

Northern Rail as Station Facility Owner (SFO) is responsible for operation and maintenance
of the rail stations across the SCR. It is party to various existing contracts to execute these
obligations and the expectation is that the station enhancements planned in the TCF
programme would be added to this portfolio, offset by the increased revenue from an uplift in
patronage. The improved facilities would then become part of the baseline asset register for
the next Northern Rail franchisee and SFO.

No specific market engagement has yet taken place on the SCR TCF programme, but given
the nature of the works involved, there is expected to be a good level of market interest
given previous experience of schemes of the type included within the programme.

OUTPUT-BASED SPECIFICATION

The anticipated outputs from each of the interventions within the preferred TCF programme
are set out in Appendix D, and these will be refined and updated as more design work is
undertaken. At a high level across the SCR, the consolidated outputs of this programme are:

XXkm of improved walking and cycling infrastructure

XXkm of new walking and cycling infrastructure

XXkm of new infrastructure to benefit buses

XXkm of new bus lanes

XX junction improvements to benefit non-car modes

Improvements to the facilities at 12 local rail stations

Deployment of XX low emission buses for the period of the TCF programme.

As noted in the Strategic Case, the overall aim of the TCF programme is to promote a series
of interventions that contribute towards the SCR’s objective to improve intra-city region
connections that either:

. Connect areas of deprivation/transport poverty to areas of economic opportunity by
public and sustainable transport modes; or
° Seek to achieve significant mode shift away from the private car on key corridors that

could stifle future growth ambitions.
The planned economic growth in the SCR can be accelerated through targeted investment in

public and sustainable transport connectivity. The TCF programme will improve the speed
and reliability of existing journeys on sustainable transport modes, encourage journeys to

Page 113



switch from the private car to sustainable modes and encourage new journeys to be made
using those modes.

The overall outcomes of the TCF programme are described in the Economic Case and are
aligned to the Measures for Success set out in the SCR Transport Strategy.

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY

The preferred TCF programme involves seven partners — SCR, SYPTE, the four South
Yorkshire Local Authorities and Northern Rail, where there are works at local rail stations.
Bearing in mind that each of these partners has their own existing procurement procedures,
the establishment of a robust procurement strategy for the TCF programme was the subject
of a discussion at the TCF Programme Board in September 2019.

To inform the discussion, each procuring authority (except for Northern Rail) outlined their
current position, and it was evident that there is a variety of existing arrangements in place.
Although there was considered some merit in exploring ways to let joint framework contracts
to help deliver projects across the SCR in the future, such contracts are unlikely to be
operational in time for the TCF programme, hence the need to establish a strategy that takes
account of the existing arrangements, but sought to provide clarity and certainty within the
delivery process and minimise the identified risks.

SYPTE will be responsible for procuring the rail elements of the TCF programme including
the number and scope of individual contracts, budget, cost control, programme and
relationship management with Northern Rail as SFO. Since the station improvements are
largely similar to works undertaken across the network it has been agreed that it would be
more efficient to procure individual work packages utilising Northern Rail’s existing
framework-type arrangements.

SYPTE will also managed the interface between the works at the station and the works
undertaken by each Local Authority on the approach to the station.

Therefore, the remainder of the procurement strategy covers the active travel and (non-rail)
public transport interventions only.

Establishing a common procurement strategy also needs to be mindful of SCC’s current PFI
contract with Amey Hallam Highways. Depending on the scope and scale of the works, this
could preclude other contractors working within the City without a separate procurement
procedure (adding time and cost to any contract), and it is unclear whether the existing
arrangement could varied efficiently to allow Amey Hallam Highways to work within other
South Yorkshire Local Authorities.

On this basis, the six remaining partners first discussed the options for procuring the
necessary design work to progress the interventions within the TCF programme. Given the
experiences to date in progressing the designs of individual schemes within the procuring
authority responsible, and also with regard to the ability of each authority to call on external
support and resources, it was agreed to retain the existing approach for the procurement of
the design services through the detailed design and contract preparation stage. This will see
the use of both in-house and external resources, the latter being either retained through a
framework or procured on a needs basis, as has been done by SCC for the design work to
date.

Page 114



In terms of scheme delivery, the review of procurement options was first discussed in
relation to two dimensions in particular:

. Who would be the ‘client’? and
. What is the contract scope/length?

It was felt that by exploring these issues, a preferred procurement strategy could be
developed.

The options for the ‘client’ were identified as:

Each procuring authority individually

Groups of authorities on a route/corridor basis, or by geographical connections
All procuring authorities collectively, with a single accountable body

SCR, on behalf of all procuring authorities.

Although it was acknowledged that either of the latter two would be the most simple, and
likely to be preferable to the DfT, current legislation would require various Section 278
Agreements to be in place where other authorities (or SCR) were letting and managing
contracts in locations where they were not the local highway authority.

Such a restriction would apply to all but the first option, with the added complication of SCC’s
existing PFI contract, and was felt to result in an unnecessary layer of administration and
agreements that could offset the planned delivery of the scheme. Hence, the agreement
from the TCF Programme Board was to pursue the first option, but with the possibility of
retaining the second where an overall joint procurement exercise would be better value for
money.

In terms of the scope and length of the contract, the following elements were discussed to
determine which option best suited the needs of the TCF programme and with a mind to the
contracting arrangements with the SCR that would be needed:

On a corridor basis

On a geographical basis (by each local highway authority area)
On a theme basis (by active travel/public transport)

On a time basis (Year 1, Year 2, Year 3 and Year 4)

On a value basis (relating to each individual intervention)

On a whole programme basis.

The advantages and disadvantages of each were discussed, with the key factor being the
need to balance the timely delivery of the TCF programme with the drive to maximise
efficiency, whilst mindful of existing arrangements. It was agreed, however, that there was
an advantage in streamlining the management of the programme delivery and providing the
opportunity to reduce the number of contracts and contractors involved.

As a result, the preferred procurement strategy is based on division by a balance of a theme
and geographical basis. This mirrors the approach taken on other funding bids with the DfT
and other Government departments and will be underpinned by back-to-back agreements
between the SCR and the South Yorkshire Local Authorities.

All contracts will be let in line with SCR’s, SYPTE’s and the South Yorkshire Local
Authorities’ standing orders to ensure that best value for money is delivered. Evaluation and
award of contract will most likely be made on the most economically advantageous tender
received by the procuring authority. Every attempt will be made to co-ordinate evaluation

Page 115



criteria across different authorities by sharing such criteria (and adapting if necessary) before
any contracts are awarded.

All tendered contract packages will be let in accord with the contract procedure of the
authority letting the contract or the procurement route for any schemes over the OJEU
threshold (if this still applies after the UK leaves the EU) will be via the YORCivils framework.
As in many cases the design of an individual scheme will be straightforward, a more typical
client/designer and contractor/constructor relationship will be deployed. Procurement of
larger schemes could be on a design and build basis using the NEC form of contract.

The NEC suite of contracts are well understood and are a tried and tested set of contracts
used on large scale construction schemes. In addition, the implementation of NEC contracts
has resulted in major benefits for projects both nationally and internationally in terms of time,
cost savings and improved quality. The recent update to the NEC4 suite of contracts from
NECS3 reflects procurement and project management developments and emerging best
practice, with improvements in flexibility, clarity and the ease of administration.

Further details on the approach to procurement are provided in the following paragraphs.
Active Travel Schemes

Delivery of the works in Barnsley will be considered under the terms of the Council’s
contract procedure rules to ensure best value for money in terms of cost, quality of work and
actual delivery timescales to maximise expenditure.

This will include a combination of the following (depending on the nature of the works and
the availability of resources):

° The procurement of the works via the YORCIivils framework contract which has
already been established and complies with OJEU regulations, allowing the Council
to minimise the procurement timescales once approval for a scheme is granted —
appointment will be on the most economically advantageous bid

° The delivery of the works being provided in-house by Barnsley Metropolitan Borough
Council (BMBC), subject to approval by the Executive Director of Place, and if so,
subject to value for money considerations, progress all works.

In Doncaster, the majority of the work is likely to be carried out by Doncaster Council
Officers — this includes design, feasibility and delivery of the works. If required, contractors
will be procured via framework community partnering arrangements for the works, initially in
an ECI role (for design development/buildability input and to maximise value engineering
opportunity and help develop robust baseline programme and cost data).

In Rotherham, the majority of the works will be also undertaken by RMBC'’s in-house
Highway Delivery Team. The costs associated with the Highway Delivery Team have been
commercially tested and offer value for money compared to other similar organisations.
However, the Council is a member of the Midlands Highway Alliance Framework which
enables the appointment of design and construction contracts. If there are any issues with
design or delivery, the Council can utilise this framework to procure services. This framework
builds on previous experience and includes a series of KPIs to ensure that the contractor
performance is constantly revised and fed back into contractor selection models.
Contractors are therefore incentivised to continue to deliver schemes on time and within
budget. Membership also gives access to a professional services framework contract for
design services.

Page 116



In Sheffield, SCC has an existing competitively tendered highways PFI contract with Amey
Hallam Highways that contains two different types of service ‘core’ and ‘non-core’. ‘Core’
works cover the investment and maintenance in highway infrastructure. ‘Non-core’ works
cover the design and construction of capital works for both highway and off-highway
schemes. Amey will be engaged under the ‘non-core’ element of the contract for schemes
that are below OJEU threshold as this is the fastest route to delivery as the need to tender
the works is negated. For works over the OJEU threshold, works will be tendered through
existing framework arrangements, such as the YORCivils framework.

Public Transport Schemes

The public transport schemes will be delivered in a similar way to the recent successful
Better Bus Area (BBA) Fund schemes, where design has been undertaken ‘in house’ and
construction integrated into ongoing work with the South Yorkshire bus partnership
arrangements. The details for delivery will vary depending on the type, size and location of
the scheme. For larger schemes this will include:

° The use of consultants for design from existing frameworks where there is no in-
house capacity
. Competitively procured works contractors or as noted above in Sheffield, the option

to utilise current PFI contractor Amey Hallam Highways where schemes are classed
as ‘non-core’ elements of the existing PFI contract.

For smaller schemes the current process for dealing with South Yorkshire Bus Partnership
works will be used (for example, hotspot groups in each Local Authority area).

The relevant bus and train operators will be involved in the Project Teams, as set out in the
Management Case.

The low emission bus trial element of the TCF programme will require more bespoke
contractual arrangements — these are being designed in discussion with SYPTE'’s Legal
Department.

Consequences

As a result of the preferred procurement strategy, it is currently envisaged that there will be
around 30 separate contracts to deliver the interventions within the TCF programme over the
four year period. As this TCF Tranche 2 bid is being submitted by SCR, there will be back-to-
back funding arrangements and contracts put in place with each of the relevant procuring
authorities. This is similar to the process for the LGF programme and so is already well
understood.

Whilst it is acknowledged that this is not a particularly straightforward procurement strategy
(such as one contract for the whole of the programme), it is hoped that the DfT appreciate
that the TCF programme is significantly different to a single road or public transport scheme,
and hence the procurement strategy has been developed to suit the particulars of the
programme and the local circumstances in the SCR.

There is a need for time, cost and quality issues to be managed and their inevitable tensions
balanced as part of the implementation of the preferred procurement strategy. The strong
governance arrangements that are set out in the Management Case have been designed to
address this potential issue.

Page 117



RISK ALLOCATION AND TRANSFER

The construction contracts will include clauses to facilitate the transfer of appropriate risks
from the procuring authority to the contractor, such as risks associated with construction
costs increasing above those predicted in the Financial Case.

The scheme costs currently include a level contingency associated with risk, following the
Quantified Risk Assessment, the outcome of which is described in the Management Case.
At this stage of the development of the TCF programme and prior to the appointment of
contractors, the cost estimate contains a greater proportion of risk borne by the SCR and its
partners than will remain after the contractor appointment. The risk of the final scheme costs
being higher than currently predicted remains until the tendering process is complete, at
which point this risk can be transferred to the relevant contractor.

HUMAN RESOURCES ISSUES

No significant human resources issues have been identified that could affect the
deliverability of the SCR TCF programme, although it is recognised that it has a considerable
human resources requirement, across the SCR, SYPTE, South Yorkshire Local Authorities,
the design teams and the contractor teams. At this time, resources have been identified to
deliver the TCF programme, but the resource requirement will be kept under review by the
TCF Programme Board and, if necessary, additional resources brought in, particularly in the
area of programme and project management.

It should be noted, however, that the SCR retains an in-house programme and project

assurance capabilities to guide the process centrally and ensure that the Senior Responsible
Owner (SRO) will be in control of delivery and risks throughout the delivery process.

Page 118



INTRODUCTION

This section describes how the scheme will be managed and delivered. The methodology
used to define the process and procedures necessary to manage this project are based on
the PRINCEZ2 methodology promoted by the Office of Government Commerce (OGC).

The key points from the Management Case are as follows:

o The South Yorkshire Local Authorities and SYPTE have collective experience in
delivering a diverse range of similar projects and have a strong track record in
the procurement and delivery of such schemes on time and to the agreed
budget.

o Effective governance structures have already been established through a TCF
Project Board and it is intended to retain the fundamental elements of this
structure for the implementation of the programme, underpinned by effective
delivery mechanisms already in place across the SCR.

o An outline phasing plan for the implementation of the TCF programme has been
developed.
o Beyond the approval of this bid, further approval of the interventions within the

preferred TCF programme will be made in accordance with the SCR’s agreed
Assurance Framework.

o A stakeholder management plan has been developed to ensure clear and
consistent communications about the TCF programme.

o A risk register has been developed and is maintained by the Project Board, with
the key programme-level risks scored and their impacts quantified.

o The TCF programme will be subject to a process of before and after monitoring
and evaluation, in line with the SCR’s Assurance Framework and the framework
for the overall TCF programme evaluation that is being developed by the DfT.

The scope of the individual schemes included within the preferred TCF programme has been
tailored to ensure that it is entirely deliverable within the timescales within which funding is
available.

During the development of the programme, challenges around risk, costs and deliverability

have all been undertaken, as well as a value for money assessment, to ensure as far as
practicable that the TCF programme is deliverable and robust.

EVIDENCE OF SIMILAR PROJECTS

The South Yorkshire Local Authorities and SYPTE have collective experience in delivering a
diverse range of similar projects, and have a strong track record in the procurement and

Page 119



delivery of such schemes, with some examples of recent projects delivered on time and to
the agreed budget including:

Barnsley Quality Bus Corridor Improvements (A61 Phase 3 Burton Road - £7 million)

A61 Birdwell Highway Improvements (£9.7 million)

Dearne Towns Link Road (£30 million)

Cudworth & West Green Bypass (£23 million)

M1 Junction 37 signalisation (DfT pinch point scheme — £1.567 million)

Dodworth Bypass (£5.7 million)

A638 Quality Bus Corridor (£12 million)

Great Yorkshire Way Phases 1 and 2 (£66 million combined)

Doncaster Southern Gateway White Rose Way (£32 million)

DN7 Unity Link Road (£15.8 million)

Doncaster Station improvements (£7 million)

Rotherham Sheffield BRT North (£29.8 million)

Tram-Train Trial (in conjunction with DfT, Network Rail and South Yorkshire

Supertram - £75 million)

Rotherham Central Station improvements (£8.5 million)

° Rotherham Interchange improvements (£12 million)

° A61 Penistone Road Pinch Point / Better Buses scheme (£5 million, including a £1
million contribution to a major junction improvement from a large retailer)

o Sustainable Transport Access Fund in Sheffield and Rotherham (including
Cycleboost, Independent Travel Training, Busboost and EcoStars — £7.5 million)

° CBTF (covering 117 buses in Sheffield).

Collectively, the SCR has successfully delivered various DfT-funded programmes (including
Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) and BBA). The BBA programme probably
represents the most directly applicable example of delivery for the TCF programme and has
provided a number of ‘lessons learnt’ for other programmes across the SCR.

In 2013 SYPTE, SCC and local bus operators worked with DfT on the development of the
BBA grant proposals. These involved the use of Bus Service Operator Grants (BSOG) to
fund capital and revenue investment in bus service improvements. The result of this for
Sheffield was the award of £18.3 million grant over the period 2013 to 2018 — this funding
and local match was used to successfully deliver a variety of public transport schemes
across the City.

Many of the BBA schemes and the environment in which they were delivered are similar to
the public transport schemes included in this TCF bid including:

. Working closely with bus operators to ensure their requirements are met
. Working with the Local Highway Authority and other local stakeholders
. Managing change and risk over a five year programme.

The longer term impact of the BBA programme is being reported to the DfT as part of the
agreed monitoring plan, but highlights to date include the following.

. The Penistone Road bus lane opened in March 2015 — early findings since
implementation showed a 32% reduction in average bus journey times along this key
section of route

. The Chesterfield Road bus priority improvements were completed in the Autumn
2018 and are now fully operational, with the final scheme enhanced by the
completion of core highway maintenance works by SCC prior to completion — the
scheme has delivered a more consistent and reliable inbound journey time by bus

Page 120



(particularly in the morning peak) and a total journey time over the new section of bus
lane of approximately 3 minutes compared to a baseline of approximately 4 minutes

° The co-location of bus operator and SCC staff at the Urban Traffic Control centre has
been rewarded with many positive outcomes, and the sharing of information is
benefitting all parties, both in terms of minimising the disruption when incidents occur
and reducing the time taken to return services to normal following an incident.

PROGRAMME DEPENDENCIES

The TCF programme forms a key element of the implementation of the SCR Transport
Strategy, but cuts across the implementation plans being developed to underpin the strategy
as shown by the diagram below.

SCR TCF
Programme

Rail
HS2

Northern Powerhouse Rail
Long Term Rail Strategy

A
Public
Transport

Supertram,
Tram-Train
. Buses

Active Travel

Walking
Cycling

Environment
and Quality of Life

U/

senuoLd 43S

SEP Priorities

ABojouyasa| pue uoneaouu|

The Active Travel elements of the TCF programme will form the first four years of the Active
Travel Implementation Plan and set the benchmark for the standards and delivery of the
remainder of the ambitious active travel interventions that the SCR is progressing. Some of
the active travel interventions within the TCF programme are focused on improving access
to the South Yorkshire rail network and others will involve works on the Key Route Network
(KRN) that has been defined within the emerging Roads Implementation Plan.

There is also a significant overlap between the Public Transport elements of the TCF
programme and both the Roads and Public Transport Implementation Plans, although the
latter will be developed in detail following the conclusion of the Bus Review described in the
Strategic Case. All of the planned bus priority interventions within the TCF programme lie on
the defined KRN and are aimed at improving journey times and reliability for buses along
these routes, one of the key objectives of the Roads Implementation Plan.

The planned improvements to rail station facilities are entirely in accord with the recently

published Integrated Rail Plan and are aligned to the minimum standards envisaged for all of
the North’s rail stations within the TfN Long Term Rail Strategy.

Page 121



GOVERNANCE

Effective governance structures have already been established and it is intended to retain
the fundamental elements of this structure for the implementation of the programme. The
governance arrangements are illustrated in the diagram overleaf.

The Senior Responsible Owner (SRO) for the package is Mark Lynam, Director of Transport,
Housing and Infrastructure at the SCR. The SRO is responsible to the Transport Executive
Board (TEB), the Transport Thematic Board and ultimately the SCR Mayoral Combined
Authority (MCA). The SRO and/or their nominated Officer(s) are also responsible for
reporting progress to the DfT.

Ultimate financial accountability for the TCF programme lies with the MCA, who have
approved the content of the TCF programme and this TCF bid.

A TCF Project Board, chaired by the SRO and with representatives of all key partners, has
been established since January 2019, and it is intended to retain the essence of the
structure for the implementation of the TCF programme, although with a recognition that it
should now become a TCF Programme Board. DfT has been represented at the (current)
Project Board meetings that have overseen the development of the SOBC and it is intended
that this arrangement will continue into the delivery phase as part of the Programme Board.

The Programme Board meets on a monthly basis and its principal responsibilities are as
follows:

Agree and own the SOBC

o Confirm projects and resources within the TCF programme
Accountable for the success of the TCF programme in terms of user and supplier
requirements

. Receive TCF programme updates and take decisions on issues raised by the Project
Boards by exception, with escalation points clearly agreed at the start of the
programme

° Provide leadership, direction and challenge to the Project Boards, Project Teams and
the Project Manager

. Approve (either into or continuation within) of schemes into (and through) the capital
programme gateways

° Agree tolerances for time, quality and cost — this will include reviewing delegations
and meeting frequency within SCR to facilitate programme delivery

o Monitor spend on the programme and delivery of outcomes

Agree the purpose and content of project reports to be escalated through the
governance structure, including both scheduled and ad hoc reports

° Maintain an overview of the programme-level risk register and own the programme-
level risk pot

. Ensure effective communication with stakeholders, owning the Stakeholder
Management Plan and Communications Plan

. Set up and oversee the implementation of the Monitoring and Evaluation Plan.

The SRO is supported by a Project Manager and a Bid Manager. The nominated Project
Manager at this time is Peter Elliott, Principal Programme Delivery Manager at SYPTE.
Peter has been responsible for the option assessment work done to date. The nominated
Bid Manager is David Whitley, Senior Programme Manager (Transport) in the SCR
Executive Team. It is anticipated that the TCF programme once approved will be managed
by a Programme Manager supported by a Programme Office function, most likely to be
serviced using internal SCR resources.

Page 122



€21 abed

Mayoral Combined Authority

MCA Transport Board

Transport Executive Board

Dispute resolution for
Programme Board

SCR Appraisal Panel

» Considers business cases and
make recommendations on
projects to proceed

TCF Programme Board

Chaired by SRO — Mark Lynam
(SCR)

Attended by SCR, SY Local
Authorities, SYPTE, SYLTP,
Supported by a Programme
Office

SCR
Active
Travel

Advisory
Board

Active Travel Project Board

Leads on delivery/co-ordination of
all AT schemes across SCR
Chaired by SCR, includes user
group representation as needed

Public Transport Project Board

Leads on delivery/co-ordination of
all PT schemes in programme
Chaired by SYPTE, includes
operator representation as needed

BMBC scC

SccC

DMBC RMBC

BMBC

RMBC DMBC

Rail Project Board

* Leads on delivery/co-ordination of

all Rail schemes in programme
+ Chaired by SYPTE, includes
industry representation as needed

North of
England
Programme
Board

District-level Design and
Delivery Teams




Below the TCF Programme Board is a series of individual Project Boards, covering the three
key elements of the TCF programme. Given the relationship between the active travel
elements of the TCF programme and the overall SCR Active Travel Implementation Plan,
the Active Travel Project Board leads on delivery/co-ordination of all active travel schemes
across SCR, not just those within the TCF programme (and so has a wider remit). This
Project Board is also related to the SCR Active Travel Advisory Board, ensuring a strong link
to the Mayor’s Active Travel Commissioner.

The Public Transport and Rail Project Boards are more autonomous and have a dedicated
focus (at this point) on the interventions within the TCF programme, although it is recognised
that there will be some relationship between the proposed improvements to rail stations and
the North of England Programme Board established by the DfT. These Project Boards will
also deal with the interface with other the active travel schemes and other public transport
programmes across the SCR. Both Boards are chaired by SYPTE and include operator and
industry representation as required. The format and chairing of these meetings will be
designed to ensure the interests of operators are dealt with in line with SYPTE’s duties
regarding the unbiased treatment of all operators and the resolution of conflicts of interest.

The key responsibilities of the three Project Boards are as follows:

° Recommend the approval of schemes in capital programmes (either into or
continuation within) — this would include ensuring that schemes met any minima
quality criteria

. Receive monthly reports from Project Teams (and/or programme management office)
and make clear recommendations to address delivery issues when they occur
° Settle any matters that may arise within workstreams across Local Authorities —

matters to be brought could include:

o How under/overspends are managed within the relevant programme;

o Change control processes within programmes;

o Matters relating to project priorities;

o Matters relating to the use of resources, both internal and external; and
o Escalation of risks

° Escalation point for decisions relating to the programme where consensus cannot be
reached at a Project Team level

o Agree, as appropriate, what goes forward as recommendations/advice to the
Programme Board for advice or approval (for example, priorities or use of the risk
pot)

o Refer issues to the Programme Board when matters of conflict cannot be resolved

within the Project Board.

Thereafter, there is a series of design and delivery teams that align to the preferred
procurement strategy outlined in the Commercial Case, broadly arranged on a South
Yorkshire Local Authority basis. The roles of these Project Teams include:

. Delivery of the agreed project and its outputs

. Working with users to establish and meet business needs

. Advising the Project and/or Programme Board of any risks that may arise that are
likely to affect delivery of programme objectives and to be part of the risk reduction
process

. Providing information for project documentation

. Producing project reports as planned to the required level of quality and to agreed
timescales

° Delivery of the project specific elements of the Stakeholder Management Plan and

Communications Plan

Page 124



° Management of the project-level risk register — escalating issues that may require a
draw down on the programme level risk pot

o Providing monthly update reports to the Project Board (and/or programme
management office), requesting decisions based on clear recommendations to
address issues when they occur

o Responsible for seeing a project through local political processes.

These teams, although receiving direction from the TCF Programme Board, already have
their own effective delivery mechanisms in place for the types of intervention within the TCF
programme.

PROGRAMME IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

An outline plan for the implementation of the TCF programme has been developed to inform
the Financial Case, but more detailed delivery plans for each of the interventions will be
developed in due course. The outline plan developed is shown in the table below.

Preliminary Design May 2019 — December 2020
Consultation October 2019 — April 2021
Detailed Design April 2020 — April 2022

Start on Site April 2020

Completion on Site March 2023

The outline phasing plan has the design and development of the interventions front-loaded
within the timeframe so as to minimise risk in terms of cost and deliverability and identify any
issues at an early stage — this includes any necessary consultation.

A small number of schemes require land and/or statutory approvals, but again the early and
properly planned design and development of all of the interventions within the TCF
programme is intended to minimise any risk associated with these schemes.

ASSURANCE AND APPROVALS

As noted previously, beyond the approval of this SOBC, further approval of the interventions
within the TCF programme will be made in accordance with the SCR’s agreed Assurance
Framework.

All schemes and projects seeking investment in the SCR undergo a proportionate appraisal
to assess the merits of the application, its strategic fit and value for money. The first stage in
the process is the production of a Strategic Business Case (SBC), which provides a first
view of the ‘how, what and when’ the project will deliver and its strategic fit with the SEP.

Page 125



A SBC is assessed in line with the five-case model in the HM Treasury Green Book
guidance, and so this SOBC will address this requirement of the SCR’s Assurance
Framework, once approved by the DfT, given that it has also been approved by the MCA
prior to submission.

Beyond the SBC stage, a project applicant or scheme promoter is required to develop the
business case further. The requirements at this stage are dependent on the nature, scale,
risk and complexity of the project, but would generally require an Outline Business Case
(OBC) and thereafter a Full Business Case (FBC).

As set out in the Commercial Case, the individual interventions within preferred TCF
programme have been grouped into a series of packages on a theme and geographic basis,
and it is intended that the following OBCs (and the FBCs) will be progressed through these
packages.

The required OBCs and FBCs build on the foundations of this SOBC in that they will provide
more detail on each of the five cases outlined in the HM Treasury Green Book guidance but
particularly that all impacts of a scheme (monetised and non-monetised) are presented in
the OBC and FBC for consideration.

Once an OBC and FBC is fully developed it is then submitted to the SCR Appraisal Panel for
review. An independent assessment is undertaken of all OBCs and FBCs to quality assure
and scrutinise the project as well as undertaking all necessary due diligence checks.
Transport projects are subjected to a WebTAG compliant appraisal at this stage, and an
Appraisal Scoping Report template is used to assess such schemes.

The SCR Assurance Team completes a Value for Money (VfM) Statement and submits the
appraisal report and VfM Statement to the SCR Appraisal Panel for their assessment. The
Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the SCR Executive Team, along with the
ViM Statement. The Appraisal Panel then agrees what recommendation they will make to
the relevant SCR Thematic Board — either to fully approve the project or defer the project for
further work. In this case of the TCF programme, the Panel’'s recommendation will be made
to the MCA Transport Board.

The Appraisal Panel does have delegated authority to approve projects with a grant value of
£100,000 or less directly, however, it is not expected that this will be relevant for any of the
packages within the TCF programme.

The MCA Transport Board can then approve a package if it is within their delegated limit
(currently those with a grant value of less than £2 million), with a Delegated Decisions paper
then presented to the MCA.

Packages which exceed the delegation limit would be endorsed by the MCA Transport
Board and submitted to the MCA for approval.

Once packages are approved, the SCR Executive Team drafts a Grant Agreement which is
based on the details in the FBC and includes any required conditions. If the package is not

approved, promoters are provided with written feedback on the reasons why and invited to

re-submit the application in the future.

If a significant change is required post-FBC, the promoter would submit a Change Request
Form with supporting documentation to the SCR Contract Lead, who would then complete a
review and submit the request to the Appraisal Panel for consideration. Depending on the
impact of the change request, and the value of the initial grant, the changes would then

Page 126



require the approval of either the Appraisal Panel, the MCA Transport Board or, ultimately,
the MCA.

COMMUNICATIONS AND STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT

A Stakeholder Management Plan has been prepared to seek views, communicate progress
and create consensus during the further development of the TCF programme, based on an
initial mapping of the relevant stakeholders and their categorisation into the following three
groups to allow a more focussed approach to each:

° Informed: those stakeholders who are kept up to date on progress or outcomes

. Consulted: those stakeholders whose opinions and solutions are sought throughout
or at particular points

° Actively Involved: those stakeholders who will responsible or accountable for

achieving the outcome.

The stakeholder management plan is designed to ensure existing communication processes
are captured, rather than just adding new ones. This includes the integration of the four bus
partnerships and Countywide governance into the TCF plan, thereby allowing for feedback
on both the TCF development and the input of the wider environment in which the bus
companies operate.

The current stakeholder management plan is shown on the following pages and this plan
has already started to be implemented.

To supplement the stakeholder management plan, a wider Communications Plan is being
developed across the SCR. The aim of the Communication Plan is to ensure the consistent
and structured delivery of messages to all key stakeholders throughout the lifecycle of the
TCF programme. This is to ensure that:

. Customers and stakeholders feel informed about the scheme and how it may impact
them

° Customers and stakeholders feel they have had the opportunity to share their views
about the scheme

° Customers are informed of the benefits the scheme will have on the local area.

This communications plan will be aligned with the communications around the overall TCF
programme being developed by the DfT and also with the agreed TCF programmes of
neighbouring authorities, particularly West Yorkshire.

Both the stakeholder management plan and the communications plan are to be updated at
key points during the programme delivery stage, being treated as a ‘live’ document and
additional information added when applicable.

The Project Boards are responsible for ensuring the agreed plans are implemented.

Page 127



82T abed

Grouping

(Actively
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)

Sub-Group

Stakeholder

Key Needs

Key Actions/Activity

Actively Involved | Funder DfT Delivery of the projects in TCF will Will continue to communicate with
contribute towards Government DfT on development of the bid to
objectives for increasing the number of ensure alignment with the fund
cyclists and easing congestion. Bid is objectives.
being co-developed with DfT to meet . .
fund objectives. DfT to continue to sit on TCF

Programme Board.
Actively Involved | Approver/ Local Authorities | New infrastructure will increase the Work with Local Authority Officers to
Funder capacity on the existing network and will ensure that proposals meet the

help to ease congestion and help deliver
quality of life improvements

needs of the authorities.

Co-ordinate through TCF
Programme Board, Strategic
Transport Group and Network
Managers Group.

Actively Involved

Bus Operators

South Yorkshire
Bus Operators

Journey time savings will reduce costs
which can be reinvested in the network
to improve customer offer and increase
patronage

Involve operators in design and
development work.

Will manage through existing Bus
Partnerships.

Actively Involved | Operator South Yorkshire | Increased patronage on the tram will Involve SYSL in design work of
Supertram support investment in the network. relevant elements.
Limited (L) Congestion will also be eased further
downstream from the use of the P&R.
Actively Involved | Operator Northern Rail Improved station access will lead to Work with Northern to progress the

increased patronage and greater
revenue returns that can be reinvested in
the network.

detail design for schemes, then their
implementation.




62T abed

Grouping

(Actively
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)

Sub-Group

Stakeholder

Key Needs

Key Actions/Activity

Actively Involved | Owner Network Rail Improved access to rail stations will Network Rail to be involved through
increase customer satisfaction with the discussions Northern Rail.
Network Rail owned facilities.

Actively involved | Deliverer Amey TCF projects in Sheffield that impact on Work with Amey on the design of
the highway will impact on the existing TCF interventions in Sheffield to
Amey PFI contract. ensure they are delivered in a

coordinated manner within their
existing programme and to
understand the cost implications for
the PFI contract.

Consulted User Group Sustrans Increase in cycling will potential shift Contact Sustrans and consider their
some shorter journeys from car, improve involvement in the design stage.
health and have a positive impact on air Identify whether there are overlaps
quality. Could lead to increased use of with the NCN.
the NCN.

Consulted Landowner Verdian and Sustainable site access will be improved Work with landowners to ensure site

Harworth (iPort | to enable mode shift from car to active access issues are addressed
Bridge scheme) | travel modes. collaboratively.

Consulted Landowner Magna Provision of a new tram-train facility at Involve Magna in the design stage
Magna will increase the available labour of the project.
market and improve sustainable access Encour ting m res
to the site for employees and visitors. urage supporting measures to

promote use of the new tram-train
stop and park and ride facilities.

Consulted Landowner Parkgate Retail | Delivery of the link road scheme will Work with landowners on scheme

improve site access, ease congestion
and unlock land for development
enabling the delivery of a park and ride
site.

design.




0¢T abed

Grouping

(Actively
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)

Sub-Group

Stakeholder

Key Needs

Key Actions/Activity

Consulted Government Highways Some elements of the TCF programme Highways England to be involved in
Agency England will ease congestion and improve traffic the design work of relevant
circulation assisting smooth running of elements.
the strategic road network.
Consulted Government Canals and Construction of infrastructure will Include CRT in design phase to
Agency Rivers Trust contribute to enhanced public realm. ensure compliance with regulations.
Consulted Government Environment Construction of infrastructure will Include EA in design phase to
Agency Agency contribute to enhanced public realm ensure compliance with regulations.
including improved biodiversity.

Consulted Employer DSA Improved connectivity will widen the Align with refreshed Surface Access
labour pool available to DSA and ease Strategy being developed by DSA.
the flow of people and goods to the
Airport.

Consulted Employer AMID/AMRC Improving reliability of existing transport Work with AMID and AMRC to
links to the AMID and AMRC will help identify how connectivity is
employers to access a wider labour pool restricting access to labour markets
as public transport becomes a viable and to encourage supporting
travel choice. measures to increase active travel.
By improving sustainable travel access
alongside PT reliability, congestion
around the site could be eased as
people travel to AMID using sustainable
modes.

Consulted Employer AWRC/OLP Providing active travel links between the Involve AWRC and OLP in scheme

City Centre and OLP will increase the
presence of OLP.

design. Encourage provision of
supporting measures to ensure
infrastructure is promoted.




TET abed

Grouping Sub-Group Stakeholder Key Needs Interest | Influence Key Actions/Activity
(Actively (H/M/L) (H/M/L)
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)
Enabling sustainable access to the site
will help to manage congestion from car
traffic as the site develops.
Consulted Businesses Frontages within | The benefits delivered by TCF will help Work with the Chamber of
XXm to ease congestion which will enable Commerce to communicate the
employees to access employment and benefits of this project.
speed up the delivery of goods across
the network.
Consulted Residents Residents within | TCF will improve the active travel Work with our communications team
XXm infrastructure available across the region to promote the benefits of the TCF
and ease congestion on the network. bid through our communications
channels.
Consulted Safety Police/ The creation of improved waiting Inform police / community safety
community facilities, improved station access and teams of the station access
safety teams introduction of new active travel improvement works and consider
infrastructure, will promote feelings of sharing designs to ensure they
safety. incorporate best practice.
Consulted Utility Provider National Grid New waiting facilities and station Installation of infrastructure both on
infrastructure will create a safe and street and at stop requires
comfortable waiting environment. connection to/accommodation on
- . . National Grid asset register.
The low emissions bus project will lead
to the reduction of emissions from diesel Work with National Grid and DNO to
buses. ascertain capabilities to support
introduction of EV charging at
various locations.
Informed Utility Provider Telecomms Provision of real time information at Inform of TCF plans for real time
provider stops will improve the customer information provision and the
experience by increasing the confidence affected locations.




ZeT abed

Grouping Sub-Group

(Actively
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)

Stakeholder

Key Needs

Influence ' Key Actions/Activity

in public transport and lead to increased
patronage.

Informed User Group Rail passengers | At the stations that are subject to Work with Northern to develop
accessibility improvements, communication materials to inform
commuters/passengers will experience passengers
the benefits to the station environment
however there will possibly be disruption
during construction.

Informed User Group Public transport | Delivery of the TCF programme will see Contact user groups to test facility

passengers improvements to journey time reliability designs to ensure they are fully
that will benefit end users. accessible and meet customer
. . : needs.
Station access improvements will
improve the customer experience of Co-ordinate through SYPTE.
using regional rail services.

Informed User Group Cycle Sheffield Improving cycling infrastructure provision Inform of plans for provision of cycle
(and any across the region will enable more infrastructure on TCF routes in the
equivalent for people to travel sustainably — this could groups’ areas of interest. Invite input
other Districts) lead to higher numbers of people cycling at the design stage to overcome

and could encourage more people to known local issues.
switch from car to cycle for short
journeys.

Informed Landowner Universities Improving reliability of transport links to Work with university to identify how
the AMID and AMRC will help students connectivity is restricting access to
to connect with employment and training opportunities.
opportunities.

Informed Government Public Health Increasing the provision of cycling and Inform directors of public health of

Agency England walking infrastructure will enable the the improvements to active travel
uptake of active travel modes and infrastructure.
increase the number of people achieving




£eT abed

Grouping

(Actively
Involved/
Consulted/
Informed)

Sub-Group

Stakeholder

Key Needs Interest  Influence
(H/M/L) (H/M/L)

the recommended levels of daily

exercise — this will improve the health of
residents and visitors to the City Region
and reduce the call on future resources.

Key Actions/Activity




RISK IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT

A programme-level Risk Register has been developed and is maintained by the Programme
Board. This is the primary means of recording risk information and monitoring risk exposure
throughout the life of the programme. It not only records all identified risks, but also includes
suggested mitigation measures and responsibilities.

This risk register focuses on programme-level risks and the key risks have been scored and
their impacts quantified. This has been used to provide the QRA value that has been
included within the Economic and Financial Cases.

The most immediate risks at this time are summarised in the following table. Reporting of

key risks is undertaken at Programme Board meetings each month as necessary.

Management/
Resources

Resources insufficient to deliver a large scale bid, and a lack of
resources may impact on the quality of the bid and/or delivery of
the programme post-submission.

Mitigations:

1) Resources to be standing item at Programme Board

2) Programme to be monitored by SRO, Programme Board and
Project Boards

3) Effective resource planning to be implemented

4) Making use of frameworks — early engagement

5) Other 2019/20 funding being used to progress schemes before
the outcome of the bid is known.

Programme
Board

Economic/
Appraisal

Forecast outcomes are not correct, or some schemes cannot
progress as planned leading to reduced outcomes and a lower
BCR/VM.

Mitigations:

1) Sifting process to test robustness of scheme VIM/BCR

2) Appraisal process to be scoped and agreed with DfT

3) Business case(s) to be tested with appropriate level of
optimism bias

4) Outcome delivery (forecast and actual) to be managed by
Programme Board

5) Contingency plan to be prepared to make up any shortfall in
outcomes

6) Appraisal workshop by SCR TCF Task & Finish Group to
ensure consistent approach by partners with standard approach
and consistent assumptions.

SRO

Financial

Inability to deliver within the allocated annual funding profiles
means that some schemes may have to be curtailed or removed
from programme.

Mitigations:

1) Project Teams to be realistic about delivery of schemes in
preparation of SOBC

2) Programme management processes to maintain some flexibility
in funding years

3) Flexibility of profile to be discussed with DfT.

Project
Manager

(s)

Page 134




Financial Some schemes being designed at risk before confirmation of
funding — if TCF bid is not successful, costs may need to be
covered by revenue funding, with a lack of capacity within existing
funding streams eg Integrated Transport block.

Mitigations: SRO

1) Discussion with DfT regarding early confirmation of some
funding post-submission.

2) Confirmation that costs incurred after SOBC submission can be
included in cost estimates.

Inflation (In)accuracy of inflation forecasts may lead to final outturn costs
being higher than agreed programme budget

Programme

Mitigations: Board

1) Provision to be made in QRA/risk adjusted price
2) To be monitored/managed by Programme Board.

One of the key risks relating to the delivery phase of the programme identified within the risk
register is that regarding the need to secure the necessary powers/consents for individual
schemes. It is clear that most of the interventions will require some form of consent, but it is
difficult to understand at this stage the level or likelihood of this risk as schemes are at an
early stage of development.

The front-loading of the preliminary design of all of the interventions within the TCF
programme described previously is intended to minimise this risk. As well as this approach,
the risk register also includes the mitigation measure of developing some alternative and/or
replacement schemes that can address this issue in the delivery phase.

A further risk identified is that around communications, particularly as consultation on a small
some interventions is intended in Autumn 2019 to ensure delivery in early 2020. Inconsistent
messages can undermine scheme development and/or delivery, and this is particularly
important given the alignment of SCR’s TCF programme with the work of the Active Travel
Commissioner. To address this, the stakeholder management plan and communications
plan described previously have been developed and the former is being implemented.

Project-level risks have been identified and are owned by individual Project Teams, with
separate risk registers being developed at the appropriate time.

BENEFITS, MONITORING AND EVALUATION

The TCF programme will be subject to a programme of before and after monitoring and
evaluation, in line with the SCR’s agreed Assurance Framework and the framework for the
overall TCF programme evaluation that is being developed by the DfT. The latter is expected
in Autumn 2019, but some guidance on evaluation has been provided for this SOBC. This
guidance suggests a general outline for monitoring and evaluation based around five
elements:

° Establish a ‘theory of change’ for interventions
° Develop a counterfactual (usually a before and after study)

Page 135



. Collect baseline data
Plan what monitoring is needed
° Plan for data.

The SCR and its partners are committed to the monitoring and evaluation of the TCF
programme to ensure the benefits of the investment are fully realised and the programmes
value for money in terms of delivering economic growth and quality of life outcomes for the
SCR can be demonstrated.

Any programme of monitoring and evaluation needs to demonstrate the extent to which the
TCF objectives were met, monitor performance of the individual elements of the programme
and ensure that any potential issues post implementation are identified and addressed.

The proposed programme of monitoring and evaluation for the TCF programme needs to
support this SOBC, but also to provide a framework for development of more detailed
monitoring and evaluation plans for each of the packages of interventions. It should therefore
seek to enable to assessment of the entire TCF programme whilst providing flexibility to
define more bespoke monitoring and evaluation plans for the individual packages that will be
delivered.

As a starting point, and to pick up on the ‘theory of change’ approach advocated, an outline
Benefits Realisation Plan (BRP) has been to identify, track and compare the various benefits
expected to be delivered. In this case, a “benefit”’ is an outcome of change that is
measurably positive and “benefits realisation” is the process for the identification, definition,
measurement and realisation of benefits from a project.

The TCF objectives have been used to develop the initial ‘desired outputs, outcomes and
impacts’ for the programme and the individual elements. These desired outputs, outcomes
and impacts are the actual benefits that are expected to be derived from the programme:

° Desired outputs — tangible effects that are funded and result from the programme
Desired outcomes — what happens as a result of the outputs
. Desired impacts — the final impacts brought about by the scheme in the short,

medium and long term as a result of the outputs and outcomes.

The suggested ‘desired outputs, outcomes and impacts’ for the TCF programme are
summarised overleaf and provide the basis for the outline BRP that will be developed further
as the TCF programme progresses.

Page 136



/€T abed

TCF Programme Objective

To better connect the areas of transport poverty with
areas of opportunity in a safe and sustainable way

To affect a mode shift away from the private car on
those corridors where new opportunities are likely to
see an increase in demand or where growth could be
stifled

To create a cultural shift towards making cycling and
walking the natural choice for shorter journeys

To achieve the above in ways that address current
health issues and improve air quality across the SCR

Desired Outputs

XXkm of improved walking and
cycling infrastructure

XXkm of new walking and
cycling infrastructure

XXkm of new infrastructure to
benefit buses

XXkm of new bus lanes

XX junction improvements to
benefit non-car modes

Improvements to the facilities
at 12 local rail stations

Deployment of XX low
emission buses for the period
of the TCF programme

Desired Outcomes

More walking and cycling
journeys across the SCR

Reduced bus journey times

Improved bus journey time
reliability

Increased bus patronage
Increased tram patronage
Increased rail patronage
Reduced car commuting

Improved air quality

Desired Impacts

Support inclusive growth

Enhanced opportunities to
access new employment
sites

Create healthy streets where
people feel safe

Improve the quality of our
outdoors




Based on the outline BRP, an outline Monitoring and Evaluation Plan (MEP) has also been
developed for the TCF programme. It is intended that the outline MEP is refined in
collaboration with the contractor commissioned by the DfT to undertake the national
evaluation of the overall TCF programme. The updated MEP will be used during the
implementation period to manage delivery, and post-implementation of the TCF programme,
to evaluate its impact.

Through the monitoring and evaluation of the TCF programme, the SCR, alongside the
national evaluation contractor will seek to:

o Understand whether and how the programmes main objectives have been achieved,
exceeded or not reached

° Provide transferable evidence that may be used to inform future decision making on
similar investment programmes

o Improve the efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of future investment

programmes based on the lessons learnt from the programme.

As well as the specific TCF evaluation guidance issued, the suggested draws upon the
guidance set out in the document “Monitoring and Evaluation Framework for Local Authority
Major Schemes” (2012) as well as MEPs used for recent similar programmes, for example
BBA and LSTF.

Itis initially proposed that the monitoring and evaluation will be undertaken at the level of the
packages of interventions that have been defined as part of the proposed governance and
assurance arrangements within this SOBC.

Once a patrticular intervention is completed and open, the expected benefits should be
realised, however, as with many large scale transport schemes, the full realisation of the
benefits (particularly the intended impacts) will take place over an extended period of time,
and so this has been recognised in the development of the MEP.

Assessing the impact of the packages as a whole (whether it achieved its objectives; how
well it was planned and delivered; whether it represented value for money etc) will mean a
focus on accountability based research questions, seeking to assess the overall level and
direction of change in defined metrics, and less on issues of attribution (mechanisms through
which change occurred). However, this proposed approach will be reviewed in collaboration
with the national evaluator at the appropriate point to ensure it is reflective of the needs of
both the local and national evaluation programmes.

Indicators for measuring the outputs, outcomes and impacts of the programme are defined in
the outline MEP so as to identify whether or not the objectives of the scheme have been
achieved. The MEP also identifies when and how the indicators will be tracked. Where
benefits are difficult to measure, directly proxy indicators have been defined. They way in
which the indicators are defined should also allow for the extent of benefits realisation to be
understood and inform the change management process.

Monitoring of the outputs are to be at both a programme and a project level and will focus on
evidencing outputs are successfully delivered and cost targets and programme milestones
met. The monitoring of these metrics will be a requirement of the governance and assurance
processes detailed previously for the individual packages of interventions. The metrics set
out in the table overleaf are therefore proposed.

Page 138



Project/Programme

Programme/project plan
assessment

Risk management effectiveness

Programme/ project management
reporting

Cost

Outturn investment costs
Identification of cost savings

Analysis of cost overruns

Financial monitoring of
project/programme

Based on the outcomes and impacts in the outline BRP, the metrics set out in the following
two tables are currently proposed for the TCF programme across the SCR. In accordance
with the guidance issued to date, a predominantly counterfactual approach will be adopted
so as to understand the outcomes and impacts by comparing what has happened with what
would have happened in the absence of any intervention.

To better connect the
areas of transport
poverty with areas of
opportunity in a safe
and sustainable way

% of people living in the most
deprived areas brought within a 30
minute journey time by public
transport of an urban centre, SCR
growth area or university

DfT methodology of assessing
accessibility using the Accession
software

Walking and cycling accessibility
assessment to an urban centre,
SCR growth area or university

Local Transport Plan and DfT
methodology of assessing
accessibility using the Accession
software

To affect a mode shift
away from the private
car on those corridors
where new opportunities
are likely to see an
increase in demand or
where growth could be
stifled

Total bus patronage

Bus operator statistics

Total rail patronage

SYPTE surveys

Total tram patronage

Stagecoach Supertram statistics

Morning peak traffic flow (car miles)
along key corridors

Mode split of peak flows along key
corridors

Trafficmaster data

Traffic surveys

Satisfaction with public transport

(i) Bus ‘user’ from SYPTE
household survey

ii) Bus ‘user’ from Passenger Focus
onboard survey

iii) Rail ‘user’ from Passenger
Focus onboard survey

iv) Tram ‘user’ from Passenger
Focus onboard survey

To create a cultural shift
towards making cycling
and walking the natural

Morning peak cycle flows along the
key corridors

Cycle surveys

Attitudes to cycling

User/Non-user surveys

Page 139




Outcome

choice for shorter
journeys

Measure

Attitudes to walking

Data to be used

Address current health
issues and improve air
quality across the SCR

Total carbon emissions from the
transport system (kT CO2)

Latest data from UK local authority
and regional carbon dioxide
emissions national statistics

Nitrogen dioxide (NOx) and
particulate matter (PM10) levels in
AQMAs

Days where threshold exceeded in
AQMAs (NOx/PM10)

KSI accidents (5 year average)

STATS19 data

Desired Impacts

Measure

Data to be used

Support inclusive growth | Increase in jobs - employment TBC

levels (% employed 16-64)

Skills attained (NVQ4+ or

equivalent)

Increase in GVA (South Yorkshire)
Enhanced opportunities | TBC TBC
to access new
employment sites
Create healthy streets Life expectancy (M/F) TBC
where people feel safe

Perceptions of safety TBC
Improve the quality of TBC TBC
our outdoors

The SCR will work with the national evaluators to ensure there is consistency in data
collection processes and absence of bias in the data collected as required for the needs of
both the local and national evaluation programme.

Although the suggested metrics apply to the overall TCF programme across the SCR, they
are also considered suitable for evaluating the individual packages of interventions that sit
within it. Each package will develop their own MEP and define the metrics in more detail in
accordance with the objectives of the package and its geographical scope.

As a starting point, it is considered that the following metrics should be considered by the
Project Teams for inclusion within the package-specific MEP as the OBCs are prepared.
This approach uses existing data sources as well as some programme-specific sources.
SCR will aim to ensure that a consistent approach to measurement is adopted across
different packages where similar metrics are proposed across a range of work packages.

Page 140



. Active Travel Interventions

o) Number of people using new and improved walking and cycle facilities
o Attitudes to walking and cycling
° Public Transport Interventions
o Bus Punctuality (% of services ‘on time’) and Reliability (standard deviation of

wait times mins/trip) by route

Average Bus Journey Times (by service)

Bus Patronage (by service)

Passenger Satisfaction (with infrastructure and services)

Number of people using park and ride facilities

Tram Patronage (on services using new and improved park and ride facilities)
ail Interventions

Rail Patronage (on services using stations with improved facilities

Passenger Satisfaction (with infrastructure and services
o All Interventions

o) Accessibility to Workplace and Jobs

0O O pygooooo

SCR recognises the importance of setting specific indicators and targets and accepts that
this outline MEP does not yet include these. The MEP will be updated with targets following
collaboration with the national evaluator and in relation to the Measures for Success
included within the SCR Transport Strategy.

Costs associated with monitoring and evaluation are included within the overall TCF
programme cost estimates but will need to be confirmed once further collaboration has been
undertaken with the national evaluation contractor. Monitoring and evaluation will be
coordinated by the SCR, who will also oversee the monitoring and evaluation of the overall
TCF programme whilst the Project Boards and Project Teams for the individual packages of
interventions will be required to manage the monitoring and evaluation of their projects in
accordance with the agreed governance and assurance processes (for example, in line with
agreed MEPs produced as part of the OBCs and FBCs required for the progression of the
individual packages).

Under these arrangements, the collection and analysis of the monitoring and evaluation data
will be the responsibility of the Project Teams and will be reported to the relevant Project
Board. The Programme Board will set up systems to monitor the effectiveness of the TCF
programme, be responsible for ensuring the agreed measures have been monitored and will
consider the results of the evaluation. This approach builds upon and is in line with, the
agreed SCR Assurance Framework, and means that the Programme Board can work with
the Project Boards/Teams to agree corrective action if required and as a final resort secure
the desired outcomes via alternative measures if necessary.

In terms of reporting on monitoring and evaluation, the following timescales are considered
appropriate at this time:

. Baseline data collection will take place between September 2019 and the beginning
of implementation of specific work packages

. Regular monitoring reports from individual work packages will be provided to the
Project Boards and Programme Board on a monthly basis

. Individual work packages will deliver monitoring and evaluation reports as stipulated
in their agreed MEPs

. An annual monitoring summary for the overall TCF programme will be produced by
SCR

o On completion of the TCF programme a ‘1 year after’ and ‘5 year after’ evaluation

report will be produced which contains the results of a meta-analysis of all

Page 141



evaluations carried out, although recognising that the preferred TCF programme of
interventions is such that some benefits (particularly impacts) will only occur over a
much longer timescale.

The findings from proposed monitoring and evaluation process will be communicated to key
stakeholders and all reports publicised via the SCR website. However, as with the remainder
of the outline MEP, this proposal is subject to revision following consultation with the national
evaluation contractor.

Page 142






Sheffield
City Region




Agenda Iltem 15

3itgg\Regio';;

MAYORAL

18" NOVEMBER 2019

CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL EMERGENCY

Purpose of Report

This report proposes that the MCA to declare a ‘Climate and Environmental Emergency.

Thematic Priority

This report relates to the following Strategic Economic Plan priorities:

e Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth.
o Facilitate and proactively support growth amongst existing firms.

Freedom of Information
The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme.
Recommendations
Members of the MCA are asked to:
e declare a ‘Climate and Environmental Emergency.’
e request that a report be provided at the next meeting setting out, in further detail, the

development of a plan for delivering a sustainable City Region, produced in collaboration with
both universities, alongside a draft Energy Strategy.

1. Introduction

1.1 The science of global warming is now undisputed in all credible circles, as is the
recognition that action is needed immediately for fundamental change. Fundamental
change will require strong leadership and the support of the whole of the public sector,
including combined authorities and local authorities, but will also require buy-in and action
by private sector businesses, households and individuals.

1.2 There are increasingly urgent calls internationally, nationally and locally to address the
impacts of climate change, including setting ambitious CO2 emission reduction targets. In
May 2019 the Committee on Climate Change published a report which recommended that
the UK legislate to become a net-zero carbon economy no later than 2050. An amendment
to the 2008 Climate Change Act became law on 27" June 2019 making the UK the first
‘major economy’ to legislate for net zero. Almost 200 Local Authorities have declared
climate emergencies including Sheffield, Barnsley and Doncaster.

1.3 This report provides the context in support of a Climate and Environmental Emergency
Declaration by the MCA Group.

Page 145



Proposal and Justification

21

2.2

23

24

25

2.6

The catalyst for calls to declare a Climate Emergency was the 2016 Paris Agreement
which set out the need to keep global temperature rise well below 2°C, but with an
ambition to curtail the rise to 1.5°C. However, The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) published a Special Report on Global Warming in October 2018, which
reported that ‘Human activities are estimated to have caused approximately 1.0°C of
global warming above pre-industrial levels, with a likely range of 0.8°C to 1.2°C. Global
warming is likely to reach 1.5°C between 2030 and 2052 if it continues to increase at the
current rate.” Some of the impacts of this temperature increase will be long-lasting or
irreversible, such as the loss of some ecosystems.

Meeting the Climate and Environmental Emergency challenge requires collective action
from across all public, private and voluntary sectors, as well as individuals, and will require
us all to change the way we live, work and travel. There is a need for immediate action
coupled with the need for long term strategic planning and delivery. The MCA, in liaison
with the LEP and SYPTE, have an opportunity to join our local authorities in providing
leadership in the SCR in tackling climate change.

We are already prioritising projects that complement the move to a net zero carbon society
such as:

e Bus improvements are a priority. A review of South Yorkshire bus services is currently
underway. Over 7,000 people have responded to the bus survey.

¢ The Active Travel agenda which is encouraging people to switch from private vehicles
to public transport and walking/cycling. This includes the appointment of Dame Sarah
Storey as the SCR Active Travel Commissioner.

e Transport investment - around 50% of our £220m Transforming Cities Fund proposal
will be to fund cycling and walking infrastructure as well as a programme of works to
support continuation of our zero-emission Supertram network.

e The Mayor’'s commitment to the Northern Forest initiative including the recent letter to
the Prime Minister co-signed by Northern Leaders to request further investment.

e The Mayor’s focus on tackling fuel poverty including speaking at the recent National
Energy Action Annual Conference in Sheffield.

e Supporting low carbon innovation and business growth opportunities such as the
expansion of ITM’s hydrogen fuel facilities and the £22m new research centre for Fusion
technologies at the AMP.

¢ Installing solar panels and renewable source heating within the MCA Group estate and
electric vehicle charging points at, for example, Rotherham Interchange.

However, declaring a Climate and Environmental Emergency means that full consideration
will need to be given to decisions around all areas of strategic policy and investment and
how these align with the strategy to achieve a net zero carbon city region. Significant
changes will be required both in how the MCA, LEP and SYPTE operate, and in our role of
setting strategic policy, developing programmes, and the approach to investment and
support.

A new Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) for the region is currently under development, and
there is a clear steer from public and private sector leadership that the region’s plans
should aim for not only inclusive but also sustainable growth. Economic growth ‘at any
cost’ is not an option, however there is a real opportunity for SCR to have ‘first mover
advantage’ and position itself as a leader in sustainability-driven innovation in order to set
out a credible and deliverable plan to respond to any Climate Emergency declaration.

We are uniquely placed to do this thanks to the world-leading expertise of researchers at
the University of Sheffield and Sheffield Hallam University, their experience in delivering
such projects and access to significant funding, facilities and equipment. This is combined
with the significant work already underway to produce an SCR Energy Strategy.

Page 146



2.7 Developing a systemic response to the Climate Emergency declaration, which capitalises
on the technological and scientific capabilities within the region, will bring economic growth
which is both inclusive and provides the necessary social and environmental benefits. It is
therefore proposed that the SCR Executive Team finalise the Energy Strategy, but also
work closely with both universities to set out a much broader plan by March 2020 through
which a range of possible development solutions to meet our declaration commitments
which can be tested and implemented. This will form a key tenant of the refreshed SEP.

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1 The negative impacts of climate and environmental change are evident in the UK and
throughout the world, such as more extreme weather conditions, increasing flooding, loss
of habitats and species, and acceleration in the melting of polar ice caps and glaciers.
Carbon emissions are proven to be the key cause of these changes and this must be
where action at all levels needs to be focussed.

3.2 A do-nothing or do-minimal approach will simply continue this negative trajectory which will
have catastrophic effects for all of us. Changes will require national and international
efforts, but there are also measures that are best implemented at the SCR level and
locally.

4. Implications

4.1 Financial

There will be a resource implication associated with changes in strengthening how clean
growth and climate change impacts are considered as part of all new schemes that come
through the Combined Authority. Additional resources will be needed to allow the MCA to
deliver changes to its operations and internal policies which will need to be factored in to
the MCAs business planning process for 2020/2021 and beyond. Although there may also
be savings made and new revenue generating opportunities that may arise as measures
are implemented.

4.2 Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. However, the implication of
declaring a Climate and Environmental Emergency has the consequence of affecting the
way in which contracts will be entered in the future.

4.3 Risk Management
A risk assessment will be undertaken as part of the response plan proposed.

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
None arising directly from this report. The detailed proposals to address the Climate
Emergency will be inclusive through covering all the SCR, and the outcomes such as
cleaner air, better health and wellbeing, more attractive urban and rural environments will
be shared by all.

5. Communication
5.1 Proactive communications will be delivered across a range of channels, including digital,
social and traditional media.

6. Appendices/Annexes
None
REPORT AUTHORS Colin Blackburn / Karl Sample
POST Assistant Director Housing, Infrastructure & Planning
Director responsible Mark Lynam,
Email Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3445

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ. Other sources and references: N/A

Page 147


mailto:Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

City Region
MAYORAL

Becoming an Armed Forces Friendly Employer: MCA adoption of the Armed Forces Covenant

18t November 2019

Purpose of Report

The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) is asked to sign up to the Armed Forces Covenant and, in
doing so, agrees its intention to adapt its employment and equal opportunities practices to reflect the
commitments made in signing up to the Covenant.

Thematic Priority

Cross cutting - Governance

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme.

Recommendations

That the MCA:

1.

signs up to the Armed Forces Covenant.
2. agrees its intention to adapt its employment and equal opportunities practices reflecting the
commitments made in signing up to the Covenant.

1

Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

MCAs, Combined Authorities, local authorities, voluntary organisations, and charities across
the country are increasingly committing to inclusive employment practices.

By signing up to the Armed Forces Covenant, the MCA will be demonstrating its commitment
to tackling inequalities through actively supporting the employment of members of the Armed
Forces, veterans, and their families.

The Armed Forces Covenant is a national pledge led by the Ministry of Defence to ensure that
together we acknowledge that those who serve or who have served in the armed forces, and
their families, should be treated fairly in the economy and society.

Although each of the MCA constituent members have individually signed up to the Armed
Forces Covenant, the MCA is being asked as an employing body to signal its commitment to
ensuring that members of the Armed Forces, veterans, and their families are supported in the
workplace.

There are two key principles of the Armed Forces Covenant:

1. The Armed Forces Community should not face disadvantage compared to other
citizens in the provision of public and commercial services, and that

Page 149



2. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases especially for those who have given
the most.

1.6 The adoption of the Armed Forces Covenant will send a powerful message to the city region’s
communities that the MCA is committed to inclusive employment practices.

Proposal and justification
2.1 As an employing body, the MCA may wish to:
1. Promote the fact that we are an armed forces-friendly organisation
2. Support the employment of veterans and service leavers
3. Offer flexibility in leave for service spouses and partners before, during and after
deployment
4. Support reservist employees, allowing leave for training and deployment

2.2 Signing up the Armed Forces Covenant will require a full review of all MCA HR policies and
practices, but may include:

¢ Amendments to the Recruitment & Selection Policy to include military organisations

¢ Amendments to the Annual Leave and Special Leave policies to accommodate for any
additional leave required by employees who are members of the Armed Forces,
veterans or their families.

2.3 The MCA will also have the opportunity to be recognised by the Employer Recognition Scheme
(ERS) award, if it wishes.

2.4 Becoming an Armed Forces friendly employer will allow the MCA to benefit from a wide range
of unique skills and experiences that those who have served can bring to the organisation.

Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1 None. While there is no statutory requirement to do so, the adoption of the Armed Forces
Covenant will strengthen the MCA’s commitment to inclusive employment practices.

Implications
4.1 Financial
Signing up to the Armed Forces Covenant would support employees in the Armed Forces,
veterans and their families with special leave for training and deployment. For the Army
Reserves, this may be an additional 19 days a year after annual leave allocations.
4.2 Legal
The adoption of the definition would be non-legally binding.
4.3 Risk Management
None
4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
This proposal clearly supports wider equality, diversity and social inclusion agendas.
Communications
5.1 By signing up to the Armed Forces Covenant, the MCA will be sending a powerful message of

its clear commitment to inclusive employment practices.
Page 150



5.2 The MCA may wish to promote that it is an Armed Forces-friendly employer and, upon signing
the Armed Forces Covenant, the MCA will also be eligible to use the Covenant and, if it chooses
to sign up, the Employment Recognition Scheme logos in compliance with branding guidelines.

5.3 The MCA decision will be communicated via the usual channels.
6 Appendices/Annexes

6.1 None

Report Author Sophie Waddington
Post External Affairs Officer
Officer responsible Dave Smith
Organisation SCR Executive
Email Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 2203403

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ

Other sources and references:

Page 151


mailto:Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

City Region
MAYORAL

18t November 2019

Withdrawal of Non-Constituent Members from the LEP

Purpose of Report

This paper sets out the governance implications arising from the changes in Local Enterprise
Partnership and membership rules being introduced from 15t April 2020.

Thematic Priority
Cross cutting - Governance.
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

This paper is not exempt from FOI requests and will be published in line with the Combined Authority
Publication Scheme.

Recommendations

The Members of the Combined Authority note the contents of this report and approve the changes to
the membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee as set out in paragraph
2.2 iv of the report.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report seeks to identify for Members the governance implications of the LEP
geography review and the Government decision not to allow overlapping LEP
geographies.

2. Proposal and justification

21 As Members will be aware the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) geography will change
from 15t April 2020 following the Government 2018 decision not to allow overlapping
geographies. This means the areas of the SCR MCA’s Non-constituent Councils being
excluded from the SCR LEP boundary (and being solely in the LEP area for
Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire (D2N2)). From 15t April 2020 an Authority’s area will only
be allowed to be situated in one LEP area.

2.2 In terms of the SCR MCA this will have the following governance implications:

i. Membership of MCA — the Non-constituent Councils are legally members of the
MCA and this is set out in the MCA’s Establishment Order (Statutory Instrument
S1/2014/863). In order to change the membership, legislation in the form of a
statutory instrument/order under the Local Democracy, Economic Development

and Construction Act 2009 would be required.
Page 153




6.

23

ii. Voting Rights — At present the Non-constituent Councils are non-voting members of
the MCA. The Constituent Councils may, on a meeting by meeting basis, allow the
non-constituent authorities voting rights on any agenda item. Therefore, and until
any issues around membership are resolved by legislation, voting rights are
restricted and the Non-constituent Council have no automatic right to vote.

ii. Thematic Boards — The MCA at its meeting in September amended the
membership and quoracy rules of the Thematic Boards in consequence of the
revised SCR LEP geography. These amendments reflected the reduced
requirement of the Non-constituent Councils to be members of the Boards.

iv. Overview & Scrutiny and Audit Committees- Given the fact that from 15t April 2020
the work of the MCA will be predominantly related to the area of the Constituent
Councils it is recommended that the Non-constituent Councils are no longer
members of the 2 committees. The Non-constituent Councils retaining membership
would likely cause further quoracy issues as the Committee needs two thirds
attendance to be quorate.

The MCA should also note that the LEP membership change will have a financial impact
on the MCA. At present the MCA receives £1m per annum from Chesterfield Borough
Councils related to business rates retention from Markham Vale Enterprise Zone. The
budget implications and mitigation measures are being worked through as part of the
20/21 budget review.

Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1

None considered.

Implications

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Financial

As set out in paragraph 2.3 above.

Legal

The legal implications are set out in the body of the report.
Risk Management

The risks associated with the LEP geography changes are incorporated into the SCR/CA
risk register.

Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
These changes do not adversely affect the requirements of the LEP Review as this relates
to the gender make up of the Board.

Communications

5.1

Not applicable.

Appendices/Annexes

6.1

None.

Report Author Steve Davenport
Post Monitoring Officer

Officer responsible This must be the relevant Director of Service

Organisation Sheffield City R8§genLo4



Email steve.davenport@sypte.co.uk
Telephone 0114 2211353

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ
Other sources and references:

Page 155


mailto:steve.davenport@sypte.co.uk
mailto:steve.davenport@sypte.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 18

ity Regioﬁ

18" November 2019

Decisions & Delegated Authority Report

Purpose of Report
This paper updates the Mayoral Combined Authority on

e Decisions and delegations made by the MCA
o Decisions and delegations made by Thematic Boards

Thematic Priority
All.

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under
the Combined Authority Publication Scheme.

Recommendations

Members are asked to note the decisions and delegations made.

Appendix A provides details of the delegations agreed by the MCA, which are in addition to those made
under the Scheme of Delegation.

Appendix B provides details of decisions taken under the delegation made to Thematic Boards and the
subsequent delegations made to officers where appropriate. In accordance with Combined Authority’s
Constitution/Terms of Reference for the Board, Board decisions have been ratified by the Head of Paid
Services (or their nominee) in consultation with the Chair of the Board.

Report Author Claire James
Post Senior Governance and Compliance Manager
Officer responsible Ruth Adams
Organisation Sheffield City Region
Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3442

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ
Other sources and references: n/a

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



6GT abed

Mayoral Combined Authority

Appendix A

ul Date of Decision Delegation Delegated to Financial value Update Status
delegation
038 17th July 2017 Devolution - Early Intervention Pilot Acceptance of grant offer Finance Director Not stated The Pilot is currently on pause so we Active
Acceptance on behalf of the haven’t formally accepted any grant.
Authority, after
considering acceptable all
the terms and conditions
imposed by the grant
awarding body.
043 30th October One Public Estate and Land Release Sign off of any final bid Sign Off - Head of Paid £681k minimum Bid submitted. Funds received. Active
2017 Fund document and approve Service and S73 Officer (OPE) and £450k Contracts being developed for
the operationalising of the | Bid - Head of Paid (LRF) minimum individual projects. 1 project now in
bid subject to it being Service contract, 4 projects in contracting
success, including progress.
contracting with third
parties.
047 9th March 2018 The appointment of Creative Space Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid Service in Undisclosed Entered into contract with Creative Active
Management Ltd as the preferred arrangements consultation with the Space Management LTD and have
Facilities Management provider for S.73 Officer reporting arrangements in place to
the AMP Technology Centre for 5 oversee the operation of the AMP
years from the 1st April 2018 and the Technology Centre. Contract is
reinvestment of £135,000 per year for operating effectively. Programme
three years of the revenue generated Director role now not progressing
from the AMP Technology Centre, to due AMID review.
fund a Programme Director and
activity budget to accelerate the
development of the Advanced
Manufacturing Innovation District
049 11th June 2018 LGF programme change requests 360 Enter into contractual Head of Paid Service, in c.£4.1m Applicant progressing towards Active
Media arrangements conjunction with the meeting conditions of award prior to
Section 73 Officer contract.
056 17th December LGF Investment Approval Enter into contractual Head of Paid Service, in £15m Increased allocation not yet applied Active

2018

The increase in the Housing Fund
allocation held in the SCR Property
Intervention Holding Company by up
to £15m subject to conditions

arrangements

conjunction with the
Section 73 Officer




09T obed

062 25th March 2019 | Provider Capacity Fund To approve applications Section 73 Officer In contract and delivering Active
to the Provider Capacity
Development Fund.
063 25th March 2019 | Transforming Cities Fund: Tranche 1 To enter into agreements Head of Paid Service £4.2m In contract and delivering Active
Bid Submission with the relevant local
authorities who will be
delivering the schemes
064 3rd June 2019 Transforming Cities Fund - Chief Executive and Chief | n/a Due November 2019 Active
To finalise the submission of the TCF Financial Officer of the
business case based upon the Mayoral Combined
framework set out in the related Authority, in
report. consultation with the
Mayor
065 3rd June 2019 MCA Revenue Budget, Capital Enter into the contractual | Delegated authority to Grant £101k Grant accepted. Entered in to Active
Programme and Treasury Outturn arrangements required the SCR Head of Paid Contract value £159k | contract for Investment Manager and
Report - Extension of the contract of Service (in total) associated project support.
the Investment Manager and to and Section 73 Officer
acceptance of the grant
066 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £7m Contract negotiations underway. Active
Progression of Waverley Local Centre | arrangements required in conjunction with the
to full approval and award of up to Section 73 and the
£7m grant to Waverley Square Itd Monitoring Officer
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
067 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment ApprovalProgression Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £0.91m In contract and delivering Active
of Specialist VFX Training Equipment arrangements required in conjunction with the
to full approval and award of up to Section 73 and the
£0.91m grant to DN College Group Monitoring Officer
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
068 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £1.52m Pre-drawdown conditions satisfied. Active

Progression of Falstaff Phase 3 to full
approval and award of up to £1.52m
grant to Sheffield Housing Company
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table

arrangements required

in conjunction with the
Section 73 and the
Monitoring Officer

In contract and delivering




T9T abed

069 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £2.2m Funding agreement Signed. All Active
Progression of UK Atomic energy arrangements required in conjunction with the conditions satisfied
project to full approval and award of Section 73 and the
up to £2.2m grant to UK Atomic Monitoring Officer
Energy Authority subject to the
conditions set out in the Appraisal
Panel Summary Table.
070 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £0.124m Applicant has withdrawn Active
Progression of Company Ref. 0067 to arrangements required in conjunction with the
full approval and award of up to Section 73 and the
£0.124m grant to Company Ref. 0067 Monitoring Officer
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
071 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £0.05m Company 95 have withdrawn their Active
Progression of Company Ref. 0095 to arrangements required in conjunction with the grant application.
full approval and award of up to Section 73 and the
£0.05m grant to Company Ref. 0095 Monitoring Officer
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
072 3rd June 2019 LGF Investment Approval Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £0.249m Funding agreement signed, projectin | Active
Progression of Company 0096 to full arrangements required in conjunction with the delivery.
approval and award of up to £0.249m Section 73 and the All conditions satisfied
grant to Company 0096 subject to the Monitoring Officer
conditions set out in the Appraisal
Panel Summary Table
078 29th July 2019 Progression of the Digital Engineering | Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £3.713m Grant agreement has been issued for | Active
Skills Development Network to full arrangements required in conjunction with the signature. Pre-contract conditions
approval and award of up to £3.713m Section 73 and the satisfied. All pre-drawdown
grant to Sheffield College subject to Monitoring Officer conditions outstanding.
the conditions set out in the Appraisal
Panel Summary
081 23rd September LGF Contract Variation - Upper Don Enter into the contractual | Head of Paid of Service, £2.3m Contract Variation being drafted. Active

2019

Valley Flood Alleviation Scheme - to
re-profile £2.3m of LGF expenditure.

arrangements required
for the variation

in conjunction with the
Section 73 Officer and
the Monitoring Officer,




This page is intentionally left blank



€97 abed

Business Board

Appendix B

Ul Date of Decision Delegation Delegated to Financial value Update Status
delegation
073 | 17thJuly 2019 | LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid of Service, in £121,000 Applicant has withdrawn Active
Award of £121,000 grant to Company 99 agreements conjunction with the Section
subject to the conditions set out in the 73 and the Monitoring Officer
Appraisal Panel Summary
074 | 17thJuly 2019 | LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid of Service, in £100,000 Funding agreement signed, project Active
Award of £100,000 grant to Company 100 agreements conjunction with the Section in delivery.
subject to the conditions set out in the 73 and the Monitoring Officer All conditions satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary
075 | 17thJuly 2019 | LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid of Service, in £100,000 Funding agreement Signed Active
Award of £100,000 grant to Company 101 agreements conjunction with the Section Pre-agreement conditions satisfied
subject to the conditions set out in the 73 and the Monitoring Officer All Pre-Drawdown conditions
Appraisal Panel Summary outstanding
076 | 17thJuly 2019 | LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid of Service, in £167,252 Funding agreement Signed Active
Award of £167,252 grant to Company 102 agreements conjunction with the Section All conditions satisfied
subject to the conditions set out in the 73 and the Monitoring Officer
Appraisal Panel Summary
080 | 28th August Progression of Project 0098 to full approval | Enter into the Head of Paid Service, in £619,000 Contract in Development. Active
2019 and award of £619,000 subject to the contractual conjunction with the Approval conditions being
agreed conditions arrangements Monitoring and Section 73 progressed
required Officers
082 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £96k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 Award of £96k grant to Company 28c agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
083 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £74k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 Award of £74k grant to Company 37c agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
084 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £50k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active

2019

Award of £50k grant to Company 38
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table

agreements

consultation with the s73 and
Monitoring Officer

Funding agreement to be issued for
signature




9T obed

085 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £30k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 Award of £30k grant to Company 42 agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
086 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £50k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active
2019 Award of £50k grant to Company 52 agreements consultation with the s73 and Funding agreement to be issued for
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer signature
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
087 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £30k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 Award of £30k grant to Company 53 agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
088 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £29k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active
2019 Award of £29k grant to Company 08 agreements consultation with the s73 and Funding agreement to be issued for
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer signature
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
089 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £80k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active
2019 Award of £80k grant to Company 10 agreements consultation with the s73 and Funding agreement to be issued for
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer signature
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
090 | 23rd October LGF Investment ApprovalAward of £45k Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £45k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 grant to Company 12 subject to the agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
conditions set out in the Appraisal Panel Monitoring Officer satisfied
Summary Table
091 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £30k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active
2019 Award of £30k grant to Company 15 agreements consultation with the s73 and Funding agreement to be issued for
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer signature
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
092 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £80k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active
2019 Award of £80k grant to Company 18 agreements consultation with the s73 and Funding agreement to be issued for
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer signature
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
093 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £100k All Pre contract conditions satisfied. | Active

2019

Award of £100k grant to Company 23
subject to the conditions set out in the
Appraisal Panel Summary Table

agreements

consultation with the s73 and
Monitoring Officer

Funding agreement to be issued for
signature




GoT abed

094 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £100k Project on hold - Under review Active
2019 Award of £100k grant to Company 35 agreements consultation with the s73 and
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer
Appraisal Panel Summary Table
095 | 23rd October LGF Investment Approval Enter into legal Head of Paid Service in £85k Approval Letter sent to recipient. All | Active
2019 Award of £85,000 grant to Company 0104 agreements consultation with the s73 and pre contract conditions to be
subject to the conditions set out in the Monitoring Officer satisfied
Appraisal Panel Summary table
Skills & Employment Board
Ul Date of Decision Delegation Delegated to Financial value Update Status
delegation
079 | 6th August The progression of ‘From teenagers to Enter into the Head of Paid Service, in £0.495m All pre-conditions met. Draft Active
2019 employee — A Sheffield City Region, contractual conjunction with the Section contract being prepared
engineering and advanced manufacturing arrangements 73 and the Monitoring Officer
talent pipeline creator’ project to full required
approval and award up to £0.495m grant to
Sheffield UTC Sheffield subject to the
conditions set out in the Appraisal Panel
Summary subject to the value for money
calculation being re-run with the omission
of adult learners and that safeguarding
protocols are in place for adult learning
only to take place at evenings and
weekends with the majority of equipment
time prioritised for learners aged 13-19.
Housing Board
Ul Date of Decision Delegation Delegated to Financial value Update Status
delegation
096 | 24th October LGF Investment Approval Enter into the Head of Paid of Service, in £270k Contract being drafted Active

2019

Award of £270k grant to Peak District
Rural Housing Association (PDRHA)
subject to the conditions set out in the

Appraisal Panel Summary Table

contractual
arrangements
required

conjunction with the Section
73 and the Monitoring Officer




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 19

ity Regmn

18t November 2019

Appointment of Head of Paid Service

Purpose of Report

This report is seeking the approval of the MCA to appoint Dr David Smith as Chief Executive Officer
and Head of Paid Service to June 2022.

Thematic Priority
Cross Cutting - Governance
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

This paper is not exempt from FOI requests and will be published in line with the Combined Authority
Publication Scheme.

Recommendations

The Board are asked to approve the appointment of Dr Dave Smith as Chief Executive and Head of
Paid Service to 2022.

1. Introduction

1.1 The MCA, at its meeting on the 3 June 2019, agreed the recruitment process for its Chief
Executive. This process has now concluded, and the Board is requested to approve the
decision of the appointments panel.

2. Proposal and justification

The Recruitment Process
The recruitment process comprised a three-stage process.

21 Longlist Sift of CV

This was undertaken by:
Damien Allen (LA CEX)
Nigel Brewster (LEP Board Vice Chair)
Mel Dei Rossi (SCR Executive)
Rachael Radford (HR)

Page 167



The first stage process
¢ Aninformal session for candidates to meet with senior officers from the SCR
Executive and the PTE,
¢ A candidate presentation and
e A competency-based interview.

The panel for the presentation and competency-based interview was:
¢ Nigel Brewster (LEP Board Vice Chair),
e Lucy Nickson (LEP Board Vice Chair),
e John Mothersole (LA CEX) and
¢ Rachael Radford (HR).
The second stage interview
A targeted discussion and series of questions developed based upon feedback from the
first panel.
The panel for the second interview was
Mayor Dan Jarvis,
Chris Read (MCA Vice Chair)
James Muir (LEP Chair),
Lucy Nickson (LEP Vice Chair), and
Rachael Radford (HR).

2.2 Following the longlisting of applications three candidates were interviewed at the first stage
and of this two progressed to the final stage.

The Compensation Package
23 Other MCA / CA benchmarking

This analysis has shown that the average of the total compensation package in 18/19 was
£172.5k per annum and uplifted by 2% to achieve a 19/20 position Benchmarking of all
MCA / CA CEX compensation packages has been collated for the end of the financial year
18/19 and uplifted by 2% to achieve a 19/20 position of £175.6k per annum.

24 South Yorkshire benchmarking

This analysis has shown that the average of the total compensation package for South
Yorkshire Local Authority Chief Executives is £197.95k per annum.

25 The proposed value of the total compensation package for the role of MCA Head of Paid
Service is suggested as in a range of £165.6-£175.6k.

This will place the compensation package in a range below the median amount for MCA
CEX, and £22.35k-£32.35k- below the average LA CEX compensation package.

Consideration of alternative approaches

31 The Interim Head of Paid Services was appointed by the MCA at its meeting in June 2016
following a recruitment process. The appointment was not made for any specific duration
and has been extended beyond the original period envisaged. The MCA dismissed
continuing with this interim arrangement.

3.2 The alternatives considered by the MCA in June were to appoint another officer or retain
the current contracted arrangements. Given the position on devolution, the Mayoral cycle,
the agreed changes to governance that are being implemented (as approved by the MCA
in January 2019) and the other changes to Statutory Officers, it was considered that the
recruitment of the Head of Paid Services on a fixed term basis is essential for continued
delivery.

Page 168



4. Implications
4.1 Financial
There will be minimal changes to the financial position in the Group as the position of Head
of Paid Service has been filled on an interim basis to date. Therefore, the funding is
already included within budget.
4.2 Legal

The appointment process was established to comply with all required legislation and the
constitution of the MCA will be subject to the agreed SCR MCA contract of employment.

4.3 Risk Management

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion
The MCA and LEP policies where adhered to in the conducting of the recruitment process.
5. Communications

5.1 Whilst this report is in the public domain, subject to approval, a formal press release will be
issued by the Mayor and the LEP chair.

6. Appendices/Annexes
6.1 None

Report Author Ruth Adams
Post Deputy Chief Executive
Officer responsible Ruth Adams
Organisation SCR Executive
Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
Telephone 0114 220 3442

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ

Other sources and references:

Page 169


mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	10 Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd September 2019
	11 Quarter 2 Capital and Revenue Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 - South Yorkshire Transport Revenue Budget
	Appendix 2 - MCA/LEP Revenue Budget
	Appendix 3 - Revenue Programme Activity
	Appendix 4 - South Yorkshire Local Transport Capital Programme

	12 Draft Financial Strategy 2020-25 and Budget 2020-21
	13 LGF Investment Approvals
	13a Appendix A - LGF Project Approval - Rotherham Town Centre Housing
	13b Appendix B - LGF Approval - M1 Junction 37
	14 Transforming Cities Fund Bid Submission
	Appendix 1 - TCF 'High' Funding Scenario
	Appendix 2 - TCF Strategic Outline Business Case

	15 Climate and Environmental Emergency
	16 Becoming an Armed Forces Friendly Employer: MCA adoption of the Armed Forces Covenant
	17 Withdrawal of Non-Constituent Members from the LEP
	18 Decisions & Delegated Authority Report
	Appendix A - MCA Decisions & Delegated Authority
	Appendix B - Thematic Board Decisions & Delegated Authority

	19 Appointment of Head of Paid Service
	20 LGF Project Approval - Project Chorus *
	Appendix A - Appraisal Panel Summary

	21 LGF Investment Approval *



